CITY OF ONTARIO
PLANNING COMMISSION/
HISTORIC PRESERVATION

MEETING AGENDA

October 23, 2018

Ontario City Hall
303 East ""B"" Street, Ontario, California 91764

6:30 PM

WELCOME to a meeting of the Ontario Planning/Historic Preservation
Commission.

All documents for public review are on file in the Planning Department located at 303 E. B
Street, Ontario, CA 91764.

Anyone wishing to speak during public comment or on a particular item should fill out a green
slip and submit it to the Secretary.

Comments will be limited to 5 minutes. Speakers will be alerted when their time is up.
Speakers are then to return to their seats and no further comments will be permitted.

In accordance with State Law, remarks during public comment are to be limited to subjects
within the Commission’s jurisdiction. Remarks on other agenda items will be limited to those
items.

Remarks from those seated or standing in the back of the chambers will not be permitted. All
those wishing to speak including Commissioners and Staff need to be recognized by the Chair
before speaking.

The City of Ontario will gladly accommodate disabled persons wishing to communicate at a
public meeting. Should you need any type of special equipment or assistance in order to
communicate at a public meeting, please inform the Planning Department at (909) 395-2036, a
minimum of 72 hours prior to the scheduled meeting.

Please turn off all communication devices (phones and beepers) or put them on non-audible
mode (vibrate) so as not to cause a disruption in the Commission proceedings.

ROLL CALL

DeDiemar __ Delman__  Downs__  Gage _  Gregorek _ Reyes  Willoughby

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE TO THE FLAG

-1-



CITY OF ONTARIO PLANNING/HISTORIC PRESERVATION COMMISSION October 23, 2018

ANNOUNCEMENTS

1)  Agenda Items
2)  Commissioner Items

PUBLIC COMMENTS

Citizens wishing to address the Planning/Historic Preservation Commission on any matter that is not
on the agenda may do so at this time. Please state your name and address clearly for the record and
limit your remarks to five minutes.

Please note that while the Planning/Historic Preservation Commission values your comments, the

Commission cannot respond nor take action until such time as the matter may appear on the
forthcoming agenda.

CONSENT CALENDAR ITEMS

All matters listed under CONSENT CALENDAR will be enacted by one summary motion in the order
listed below. There will be no separate discussion on these items prior to the time the Commission votes
on them, unless a member of the Commission or public requests a specific item be removed from the
Consent Calendar for a separate vote. In that case, the balance of the items on the Consent Calendar
will be voted on in summary motion and then those items removed for separate vote will be heard.

A-01. MINUTES APPROVAL

Planning/Historic Preservation Commission Minutes of September 25, 2018, approved as
written.

A-02. ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT AND SIGN PLAN REVIEW FOR FILE NO.
PSGN18-012: A Sign Plan to construct a Freeway Identification Sign for the Meredith
International Centre Specific Plan, generally located at the southerly terminus of QVC
Way, within the Urban Commercial land use district of the Meredith International Centre
Specific Plan. The project is categorically exempt from the requirements of the California
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) pursuant to Section 15311 (Class 11, Accessory
Structures) of the CEQA Guidelines. The proposed project is located within the Airport
Influence Area of Ontario International Airport, and was evaluated and found to be
consistent with the policies and criteria of the Ontario International Airport Land Use
Compatibility Plan (ALUCP); (APNs: portion 0110-321-72 and portion 0110-321-79)
submitted by Craig Development Corporation.

PUBLIC HEARING ITEMS

For each of the items listed under PUBLIC HEARING ITEMS, the public will be provided an
opportunity to speak. After a staff report is provided, the chairperson will open the public hearing. At
that time the applicant will be allowed five (5) minutes to make a presentation on the case. Members of
the public will then be allowed five (5) minutes each to speak. The Planning Commission may ask the
speakers questions relative to the case and the testimony provided. The question period will not count
against your time limit. After all persons have spoken, the applicant will be allowed three minutes to
summarize or rebut any public testimony. The chairperson will then close the public hearing portion of

-2-




CITY OF ONTARIO PLANNING/HISTORIC PRESERVATION COMMISSION October 23, 2018

the hearing and deliberate the matter.

PLANNING COMMISSION/HISTORIC PRESERVATION ITEMS

B. MILLS ACT CONTRACT REVIEW FOR FILE NO. PHP18-027: A Mills Act
Contract for a 1,618 square foot Prairie style residential building, a Contributor within the
El Morado Court Historic District, located at 122 East EI Morado Court, within the LDR5
(Low Density Residential-2.1 to 5.0 DU/Acre) Zoning District. The Contract is not
considered a project pursuant to Section 21065 of the CEQA Guidelines. (APN: 1048-
242-02); submitted by Tara Jessup. City Council action is required.

1. CEQA Determination

No action necessary — Not a project pursuant to CEQA Guidelines Section § 21065

2. File No. PHP18-027 (Mills Act Contract)

Motion to recommend Approval/Denial

C. MILLS ACT CONTRACT REVIEW FOR FILE NO. PHP18-031: A Mills Act
Contract for a historic olive processing plant and associated buildings on 1.66 acres of
land, a Contributor within the College Park Historic District, located at 315 East Fourth
Street, within the LDR5 (Low Density Residential-2.1 to 5.0 DU/Acre) Zoning District.
The Contract is not considered a project pursuant to Section 21065 of the CEQA
Guidelines. (APN: 1047-543-31); submitted by Clifford C. Graber. City Council
action is required.

1. CEQOA Determination

No action necessary — Not a project pursuant to CEQA Guidelines Section § 21065

2. File No. PHP18-031 (Mills Act Contract)

No action necessary — Application was withdrawn

D. ENVIRONMENTAL  ASSESSMENT, DEVELOPMENT  AGREEMENT,
TENTATIVE PARCEL MAP & DEVELOPMENT PLAN REVIEW FOR FILE
NOS. PDA18-002, PMTT18-006 & PDEV18-014: A Development Agreement (File
No. PDA18-002) between the City of Ontario and Colony Commerce Ontario East LP, a
Delaware limited partnership, to establish the terms and conditions for the development
of a Tentative Parcel Map No. 19904 (File No. PMTT18-006) which proposes to
subdivide approximately 85 acres of land into nine (9) parcels and two (2) letter lots, and
a Development Plan (File No. PDEV18-014) to construct nine (9) industrial buildings
totaling 1,685,420 square feet, for property located along the southwest corner of Merrill
Avenue and Archibald Avenue within the Business Park and Industrial land use
designations of the Colony Commerce Center East Specific Plan. The environmental
impacts of this project were previously analyzed in conjunction with the Colony
Commerce Center East Specific Plan (File No. PSP16-003) Environmental Impact Report

-3-




CITY OF ONTARIO PLANNING/HISTORIC PRESERVATION COMMISSION October 23, 2018

(SCH# 2017031048) certified by City Council on May 1, 2018. This project introduces
no new significant environmental impacts, and all previously-adopted mitigation
measures shall be a condition of project approval. The proposed project is located within
the Airport Influence Area of Ontario International Airport and Chino Airport, and was
evaluated and found to be consistent with both policies and criteria of the Ontario
International Airport and Chino Airport Land Use Compatibility Plans (ALUCP); (APNs:
0218-311-02, 0218-311-03, 0218-311-08, 0218-311-10) submitted by CapRock
Partners. Development Agreement requires City Council action.

1. CEQA Determination

No action necessary — use of previous EIR

2. File Nos. PMTT18-006 (Tentative Parcel Map), PDEV18-014 (Development Plan),
& PDA18-002 (Development Agreement)

Motion to Approve/Deny continuance to the November 27, 2018 meeting

E. ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT, GENERAL PLAN AMENDMENT REVIEW
FOR FILE NO. PGPA18-005, AND ZONE CHANGE REVIEW FOR FILE NO.
PZC-18-002: A General Plan (Policy Plan) Amendment (PGPA18-005) and Zone
Change (File No. PZC-18-002) for 2.4 acres of land to [1] modify The Ontario Plan
(TOP) Exhibit LU-01- Land Use Plan to establish a land use designation of Industrial
(0.55 FAR); [2] modify the Future Buildout Table (Exhibit LU-03) to be consistent with
the land use designation changes; and [3] establish a zoning designation of IG (General
Industrial) to bring the property zoning into consistency with the Policy Plan. The project
site is located within North Loop Circle, generally west of Etiwanda Avenue and south of
the Interstate 10 Freeway, and currently does not have a land use designation, zoning
designation, or APN assigned to the parcel. Staff is recommending the adoption of an
Addendum to The Ontario Plan (File No. PGPA06-001) Environmental Impact Report
(SCH# 2008101140) certified by City Council on January 27, 2010. This project
introduces no new significant environmental impacts, and all previously-adopted
mitigation measures are a condition of project approval. The proposed project is located
within the Airport Influence Area of Ontario International Airport, and was evaluated and
found to be consistent with the policies and criteria of the Ontario International Airport
Land Use Compatibility Plan (ALUCP); (APNs: N/A) City-initiated. City Council
action is required.

1. CEQOA Determination

Motion to recommend Approval/Denial of an Addendum to a previous EIR

2. FEile No. PGPA18-005 (General Plan Amendment)

Motion to recommend Approval/Denial

-4-




CITY OF ONTARIO PLANNING/HISTORIC PRESERVATION COMMISSION October 23, 2018

3. File No. PZC18-002 (Zone Change)

Motion to recommend Approval/Denial

F. ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT AND GENERAL PLAN AMENDMENT
REVIEW FOR FILE NO. PGPA18-006: A General Plan Amendment to add text to
The Ontario Plan (TOP) Exhibit LU-01 - Land Use Plan regarding parkland in the
Ontario Ranch area. The environmental impacts of this project were previously analyzed
in conjunction with The Ontario Plan (File No. PGPA06-001) Environmental Impact
Report (SCH# 2008101140) certified by City Council on January 27, 2010. This project
introduces no new significant environmental impacts, and all previously-adopted
mitigation measures are a condition of project approval. The proposed project is located
within the Airport Influence Area of Ontario International Airport, and was evaluated and
found to be consistent with the policies and criteria of the Ontario International Airport
Land Use Compatibility Plan (ALUCP). The project site is also located within the Airport
Influence area of Chino Airport and is consistent with policies and criteria set forth
within the 2011 California Airport Land Use Planning Handbook published by the
California Department of Transportation, Division of Aeronautics. (APNs: N/A) City
initiated. City Council action is required.

1. CEQOA Determination

No action necessary — use of previous EIR

2. FEile No. PGPA18-006 (General Plan Amendment)

Motion to recommend Approval/Denial

G. ENVIRONMENTAL  ASSESSMENT __ AND DEVELOPMENT CODE
AMENDMENT REVIEW FOR FILE NO. PDCA18-004: A Development Code
Amendment to increase the allowable building/structure height from 55 feet to 80 feet
within the IH (Heavy Industrial) zoning district. Staff is recommending the adoption of
an Addendum to The Ontario Plan (File No. PGPA06-001) Environmental Impact Report
(SCH# 2008101140), certified by the City of Ontario City Council on January 27, 2010.
This project introduces no new significant environmental impacts, and all previously-
adopted mitigation measures are a condition of project approval. The proposed project is
located within the Airport Influence Area of Ontario International Airport, and was
evaluated and found to be consistent with the policies and criteria of the Ontario
International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (ALUCP). City Initiated. City
Council action is required. (Continued from the September 25, 2018 meeting)

1. CEQA Determination

Motion to recommend Approval/Denial of an Addendum to a previous EIR

2. File No. PDCA18-004 (Development Code Amendment)

Motion to recommend Approval/Denial

-5-




CITY OF ONTARIO PLANNING/HISTORIC PRESERVATION COMMISSION October 23, 2018

MATTERS FROM THE PLANNING/HISTORIC PRESERVATION COMMISSION

1) Old Business
e Reports From Subcommittees

- Historic Preservation (Standing): Met on October 11, 2018
2) New Business

3) Nominations for Special Recognition

DIRECTOR’S REPORT

1) Monthly Activity Report

If you wish to appeal any decision of the Planning/Historic Preservation Commission, you must do so
within ten (10) days of the Commission action. Please contact the Planning Department for
information regarding the appeal process.

If you challenge any action of the Planning/Historic Preservation Commission in court, you may be
limited to raising only those issues you or someone else raised at the public hearing described in this
notice, or in written correspondence delivered to the Planning/Historic Preservation Commission at, or

prior to, the public hearing.

000000000

I, Gwen Berendsen, Administrative Assistant, of the City of Ontario, or my designee, hereby
certify that a true, accurate copy of the foregoing agenda was posted on October 19, 2018, at
least 72 hours prior to the meeting per Government Code Section 54954.2 at 303 East “B” Street,

Ontario.

ﬂ%é% BUypidlo b

Gwen Berendsen, Secretary Pro Tempore

&

(Clathy, Wahlstrom, Planning Director
lanning/Historic Preservation
Commission Secretary




CITY OF ONTARIO PLANNING COMMISSION/
HISTORIC PRESERVATION MEETING

MINUTES

September 25, 2018

CONTENTS PAGE
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE ... .ottt 2
ANNOUNCEMENTS. ...ttt ettt e sae e e saeesnneaneeas 2
PUBLIC COMMENTS . ...ttt sttt e e 2
CONSENT CALENDAR

A-01. Minutes of AUQUSE 28, 2018 ........coviiiiieiieie e e 2
A-02. File NO. PDEV18-013 ...ttt sttt 3
A-03. File NO. PDEV18-020 ......coiiiiiiiieieeiie ettt st 4
A-04. File NO. PDEV18-018 .....oooiiiiiieieiie ettt 5

PUBLIC HEARINGS

B. File NO. PDCALB-004 ......c.cociiiiiin s 7

MATTERS FROM THE PLANNING COMMISSION.........cccooiiiiiiiiiiiici 7

DIRECTOR’S REPORT .....oiiiiiiiiiii s 8

ADJOURNMENT 8
-1-

ltem A-01-10f 8



CITY OF ONTARIO PLANNING COMMISSION/
HISTORIC PRESERVATION MEETING

MINUTES

September 25, 2018

REGULAR MEETING:  City Hall, 303 East B Street
Called to order by Chairman Delman at 6:30 PM

COMMISSIONERS
Present: Chairman Delman, Vice-Chairman Willoughby, DeDiemar,
Downs, Gage, Gregorek, and Reyes

Absent: None

OTHERS PRESENT: Planning Director Wahlstrom, City Attorney Egger, Assistant
Planning Director Zeledon, Senior Planner Mejia, Senior Planner
Noh, Assistant Planner Aguilo, Assistant Planner Vaughn,
Principal City Engineer Lirley, and Planning Secretary Berendsen

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE TO THE FLAG

The Pledge of Allegiance was led by Commissioner Gage.

ANNOUNCEMENTS

Ms. Wahlstrom stated that staff is requesting that Item B be continued to the next meeting.

PUBLIC COMMENTS

No one responded from the audience.

CONSENT CALENDAR ITEMS

Mr. Reyes requested Items A-02, A-03, and A-04 be pulled off the Consent Calendar.

A-01. MINUTES APPROVAL

Planning/Historic Preservation Commission Minutes of August 28, 2018, approved as written.

PLANNING COMMISSION ACTION

ltem A-01 -2 of 8



It was moved by Willoughby, seconded by Gregorek, to approve the Consent
Calendar including Planning Commission Minutes of August 28, 2018, as
written. The motion was carried 6 to 0. Delman abstained.

PUBLIC HEARING ITEMS

A-02. ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT AND DEVELOPMENT PLAN REVIEW
FOR FILE NO. PDEV18-013: A Development Plan (File No. PDEV18-013) to
construct 79 single-family dwellings on approximately 19.30 gross acres of land located
at the southeast corner of Eucalyptus and Celebration Avenues, within Planning Area 22
of the Subarea 29 Specific Plan. The environmental impacts of this project were reviewed
in conjunction with the Subarea 29 Specific Plan Environmental Impact Report (File No.
PSP03-003, SCH# 200411009), certified by the City Council on October 17, 2006. The
project introduces no new significant environmental impacts. The proposed project is
located within the Airport Influence Area of Ontario International Airport, and was
evaluated and found to be consistent with the policies and criteria of the Ontario
International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (ALUCP). The project site is also
located within the Airport Influence area of Chino Airport and is consistent with policies
and criteria set forth within the 2011 California Airport Land Use Planning Handbook
published by the California Department of Transportation, Division of Aeronautics.
(APNs: 0218-014-03 and 0218-014-04) submitted by Richmond American Homes of
Maryland, Inc.

Ms. Vaughn, Assistant Planner, gave her staff report. She described the location and the
surrounding areas and uses. She described the proposed parking, lot size, elevations, and pocket
park with its amenities. She stated that staff is recommending the Planning Commission
recommend approval of File No. PDEV18-013, pursuant to the facts and reasons contained in the
staff report and attached resolution, and subject to the conditions of approval.

Mr. Reyes wanted clarification regarding who’s responsible for the maintenance of landscape
areas along the wall, if it is the HOA or homeowner.

Ms. Vaughn stated HOA will maintain these areas.

Mr. Reyes wanted clarification if the landscaping will be consistent throughout the site.
Ms. Vaughn stated yes it would be consistent throughout the site.

Mr. Reyes asked if the end lots would have some sort of decorative masonry material.

Ms. Vaughn stated that all the walls and fencing, within public view of the right-of-way would
be decorative

PUBLIC TESTIMONY

Ms. Rola Nicasio, representing Richland American Homes, stated they are happy to be building
for the first time within the city of Ontario.

Mr. Willoughby stated he likes that the project are single stories and asked if there was a time

-3-
ltem A-01 -3 of 8



frame to start the project.
Ms. Nicasio stated they are projecting starting the beginning of November.

As there was no one else wishing to speak, Chairman Delman closed the public testimony

Mr. Gage stated he likes the lot size and the parking it allows for.

Mr. Reyes stated he likes the design of the architecture and the elements of the pocket park that
allow for various age groups and activities and sees it as an asset to the project.

PLANNING COMMISSION ACTION

It was moved by Willoughby, seconded by Gage, to approve a resolution for the
Development Plan, File No., PDEV18-013, subject to conditions of approval.
Roll call vote: AYES, DeDiemar, Delman, Downs, Gage, Gregorek, Reyes, and
Willoughby; NOES, none; RECUSE, none; ABSENT, none. The motion was
carried 7 to 0.

A-03. ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT AND DEVELOPMENT PLAN REVIEW
FOR FILE NO. PDEV18-020: A Development Plan (File No. PDEV18-020) to
construct 48 single-family homes (6-Pack Cluster), 126 multi-family homes (Rowtowns)
and 91 multi-family homes (Townhomes) on 23.66 acres of land located at the northeast
corner of Archibald Avenue and Ontario Ranch Road, within the Low Medium Density
Residential (LMDR) district of Planning Area 7 of The Avenue Specific Plan. The
environmental impacts of this project were previously analyzed in an addendum to The
Avenue Specific Plan Environmental Impact Report (SCH# 2005071109), certified by
the City Council on June 17, 2014. This project introduces no new significant
environmental impacts. The proposed project is located within the Airport Influence Area
of Ontario International Airport, and was evaluated and found to be consistent with the
policies and criteria of the Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan
(ALUCP). The project site is also located within the Airport Influence area of Chino
Airport and is consistent with policies and criteria set forth within the 2011 California
Airport Land Use Planning Handbook published by the California Department of
Transportation, Division of Aeronautics. (APN: 0218-201-18) submitted by Brookfield
Homes Southern California.

Mr. Noh, Senior Planner, presented the staff report. He described the location and surrounding
area. He described the proposed various products, elevations, styles and parking provided. He
described the landscaping and amenities offered in the park area. He described the existing SCE
substation and the mitigating measures proposed. He stated that staff is recommending the
Planning Commission recommend approval of File No. PDEV18-020, pursuant to the facts and
reasons contained in the staff report and attached resolution, and subject to the conditions of
approval.

Mr. Reyes wanted clarification regarding the screening portion to the SCE substation, if there
will be a block wall surrounding it and the height of it.

Mr. Noh stated an 8 foot block wall will be surrounding the perimeter of the SCE substation.

-4-
ltem A-01 -4 of 8



Mr. Reyes wanted clarification regarding the landscape conditions of approval letter written to
the applicant regarding the types of trees to surround the area.

Mr. Noh stated that staff is working with the applicant to find the appropriate trees and that there
are also some maximum height restraints for the trees from SCE. He also stated that the applicant
would like to plant the trees as soon as possible so when the models open, it will show
prospective buyers the buffer around the substation.

Mr. Willoughby wanted to know if the park was ever thought to go around this area as a buffer to
help mitigate the substation.

Mr. Noh stated no they had always planned on a maximum landscape buffer.
Mr. Willoughby wanted clarification regarding trash can placement.

Mr. Noh stated the trash cans would be kept in the garages and described the areas set aside for
the trash cans to be placed on trash days.

Mr. Reyes wanted clarification on lighting in the alleys and street walkways.
Mr. Noh stated that decorative streetlights will be placed along the streets and some of the
walkways, and within the paseo areas lighted bollard, and within the lanes and garage access,

photo cells are required.

PUBLIC TESTIMONY

Mr. Mark Deschenes representing Brookfield Residential, appeared and stated he was excited
about the project and the enhancements they have made.

Mr. Reyes wanted applicant to expand on the amenities offered within the park and at the pool
site.

Mr. Deschenes described the plunge area that is for residents only and will have pool and an area
with a TV and barbecue area, with restrooms. He then described the forest park area that was
designed to bring neighbors together, which will have tables and nice shade trees and a tot lot
which will have organic elements and will blend in with the area, but there will also be areas to
relax and read. He stated they are excited to build that portion of the project because it is so
unique.

As there was no one else wishing to speak, Chairman Delman closed the public testimony

Mr. Reyes stated he pulled the item to display the project to the public and show how well the
project was done, with the park area and added architectural elements.

PLANNING COMMISSION ACTION

It was moved by Reyes, seconded by Downs, to approve a resolution for the
Development Plan, File No., PDEV18-020, subject to conditions of approval.

-5-
ltem A-01-50f 8



Roll call vote: AYES, DeDiemar, Delman, Downs, Gage, Gregorek, Reyes, and
Willoughby; NOES, none; RECUSE, none; ABSENT, none. The motion was
carried 7 to 0.

A-04. ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT AND DEVELOPMENT PLAN REVIEW
FOR FILE NO. PDEV18-018: A Development Plan (File No. PDEV18-018) to
construct 47 single-family dwellings on 8.9 acres of land located near the southwest
corner of Celebration Avenue and Eucalyptus Avenue, within PA 21 of the Subarea 29
Specific Plan. The environmental impacts of this project were previously reviewed in
conjunction with an Addendum to the Subarea 29 Specific Plan Environmental Impact
Report (File No. PSPA14-002, SCH #2004011009), certified by the City Council on
April 21, 2015. This project introduces no new significant environmental impacts. The
proposed project is located within the Airport Influence Area of Ontario International
Airport, and was evaluated and found to be consistent with the policies and criteria of the
Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (ALUCP). The project site is
also located within the Airport Influence area of Chino Airport and is consistent with
policies and criteria set forth within the 2011 California Airport Land Use Planning
Handbook published by the California Department of Transportation, Division of
Aeronautics. (APN: 0218-014-02) submitted by Pulte Homes.

Ms. Aguilo, Assistant Planner, presented the staff report. She described the location and the
surrounding areas. She described the proposed lot size, elevations, architectural styles, pocket
park, and parking. She stated that staff is recommending the Planning Commission recommend
approval of File No. PDEV18-018, pursuant to the facts and reasons contained in the staff report
and attached resolution, and subject to the conditions of approval.

Mr. Reyes wanted clarification whether any one-story homes were proposed.
Ms. Aguilo stated they are all proposed as two-story homes.

PUBLIC TESTIMONY

Mr. Matt Matson, representing Pulte Homes, appeared and stated he was available to answer any
questions.

Mr. Reyes wanted to know if they had thought about any one-story style homes.
Mr. Brent Bowman, stated the project was always envisioned as two-story product.

Mr. Willoughby stated that this was their first project in Ontario and wanted to welcome the
applicant.

As there was no one else wishing to speak, Chairman Delman closed the public testimony

Mr. Reyes stated this has a great park design and good style of architecture.

PLANNING COMMISSION ACTION

It was moved by Willoughby, seconded by Gage, to approve a resolution for the

-6-
ltem A-01 -6 of 8



Development Plan, File No., PDEV18-018, subject to conditions of approval.
Roll call vote: AYES, DeDiemar, Delman, Downs, Gage, Gregorek, Reyes, and
Willoughby; NOES, none; RECUSE, none; ABSENT, none. The motion was
carried 7 to 0.

B. ENVIRONMENTAL  ASSESSMENT __ AND DEVELOPMENT CODE
AMENDMENT REVIEW FOR FILE NO. PDCA18-004: A Development Code
Amendment to increase the allowable building/structure height from 55 feet to 80 feet
within the IH (Heavy Industrial) zoning district. The environmental impacts of this
project were reviewed in conjunction with an Addendum to The Ontario Plan
Environmental Impact Report (File No. PGPA06-001, SCH# 2008101140), certified by
the City of Ontario City Council on January 27, 2010. This project introduces no new
significant environmental impacts. The proposed project is located within the Airport
Influence Area of Ontario International Airport, and was evaluated and found to be
consistent with the policies and criteria of the Ontario International Airport Land Use
Compatibility Plan (ALUCP). City Initiated. City Council action is required.

Ms. Wahlstrom stated they are recommending this item be continued to the October 23, 2018
Planning Commission meeting.

PUBLIC TESTIMONY

Chairman Delman opened the public hearing

No one responded.

PLANNING COMMISSION ACTION

It was moved by Willoughby, seconded by Gregorek, to continue the
Development Code Amendment, File No., PDCA18-004, to the October 23, 2018
Planning Commission meeting. The motion was carried 7 to 0.

MATTERS FROM THE PLANNING COMMISSION

Old Business Reports From Subcommittees

Historic Preservation (Standing): This subcommittee met on September 13, 2018.
e One Parcel (Grove and 7' Street) wanted to be pulled from registry was denied
e Presentation regarding Historical trees and policy to replace them.

Development Code Review (Ad-hoc): This subcommittee did not meet.
Zoning General Plan Consistency (Ad-hoc): This subcommittee did not meet.
New Business

NOMINATIONS FOR SPECIAL RECOGNITION

None at this time.

ltem A-01 -7 of 8



DIRECTOR’S REPORT

Ms. Wahlstrom stated the Monthly Activity Report is included in their packet.

ADJOURNMENT

Gregorek motioned to adjourn, seconded by Gage. The meeting was adjourned at 7:24 PM.

Secretary Pro Tempore

Chairman, Planning Commission

ltem A-01 -8 of 8



PLANNING COMMISSION
STAFF REPORT

October 23, 2018

SUBJECT: A Sign Plan (File No. PSGN18-112) to construct a Specific Plan Identification
Freeway Sign for the Meredith International Centre Specific Plan, generally located at the
southerly terminus of QVC Way, within the Urban Commercial land use district of the
Meredith International Centre Specific Plan; (APNs: portion 0110-321-72 and portion
0110-321-79) submitted by Craig Development Corporation.

PROPERTY OWNERS: Ontario Capital Partners, LLC, and Kienle & Kienle Investments,
LP

RECOMMENDED ACTION: That the Planning Commission consider and approve File
No. PSGN18-112 pursuant to the facts and reasons contained in the staff report and
attached resolution.

PROJECT SETTING: The project site is comprised of an approximate 0.13 acre
easement area situated across two parcels of land located at the southerly terminus of
QVC Way, adjacent to Interstate 10, within the Urban Commercial land use district of the
Meredith International Centre Specific Plan. The property is depicted in Figure 1: Project
Location, below-right.

PROJECT ANALYSIS: Earlier this
month, the City Council approved File No.
PSPA18-004, an amendment to the
Meredith International Centre Specific
Plan (MICSP), establishing criteria for the
design and placement of a freeway-
oriented specific plan identification sign
located on the north side of Interstate 10,
at the southerly terminus of QVC Way. In s
accordance with MICSP provisions, the 7
design of the freeway-oriented sign must
be reviewed and approved by the
Planning Commission.

‘Specific Plan Identification
_: Freeway Sign Locati_en =

E'i

LI T

The Specific Plan provides that the sign
may be up to 105 feet in height, with static
sign panels identifying businesses within
MICSP, not to exceed 251 square feet per

Figure 1: Project Location

Case Planner Charles Mercier Hearing Body Date Decision Action
Planning Director / DAB

Approval: h EC 10/23/2018 Final
Submittal Date{ 10/3/2018 |, cc

Item A-02 - 1 of 13



Planning Commission Staff Report
File No.: PSGN18-112
October 23, 2018

sign face. Furthermore, the sign is permitted two maximum 48-foot wide LED electronic
message display, not to exceed 1,344 square feet per sign face, and must contain the
“Meredith International Centre” name.

The proposed sign is 105 feet in height and is triangular in shape, with two sign faces
angled toward Interstate 10, providing visibility to both east-bound and west-bound
freeway traffic. Design features include a steel supporting structure clad with a decorative
aluminum box cover with a Texcote finish. The MICSP and the City of Ontario will be
identified at the top of the sign, along with a large letter “M,” which is used to cap the
supporting structure.

The specific plan identification sign provides space for advertising up to two businesses
within MICSP on each side of the sign. The placement of the business signs is restricted
to a 6.5-foot by 38.6-foot area (250.9 square feet) located at the bottom of the advertising
face. An LED electronic message display is proposed immediately above the business
signs, which incorporates a 27.62-foot high by 47.67-foot wide active display area (1,317
square feet). In place of an LED display panel on the third (northerly-facing) side of the
sign, a static panel will be provided, which will contain a large artwork to be reviewed and
approved by staff at a later date.

The proposed sign is consistent with the sign standards of the MICSP. Since there is no
one dominant architectural theme for the MICSP, a modern design has been proposed,
which is complimentary to the upscale office, retail and industrial environment planned
for the Specific Plan.

AIRPORT LAND USE COMPATIBILITY PLAN (ALUCP) COMPLIANCE: The project
site is located within the Airport Influence Area of the Ontario International Airport, and
has been found to be consistent with the policies and criteria set forth within the Ontario
International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan.

ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW: The project is categorically exempt from the requirements
of the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) pursuant to Section 15311 (Class 11,
Accessory Structures) of the CEQA Guidelines, which consists of construction, or
placement of minor structures accessory to (appurtenant to) existing commercial,
industrial, or institutional facilities, including but not limited to: [1] on-premise signs; [2]
small parking lots; [3] placement of seasonal or temporary use items such as lifeguard
towers, mobile food units, portable restrooms, or similar items in generally the same
locations from time to time in publicly owned parks, stadiums, or other facilities designed
for public use.

CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL.: See attached department reports.

Page 2 of 7

Item A-02 - 2 of 13



EXHIBIT A—Site Plan

Planning Commission Staff Report
File No.: PSGN18-112
October 23, 2018

PROP. PYLON
SIGN EASEMENT

=
&
3
[n
=
~
~
N
4
&
£

PROPERTY LINE

‘\_ EXIST. SIGN
EASEMENT

ltem A-02 - 3 of 13

FUTURE
PYLON SIGN

Page 3 of 7




Planning Commission Staff Report
File No.: PSGN18-112
October 23, 2018

EXHIBIT B-1—Specific Plan Identification Freeway Sign Plan

SIGN SPECS

Y.\ BACKGROUND TYPE (31 SIF NON-ILLUMINATED
INSTALL ANGLED BACK T0 FOLLOW
ANGLE OF POLE COVERS
PAINT COLOR _ METALLIC SILVER
TEXTURE

SMOOTH SEMI.GLOSS FINISH

TYPE (3] S/F ILLUMINATED CABINETS
LIGHTING WHITE LED
FACE FULL BLEED WHITE FLEX FACE

PRINTED BLUE, BOTH SIDES
RETURNS +12"16" OEEP, WEDGE SHAPED
PAINTED BLACK

() UPPER POLE  MATERIAL ALUMINUM QVER STEEL FRAME
COVERS SRZE 16" X6'0°

PAINT COLOR  SEE COLOR CHART

TEXTURE TEXCOTE FINISH

TYPE (3) S{F ILLUMINATED CABINETS
LIGHTING WHITE LED |
FACE WHITE FLEX FACE DIGITALLY
PRINTEQ, BOTH SIOES
RETAINERS 4", PAINTED BLACK
RETURNS 24" DEEP. PAINTED BLACK

[ CITY PANELS MATERIAL |{3) SIF NONILL ALUMINUM
PAINT COLOR | METALLIC SLVER

TEXTURE | SMOOTH SEMI-GLOSS FINISH
LETTERS ALUM PAN CHANNEL
FACES (CLEAR ACRYLIC W/ DUAL VINYL

RETURNS 5" OEEP PRE-COAT BLACK
UGHTING WHITE LED IN LETTERS

PIXEL SPACING _16rm (2 SINGLE FACE}
MATRIX SIZE 5121880
LEDCOLOR  FULLCOLOR

CABINET SIZE 2838 X 48'23°
ACTIVEAREA  27'88" X 478"
DPTIONAL:

PIXEL SPACING  20mm (3 SINGLE FACE)
MATRIX SIZE 408 3704

LEDCOLOR  FULLCOLOR

STATIC IMAGE
(ALUMINUM PANEL)

o CABINET SIZE  28-25° X 48'2.3"
=] = ACTIVE AREA  277.5" K 47'8°
.
o N AN [€] renant paneL TYPE (61 SIF ILLUMINATED CABINETS
= TENANT . ™ G| UGHTING  WHITE LED
e e TEXTURE SMOOTH SEM|.GLOSS FINISH
FACES WHITE FLEX FACE DIGITALLY
PRINTED, BOTH SIDES
AETAINERS 4", PAINTED SILVER
g RETURNS. 12" DEEP, PAINTED SILVER
" == BANDS MATERIAL ALUMINUM
i PAINT COLOR  METALLIC SILVER
2 5 o 5 TEXTURE SMOOTH SEMI-GLOSS FINISH
= = LOWER POLE MATERIAL  ALUMINUM DVER STEEL FRAME

COVERS SIZE 60" X 80

PAINT COLOR  SEE COLOR CHART

TEXTURE TEXCOTE FINISH

SUPPORT PIPE DIAMETER 13} PIPE STRUCTURE

"EXACT PIPE SIZE SEE ENGINEERING®

BOTTOM COVER PERFORATED ALUMINUM
|UNDER LED MATERIAL BACK FAR ENOUGH TO ACT AS

SHELTER OVER TENANT CABINETS
SEE COLOR CHART

LOWER POLE COVER SECTIONS
Plan View

PAINT COLOR

PAINT COLOR KEY |
* | P1| PAINT | MATTHEWS BRUSHED ALUMINUM (Metalic Siver| |

[P PAINT | SHEAWIN WILLIAMS Black

H PAINT |BLUE (TBO)

' .FII.OHT‘VIEV;

Page 4 of 7

Item A-02 - 4 of 13



Planning Commission Staff Report
File No.: PSGN18-112
October 23, 2018

EXHIBIT B-2—Specific Plan Identification Freeway Sign Plan

ﬂ ACKGROUND TYPE (31 SIF NON ILLUMINATED
INSTALL ANGLED BACK TO FOLLOW
ANGLE OF POLE COVERS
PAINT COLOR | METALLIC SILVER
TEXTURE SMOOTH SEMI.GLOSS FINISH
E'M” TYPE |13) SJF ILLUMINATED CABINETS
LIGHTING |WHITE LED
ACE |FULL BLEED WHITE FLEX FACE
PRINTED BLUE, BOTH SI0ES
RETURNS =12716" OEEP, WEDGE SHAPED

PAINTED BLACK
UPPER POLE  MATERIAL | ALUMINUM DVER STEEL FRAME
COVERS SIZE 5 -0

46 X6
PAINT COLOR  SEE COLOR CHART
TEXTURE TEXCOTE FINISH

LO.CABINET  TYPE 13] SIF ILLUMINATED CABINETS
LIGHTING WHITE LED
FACE WHITE FLEX FACE DIGITALLY

PRINTED, BOTH SIDES
RETAINERS |4°, PAINTED BLACK

RETURNS 24" DEEP, PAINTED BLACK

PARTIAL 3-D VIEW CITY PANELS MATERIAL _|(3) SIF NON-ILL ALUMINUM
PAINT | METALLIC SILVER
:uumi SEMIGLOSS FINISH
e LUM PAN CHANNEL
| 524"+ Qveral | ) CLEAR ACRYLIC W/ DUAL VINYL
il RETURNS 5" DEEP PRE-COAT BLACK
| 480 | LIGHTING WHITE LED IN LETTERS
[ 394" [ EMC PIXEL SPACING | 16mm (2 SINGLE FACE]
MATRIX SIZE  |512 1880
- LEDCOLOR | FULL COLOR
| 340 | CABINET SIZE  28"3.8° X 4823
ACTIVEAREA |2788' X478
o OPTIONAL:
g Tz PIKEL SPACING  20mm (3 SINGLE FACE)
- Sl MATRIX SIZE 408 1 704
o . LEDCOLOR  FULLEOLOR
. STATIC IMAGE e CABINET SIZE  28'25' X 48'2.3°

ACTIVE AREA | 27757 K 47'8"

TENANT PANEL TYPE {6} SIF ILLUMINATED CABINETS
UGHTING HITE LED
TEXTURE SMOOTH SEMI-GLOSS FINISH
FACES WHITE FLEX FACE DIGITALLY
PRINTED, BOTH SIDES
RETAINERS 47, PAINTED SILVER
RETURNS 12" DEEP, PAINTED SILVER

BANDS MATERIAL | ALUMINUM
PAINT COLOR | METALLIC SILVER

8.0

o]

LOWER POLE COVER
SECTIONS Plan View

TEXTURE |SMOOTH SEMI-GLOSS FINISH
LOWER POLE  MATERIAL  ALUMINUM OVER STEEL FRAME
COVERS ‘SIZE 60" X80

PAINT COLOR | SEE COLOR CHART

TEXTURE TEXCOTE FINISH
SUPPORT PIPE DIAMETER 13) PIPE STRUCTURE

'EXACT PIPE SIZE SEE ENGINEERING
BOTTOM COVER PERFORATED ALUMINUM

UNDER LED MATERIAL BACK FAR ENOUGH TO ACT AS :
| SHELTER OVER TENANT CABINETS |
PAINT COLOR | SEE COLOR CHART |

PAINT COLOR KEY

MATTHEWS BRUSHED ALUMINUM (Metalic Siver|

=

PAINT | SHERWIN WILLAMS Black

LEN PAINT BIUE(TBD|
m PAINT _ SHERWIN WILLIAMS GRAY (T.8.0,)

PLAN VIEW A1 st A 01 v 10 e G
LY NOT MATCH AGTUAL COLORS (% FIMSHED DRSPLAY PLEAS! BEFER 11
e it b et S 08
b

Page 5 of 7

ltem A-02 - 5 of 13



Planning Commission Staff Report
File No.: PSGN18-112
October 23, 2018

EXHIBIT C-1—Specific Plan Identification Freeway lllustrative Plan

MEREDITH INT'L CTR
v r \

e v os ONTARIO T

=2

(04 LN i
LT =3
‘

5
RN
b
i = ’
T
E

B

Page 6 of 7

ltem A-02 - 6 of 13



Planning Commission Staff Report
File No.: PSGN18-112
October 23, 2018

EXHIBIT C-2—Specific Plan Identification Freeway lllustrative Plan

"iiil“ﬂ" l e

tmes (A6, | % by 1
ol M,ﬁ 'r" di
ik

Page 7 of 7

Item A-02 - 7 of 13



RESOLUTION NO.

A RESOLUTION OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF
ONTARIO, CALIFORNIA, APPROVING FILE NO. PSGN18-112, A SIGN
PLAN TO CONSTRUCT A SPECIFIC PLAN IDENTIFICATION FREEWAY
SIGN FOR THE MEREDITH INTERNATIONAL CENTRE SPECIFIC PLAN,
GENERALLY LOCATED AT THE SOUTHERLY TERMINUS OF QVC
WAY, WITHIN THE URBAN COMMERCIAL LAND USE DISTRICT OF THE
MEREDITH INTERNATIONAL CENTRE SPECIFIC PLAN, AND MAKING
FINDINGS IN SUPPORT THEREOF—APN: PORTION 0110-321-72 AND
PORTION 0110-321-79.

WHEREAS, Craig Development Corporation ("Applicant”) has filed an Application
for the approval of a Sign Plan, File No. PSGN18-112, as described in the title of this
Resolution (hereinafter referred to as "Application” or "Project"); and

WHEREAS, the Application applies to a 0.13-acre area easement area situated
across two parcels of land located at the southerly terminus of QVC Way, adjacent to
Interstate 10, within the within the Urban Commercial land use district of the Meredith
International Centre Specific Plan, and is presently unimproved; and

WHEREAS, the property to the north of the Project site is within the Industrial land
use district of the Meredith International Centre Specific Plan, and is developed with
general industrial land uses. The property to the east is within the Urban Commercial land
use district of the Meredith International Centre Specific Plan, and is vacant. The property
to the south is developed with the Interstate 10 freeway. The property to the west is within
the Urban Commercial land use district of the Meredith International Centre Specific Plan,
and is under construction with an automobile sales lot; and

WHEREAS, on October 2, 2018, the City Council approved File No. PSPA18-004,
an amendment to the Meredith International Centre Specific Plan (MICSP), establishing
criteria for the design and placement of a freeway-oriented specific plan identification sign
located on the north side of Interstate 10, at the southerly terminus of QVC Way. In
accordance with MICSP provisions, the design of the freeway-oriented sign must be
reviewed and approved by the Planning Commission; and

WHEREAS, the MICSP provides that the proposed freeway sign may be up to 105
feet in height, with static sign panels identifying businesses within the Specific Plan, not
to exceed 251 square feet per sign face. Furthermore, the sign is permitted two maximum
48-foot wide LED electronic message display, not to exceed 1,344 square feet per sign
face, and must contain the “Meredith International Centre” name; and

WHEREAS, the proposed sign is 105 feet in height and is triangular in shape, with
two sign faces angled toward Interstate 10, providing visibility to both east-bound and

ltem A-02 - 8 of 13



Planning Commission Resolution
File No. PSGN18-112

October 23, 2018

Page 2

west-bound freeway traffic. Design features include a steel supporting structure clad with
a decorative aluminum box cover with a Texcote finish. The MICSP and the City of Ontario
will be identified at the top of the sign, along with a large letter “M,” which is used to cap
the supporting structure; and

WHEREAS, the proposed specific plan identification freeway sign provides space
for advertising up to two businesses within MICSP, on each side of the sign. The
placement of the business signs is restricted to a 6.5-foot by 38.6-foot area (250.9 square
feet) located at the bottom of the advertising face. An LED electronic message display is
proposed immediately above the business signs, which incorporates a 27.62-foot high by
47.67-foot wide active display area (1,317 square feet). In place of an LED display panel
on the third (northerly-facing) side of the sign, a static panel will be provided, which will
contain a large artwork to be reviewed and approved by staff at a later date; and

WHEREAS, the proposed specific plan identification freeway sign is consistent
with the sign standards of the MICSP. Since there is no one dominant architectural theme
for the MICSP, a modern design has been proposed, which is complimentary to the
upscale office, retail and industrial environment planned for the Specific Plan; and

WHEREAS, the Application is a project pursuant to the California Environmental
Quality Act (Public Resources Code Section 21000 et seq.) ("CEQA"); and

WHEREAS, the Project is exempt from CEQA pursuant to a categorical exemption
(listed in CEQA Guidelines Article 19, commencing with Section 15300) and the
application of that categorical exemption is not barred by one of the exceptions set forth
in CEQA Guidelines Section 15300.2; and

WHEREAS, the Meredith International Centre Specific Plan grants the Planning
Commission the responsibility and authority to review and act on the subject Application;
and

WHEREAS, the Project is located within the Airport Influence Area of Ontario
International Airport, which encompasses lands within parts of San Bernardino, Riverside,
and Los Angeles Counties, and is subject to, and must be consistent with, the policies
and criteria set forth in the Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan
(“ALUCP”), which applies only to jurisdictions within San Bernardino County, and
addresses the noise, safety, airspace protection, and overflight impacts of current and
future airport activity; and

WHEREAS, on October 23, 2018, the Planning Commission of the City of Ontario

conducted a hearing to consider the Project, and concluded said hearing on that date;
and

ltem A-02 - 9 of 13



Planning Commission Resolution
File No. PSGN18-112

October 23, 2018

Page 3

WHEREAS, all legal prerequisites to the adoption of this Resolution have occurred.

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY FOUND, DETERMINED, AND RESOLVED
by the Planning Commission of the City of Ontario, as follows:

SECTION 1: Environmental Determination and Findings. As the decision-
making body for the Project, the Planning Commission has reviewed and considered the
information contained in the administrative record for the Project. Based upon the facts
and information contained in the administrative record, including all written and oral
evidence presented to the Planning Commission, the Planning Commission finds as
follows:

(1) The administrative record has been completed in compliance with CEQA,
the State CEQA Guidelines, and the City of Ontario Local CEQA Guidelines; and

(2)  The Project is categorically exempt from environmental review pursuant to
Section 15311 (Class 11, Accessory Structures) of the CEQA Guidelines, which consists
of construction, or placement of minor structures accessory to (appurtenant to) existing
commercial, industrial, or institutional facilities, including but not limited to: [1] on-premise
signs; [2] small parking lots; [3] placement of seasonal or temporary use items such as
lifeguard towers, mobile food units, portable restrooms, or similar items in generally the
same locations from time to time in publicly owned parks, stadiums, or other facilities
designed for public use; and

3) The application of the categorical exemption is not barred by one of the
exceptions set forth in CEQA Guidelines Section 15300.2; and

(4)  The determination of CEQA exemption reflects the independent judgment
of the Planning Commission.

SECTION 3: Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan
(“ALUCP”) Compliance. The California State Aeronautics Act (Public Utilities Code
Section 21670 et seq.) requires that an Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan be prepared
for all public use airports in the State; and requires that local land use plans and individual
development proposals must be consistent with the policies set forth in the adopted
Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan. On April 19, 2011, the City Council of the City of
Ontario approved and adopted the Ontario International Airport Land use Compatibility
Plan (“ALUCP"), establishing the Airport Influence Area for Ontario International Airport
(“ONT"), which encompasses lands within parts of San Bernardino, Riverside, and Los
Angeles Counties, and limits future land uses and development within the Airport
Influence Area, as they relate to noise, safety, airspace protection, and overflight impacts
of current and future airport activity. As the decision-making body for the Project, the
Planning Commission has reviewed and considered the facts and information contained

ltem A-02 - 10 of 13



Planning Commission Resolution
File No. PSGN18-112

October 23, 2018

Page 4

in the Application and supporting documentation against the ALUCP compatibility factors,
including [1] Safety Criteria (ALUCP Table 2-2) and Safety Zones (ALUCP Map 2-2), [2]
Noise Criteria (ALUCP Table 2-3) and Noise Impact Zones (ALUCP Map 2-3), [3]
Airspace protection Zones (ALUCP Map 2-4), and [4] Overflight Notification Zones
(ALUCP Map 2-5). As a result, the Planning Commission, therefore, finds and determines
that the Project, when implemented in conjunction with the conditions of approval, will be
consistent with the policies and criteria set forth within the ALUCP.

SECTION 4: Concluding Facts and Reasons. Based upon the substantial
evidence presented to the Planning Commission during the above-referenced hearing,
and upon the specific findings set forth in Section 1 through 3, above, the Planning
Commission hereby concludes that the proposed Sign Plan is in conformance with the
provisions of the Meredith International Centre Specific Plan and Division 8.1 (Sign
Regulations) of the City of Ontario Development Code, as applicable.

SECTION 5: Planning Commission Action. Based upon the findings and
conclusions set forth in Sections 1 through 4, above, the Planning Commission hereby
APPROVES the herein described Application.

SECTION 6: Indemnification. The Applicant shall agree to defend, indemnify and
hold harmless, the City of Ontario or its agents, officers, and employees from any claim,
action or proceeding against the City of Ontario or its agents, officers or employees to
attack, set aside, void, or annul this approval. The City of Ontario shall promptly notify the
applicant of any such claim, action, or proceeding, and the City of Ontario shall cooperate
fully in the defense.

SECTION 7: Custodian of Records. The documents and materials that
constitute the record of proceedings on which these findings have been based are located
at the City of Ontario City Hall, 303 East “B” Street, Ontario, California 91764. The
custodian for these records is the City Clerk of the City of Ontario.

SECTION 8: Certification to Adoption. The Secretary shall certify to the
adoption of the Resolution.

Item A-02 - 11 of 13



Planning Commission Resolution
File No. PSGN18-112

October 23, 2018

Page 5

The Secretary Pro Tempore for the Planning Commission of the City of Ontario
shall certify as to the adoption of this Resolution.

| hereby certify that the foregoing Resolution was duly and regularly introduced,
passed and adopted by the Planning Commission of the City of Ontario at a regular
meeting thereof held on the 23rd day of October 2018, and the foregoing is a full, true
and correct copy of said Resolution, and has not been amended or repealed.

Richard D. Delman
Planning Commission Chairman

ATTEST:

Cathy Wahlstrom
Planning Director
Secretary of Planning Commission

Item A-02 - 12 of 13



Planning Commission Resolution
File No. PSGN18-112
October 23, 2018

Page 6

STATE OF CALIFORNIA )
COUNTY OF SAN BERNARDINO)
CITY OF ONTARIO )

I, Gwen Berendsen, Secretary Pro Tempore of the Planning Commission of the City of
Ontario, DO HEREBY CERTIFY that foregoing Resolution No. PC18-[insert #] was duly
passed and adopted by the Planning Commission of the City of Ontario at their regular
meeting held on October 23, 2018, by the following roll call vote, to wit:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSENT:

ABSTAIN:

Gwen Berendsen
Secretary Pro Tempore

ltem A-02 - 13 of 13



Historic Ontario

HISTORIC PRESERVATION COMMISSION )
STAFF REPORT “~——"—=

The "Model Colony"

DATE: October 23, 2018

FILE NO.: PHP18-027

SUBJECT: Request for a Mills Act Contract

LOCATION: 122 East El Morado Court (APN: 1048-242-02)
PROPERTY

OWNER: Tara Marie Jessup

. RECOMMENDATION:

That the Historic Preservation Commission adopt the attached resolution recommending that the
City Council approve File No. PHP18-027. The Historic Preservation Subcommittee reviewed this
application on October 11, 2018 and is recommending approval.

. BACKGROUND:

Effective March 7, 1973, Chapter 1442 of the Statutes of 1972 (also known as the Mills Act) added
sections 50280 through 50289 to the Government Code to allow an owner of a qualified historical
property to enter into a preservation contract with a local government. The City of Ontario
established the Mills Act program in 1997 to provide an economic incentive for the preservation
of designated historic landmarks and/or contributing structures within a designated historic district.
Since inception of the City’s program, 72 Mills Act Contracts have been approved and recorded.
There is one contract proposed at this time, a single-family residence designated as a Contributor
to the El Morado Court Historic District.

In order for the historic property to be eligible for the program, it must meet the requirements
outlined in the guidelines and standards set by the State of California, Board of Equalization and
the City’s Development Code (Sec. 4.02.065). The historic property must be either a local, state,
or nationally designated property or a contributor within a locally designated historic district
whereby the property owner agrees to certain improvements to restore, rehabilitate or preserve a
qualified historic building. In exchange, the San Bernardino County Tax Assessor reassesses the
property’s value based on an alternative formula that may result in a significant reduction in the
owner’s property taxes.

Pursuant to State law, a Mills Act Contract is recorded on the property and is a perpetual 10-year
contract that automatically renews annually. The Mills Act Contract and all benefits and

Case Planner:  Elly Antuna, Assistant Planner Hearing Body Date Decision Action
/ HPSC: 10/11/2018  Approve Recommend
Planning Director Approval: % PC/HPC: 10/23/2018 Recommend
Submittal Date: \ CC: 11/20/2018

ltemB-10f 12



Historic Preservation Commission Staff Report
File No. PHP18-027

October 23, 2018

Page 2

responsibilities remain with the land, even after a change of ownership. If a contract is cancelled
as a result of non-compliance with the conditions of the contract, a cancellation fee of 12.5 percent
of the market value (as of the time of cancellation) is assessed.

[ll. PROJECT ANALYSIS:

Staff provides estimates of potential tax savings for the property owner, but ultimately, only the
San Bernardino County Assessor can determine the actual Mills Act adjusted value. The Mills Act
assessment involves many variables that are typically determined by market forces such as
interest rates, capitalization rates, and fair market rental rates. The average property tax savings
for the proposed Mills Act Contracts range between 30 and 55 percent in the initial year, with a
tax savings decrease each passing year. According to the City budget, Ontario receives 16.8
percent of the property taxes collected. Using that percentage, staff has also calculated the
estimated reduction in property tax revenue, the “City cost,” and has included that in the analysis.

Upon City Council approval, the City Clerk informs the San Bernardino County Assessor that the
property has entered into a Mills Act Contract. The Assessor valuates the historic property with
the Mills Act assessment the following tax year, which may differ from the Planning Department
estimates.

A. FILE NO.: PHP18-027

PROPERTY OWNER: Tara Marie
Jessup

LOCATION: 122 East El Morado Court

HISTORIC NAME: Glenn D. Smith
House

DESIGNATION DATE: July 16, 2002
(ElI Morado Court Historic District)

[1] Work Program — The applicant, Tara Marie Jessup, is proposing both exterior and interior
work as part of the contract that qualifies under the guidelines and standards set by the State of
California. Interior work includes installation of attic insulation, an energy audit, electrical repairs,
and refinishing hardwood floors and built-ins. Exterior work includes driveway restoration, roof
repairs, repairs to cracks in stucco, exterior paint and window repairs. The front yard has been
inappropriately altered without permits or approvals. A condition of approval has been added
stating that grass/natural turf is planted between the pieces of concrete and in the mow strip of
the driveway between the two concrete wheel strips. This improvement shall be completed in year
one of the contract as part of the driveway restoration. The total improvements are valued at an
estimated $55,800.

ltemB -2 of 12



Historic Preservation Commission Staff Report
File No. PHP18-027

October 23, 2018

Page 3

[2] Property Owner Savings — The following Mills Act savings to the property owner are
based on estimates calculated by the Planning Department.

Current Annual Taxes Paid: $4,384
Mills Act Annual Taxes Estimated: $2,855
Potential Total Annual Tax Savings: $1,529
Estimated Savings over 10 years: $15,288
Estimated Savings Percentage: 34.9%

[3] City Cost — According to the City budget, Ontario receives approximately 16.8 percent of
the property taxes collected. The following shows the cost to the City for this contract and is based
on estimates calculated by the Planning Department.

Current Annual City Tax Revenue: $736
Mills Act Annual City Tax Revenue Estimated: $480
Estimated Total Annual Cost to the City: $257
Estimated Cost to the City over 10 years: $2,568

This contract provides for $21.73 in improvements for every $1 in estimated property tax cost to
the City.

IV. CUMULATIVE IMPACTS:

The City currently has 72 approved Mills Act Contracts and one proposed contract. The
cumulative impacts are based on the initial projected assessment of each contract for the
proposed year.

Existing Proposed
Number of contracts: 72 73
Average Estlmat(.ad Annual Tax Saving to $1,745 $1,742
Property Owners:
Estimated Annual Cost to the City: $21,108 $21,365
Estimated Cost to the City over 10 Years: $211,081 $213,650
Estimated Total Value of M|II§ Act $2.776,730 $2.832,530
Improvements over 10 Years:
Estimated Loss of Revenue to Improvement $1/13.15 $1/13.26

Ratio:

ltem B -3 of 12



Historic Preservation Commission Staff Report
File No. PHP18-027

October 23, 2018

Page 4

V. COMPLIANCE WITH THE ONTARIO PLAN:

The Mills Act Contract Program is consistent with the principles, goals and policies contained
within the Vision, Governance, Policy Plan (General Plan), and City Council Priorities components
of The Ontario Plan (TOP). More specifically, the goals and policies of TOP that are furthered by
the proposed project are as follows:

[1] City Council Goals.

Invest in the Growth and Evolution of the City’s Economy

Operate in a Businesslike Manner

Focus Resources in Ontario’s Commercial and Residential Neighborhoods

Encourage, Provide or Support Enhanced Recreational, Educational, Cultural and Healthy
City Programs, Policies and Activities

[2] Policy Plan (General Plan)

Community Design Element — Historic Preservation

= Goal CD4: Historic buildings, streets, landscapes and neighborhoods, as well as the story
of Ontario’s people, businesses, and social and community organizations, that have been
preserved and serve as a focal point for civic pride and identity.

» CD4-2 Collaboration with Property Owners and Developers. We educate and
collaborate with property owners and developers to implement strategies and best
practices that preserve the character of our historic buildings, streetscapes and unique
neighborhoods.

> CD4-4 Incentives. We use the Mills Act and other federal, state, regional and local
programs to assist property owners with the preservation of select properties and
structures.

» CD4-6 Promotion of Public Involvement in Preservation. We engage in programs to
publicize and promote the City’s and the public’s involvement in preservation efforts.

Community Design Element — Protection of Investment

= Goal CD5: A sustained level of maintenance and improvement of properties, buildings and
infrastructure that protects the property values and encourages additional public and
private investments.

» CD5-1 Maintenance of Buildings and Property. We require all public and privately
owned buildings and property (including trails and easements) to be properly and
consistently maintained.

» CD5-3 Improvements to Property & Infrastructure. We provide programs to improve
property and infrastructure.

ltem B -4 of 12



Historic Preservation Commission Staff Report
File No. PHP18-027

October 23, 2018

Page 5

» CD5-4 Neighborhood Involvement. We encourage active community involvement to
implement programs aimed at the beautification and improvement of neighborhoods.

ltemB -5 0f 12



RESOLUTION NO. PC18-

A RESOLUTION OF THE HISTORIC PRESERVATION COMMISSION OF
THE CITY OF ONTARIO, CALIFORNIA, APPROVING FILE NO. PHP18-
027, RECOMMENDING THAT THE CITY COUNCIL APPROVE THE
MILLS ACT CONTRACT FOR THE GLENN D. SMITH HOUSE, LOCATED
AT 122 EAST EL MORADO COURT (APN 1048-242-02).

WHEREAS, TARA MARIE JESSUP ("Applicant”) has filed an Application for the
approval of a Mills Act Contract, File No. PHP18-027, as described in the title of this
Resolution (hereinafter referred to as "Application” or "Project”); and

WHEREAS, the City’s character and history are reflected in its cultural, historical,
and architectural heritage with an emphasis on the “Model Colony” as declared by an act
of the Congress of the United States and presented at the St. Louis World’s Fair in 1904;
and

WHEREAS, the City’s historical foundations should be preserved as living parts of
community life and development in order to foster an understanding of the City’s past so
that future generations may have a genuine opportunity to appreciate, enjoy, and
understand Ontario’s rich heritage; and

WHEREAS, the Community Development of the Ontario General Plan sets forth
Goals and Policies to conserve Ontario’s historic buildings and districts; and

WHEREAS, the Glenn D. Smith House, a single-family residence located at 122
East EI Morado Court (APN: 1048-242-02) is worthy of preservation and was designated
as a Contributor to the El Morado Court Historic District on July 16, 2002; and

WHEREAS, the Application is a project pursuant to the California Environmental
Quiality Act (Public Resources Code Section 21000 et seq.) ("CEQA"); and

WHEREAS, the Project is exempt from CEQA pursuant to a categorical exemption
(listed in CEQA Guidelines Article 19, commencing with Section 15300) and the
application of that categorical exemption is not barred by one of the exceptions set forth
in CEQA Guidelines Section 15300.2; and

WHEREAS, Ontario Development Code Table 2.02-1 (Review Matrix) grants the
Historic Preservation Commission the responsibility and authority to review and make
recommendation to the City Council on the subject Application; and

WHEREAS, City of Ontario Development Code Division 2.03 (Public Hearings)
prescribes the manner in which public notification shall be provided and hearing
procedures to be followed, and all such notifications and procedures have been
completed; and

ltem B -6 of 12



Historic Preservation Commission Resolution
File No. PHP18-027

October 23, 2018

Page 2

WHEREAS, on October 11, 2018, the Historic Preservation Subcommittee of the
City of Ontario conducted a hearing to consider the Project, and concluded said hearing
on that date, voting to issue Decision No. HPSC18-021, recommending the Historic
Preservation Commission recommend to the City Council approval of the Application; and

WHEREAS, on October 23, 2018, the Historic Preservation Commission of the
City of Ontario conducted a hearing to consider the Project, and concluded said hearing
on that date; and

WHEREAS, the Historic Preservation Commission has reviewed this application
and determined it to be to the mutual benefit to the City and property owner to enter into
a Historic Property Preservation Agreement.

WHEREAS, all legal prerequisites to the adoption of this Resolution have occurred.

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY FOUND, DETERMINED, AND RESOLVED,
the Historic Preservation Commission of City of Ontario, as follows:

SECTION 1. Environmental Determination and Findings. As the
recommending body for the Project, the Historic Preservation Commission has reviewed
and considered the information contained in the administrative record for the Project.
Based upon the facts and information contained in the administrative record, including all
written and oral evidence presented to the Historic Preservation Commission, the Historic
Preservation Commission finds as follows:

(1)  The Mills Act Contract is not considered a project pursuant to Section 21065
of the CEQA Guidelines. The Mills Act Contract will not result in a direct physical change
in the environment, or a reasonably foreseeable indirect physical change in the
environment.

(2) The determination of CEQA exemption reflects the independent judgement
of the Planning Commission.

SECTION 2. Concluding Facts and Reasons. Based upon the substantial
evidence presented to the Historic Preservation Commission during the above-
referenced hearing and upon the specific findings set forth in Section 1 above, the Historic
Preservation Commission hereby concludes as follows:

(1) California Government Code Section 50280, et seq., authorizes cities to
enter into contracts with the owners of a qualified historical property to provide for the

ltemB -7 of 12



Historic Preservation Commission Resolution
File No. PHP18-027

October 23, 2018

Page 3

use, maintenance and restoration of such historical property so as to retain its
characteristics as a property of historical significance; and

(2) The Glenn D. Smith House, located at 122 East El Morado Court, was
designated as a Contributor to the El Morado Court Historic District on July 16, 2002; and

(3) The Applicant has set forth a work program for this specific property to
ensure the preservation of this historic resource that qualifies under the guidelines and
standards set by the State of California.

SECTION 3. Historic Preservation Commission Action. Based upon the
findings and conclusions set forth in Sections 1 and 2 above, the Historic Preservation
Commission hereby RECOMMENDS THE CITY COUNCIL APPROVE THE REQUEST
FOR A MILLS ACT CONTRACT subject to each and every condition attached hereto as
“Attachment A,” and incorporated herein by this reference.

SECTION 4. Indemnification. The Applicant shall agree to defend, indemnify and
hold harmless, the City of Ontario or its agents, officers, and employees from any claim,
action or proceeding against the City of Ontario or its agents, officers or employees to
attack, set aside, void or annul this approval. The City of Ontario shall promptly notify the
applicant of any such claim, action or proceeding, and the City of Ontario shall cooperate
fully in the defense.

SECTION 5. Custodian of Records. The documents and materials that
constitute the record of proceedings on which these findings have been based are located
at the City of Ontario City Hall, 303 E. B Street, Ontario, California 91764. The custodian
for these records is the City Clerk of the City of Ontario.

SECTION 6. Certification to Adoption. The Secretary shall certify to the
adoption of the Resolution.

ltem B -8 of 12



Historic Preservation Commission Resolution
File No. PHP18-027

October 23, 2018

Page 4

The Secretary Pro Tempore for the Planning Commission of the City of Ontario
shall certify as to the adoption of this Resolution.

| hereby certify that the foregoing Resolution was duly and regularly introduced,
passed and adopted by the Historic Preservation Commission of the City of Ontario at a
regular meeting thereof held on the 23" day of October 2018, and the foregoing is a full,
true and correct copy of said Resolution, and has not been amended or repealed.

Richard D. Delman
Planning Commission Chairman

ATTEST:

Cathy Wahlstrom
Planning Director
Secretary of Planning Commission

ltem B -9 of 12



Historic Preservation Commission Resolution
File No. PHP18-027
October 23, 2018

Page 5

STATE OF CALIFORNIA )
COUNTY OF SAN BERNARDINO )
CITY OF ONTARIO )

I, Gwen Berendsen, Secretary Pro Tempore of the Planning Commission of the City of
Ontario, DO HEREBY CERTIFY that foregoing Resolution No. PC18- was duly passed
and adopted by the Planning Commission of the City of Ontario at their regular meeting
held on October 23, 2018 by the following roll call vote, to wit:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:

ABSTAIN:

Gwen Berendsen
Secretary Pro Tempore

ltem B - 10 of 12



Historic Preservation Commission Resolution
File No. PHP18-027

October 23, 2018

Page 6

ATTACHMENT A:

File No. PHP18-027
Conditions of Approval

(Conditions of approval to follow this page)

ltemB - 11 of 12



MILLS ACT CONTRACT

[, Ay
(0] O ©-o CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL

The "Model Colony"

Date: October 23, 2018
File No.: PHP18-027
Location: 122 East El Morado Court

(APN: 1048-242-02)

Prepared By: Elly Antuna, Assistant Planner

Description: A Mills Act Contract for a 1,618 square foot Prairie style residential
building, a Contributor within the El Morado Court Historic District,
located at 122 East El Morado Court within the LDR5 (Low Density
Residential-2.1 to 5.0 DU/Acre) Zoning District.

CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL

The above-described Project shall comply with the following Conditions of Approval:

1. Landscaping and Driveway.

1.1.To ensure maximum compatibility and avoid adverse impacts to the historic
resource, issuance of a Certificate of Appropriateness by the Historic Preservation
Commission or an administrative issued Waiver is required prior to
commencement of any alterations, restoration, rehabilitation, preservation, and/or
landscaping.

1.2. The segments of concrete located within the front yard landscape have been
installed without review and approval. Because the segmented concrete pieces
are not an integrated design a Waiver approving the alteration cannot be
issued. However, a Waiver can be issued for the segmented concrete if: 1)
Grass/natural turf is planted between the pieces of concrete and in the mow strip
of the driveway between the two concrete wheel strips, and 2) the overall
hardscape does not exceed 45% of the total front yard. The front yard landscape
shall be brought into compliance prior to December 2019 as listed in Year One of
the Mills Act Contract.

ltemB - 12 of 12



CITY OF ONTARIO

MEMORANDUM
TO: Historic Preservation Chairman and Members of the Planning Commission
FROM: Cathy Wahlstrom, Planning Director
DATE: October 23, 2018

SUBJECT: Mills Act Application File No. PHP18-031

The Applicant (Clifford C. Graber I1) for the above-referenced project has withdrawn the project
application for a Mills Act Contract for 315 East Fourth Street.

ltem C - 1 of 1



CITY OF ONTARIO
MEMORANDUM

TO: Planning Commission
FROM: Luis E. Batres, Senior Planner
DATE: October 23, 2018

SUBJECT: AGENDA ITEM D:

ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT, DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT, TENTATIVE
PARCEL MAP & DEVELOPMENT PLAN REVIEW FOR FILE NOS. PDA18-002,
PMTT18-006 & PDEV18-014: A Development Agreement (File No. PDA18-002) between the
City of Ontario and Colony Commerce Ontario East LP, a Delaware limited partnership, to
establish the terms and conditions for the development of a Tentative Parcel Map No. 19904 (File
No. PMTT18-006) which proposes to subdivide approximately 85 acres of land into nine (9)
parcels and two (2) letter lots, and a Development Plan (File No. PDEV18-014) to construct nine
(9) industrial buildings, totaling 1,685,420 square feet, for property located along the southwest
corner of Merrill Avenue and Archibald Avenue within the Business Park and Industrial land use
designations of the Colony Commerce Center East Specific Plan. The environmental impacts of
this project were previously analyzed in conjunction with the Colony Commerce Center East
Specific Plan (File No. PSP16-003) Environmental Impact Report (SCH# 2017031048) certified
by City Council on May 1, 2018. This project introduces no new significant environmental
impacts, and all previously-adopted mitigation measures shall be a condition of project approval.
The proposed project is located within the Airport Influence Area of Ontario International Airport
and Chino Airport, and was evaluated and found to be consistent with both policies and criteria of
the Ontario International Airport and Chino Airport Land Use Compatibility Plans (ALUCP);
(APNs: 0218-311-02, 0218-311-03, 0218-311-08, 0218-311-10); submitted by CapRock
Partners. Development Agreement requires City Council action.

Staff is recommending that this item be continued to the November 27, 2018, Planning
Commission meeting, to allow departmental staff additional time to resolve project related
infrastructure issues.

ltem D - 1 of 1



PLANNING COMMISSION
STAFF REPORT

October 23, 2018

SUBJECT: A City-initiated General Plan (Policy Plan) Amendment (PGPA18-005) and
Zone Change (PZC18-002) for 2.4 acres of land to [1] modify The Ontario Plan (TOP)
Exhibit LU-01- Land Use Plan to establish a land use designation of Industrial (0.55 FAR);
[2] modify the Future Buildout Table (Exhibit LU-03) to be consistent with the land use
designation changes; and [3] establish a zoning designation of IG (General Industrial) to
bring the property zoning into consistency with the Policy Plan. The project site is located
within North Loop Circle, generally west of Etiwanda Avenue and south of the Interstate
10 Freeway, and currently does not have a land use designation, zoning designation, or
APN assigned to the parcel. City-initiated. City Council action is required.

PROPERTY OWNER: City of Ontario

RECOMMENDED ACTION: That the Planning Commission recommends City Council
approval of: [1] an Addendum to The Ontario Plan (File No. PGPA06-001) Environmental
Impact Report (SCH# 2008101140) adopted by City Council on January 27, 2010; [2] a
General Plan Amendment (File No. PGPA18-005); and, [3] a Zone Change (File No.
PZC18-002), pursuant to the facts and reasons contained in the staff report and attached
resolutions.

PROJECT SETTING: The project site,
depicted in Figure 1: Project Location, is
comprised of 2.4 acres of land located
within North Loop Circle, generally west
of Etiwanda Avenue and south of the

I.I‘ “' i‘ -‘

Interstate 10 Freeway. The site is ~ -

—% 110 Freeway-r

currently unimproved and has no
assigned land use designation, zoning
designation, or APN. The region
surrounding the Project site is
characterized primarily by industrial land
uses and vacant land. The 1-10 Freeway
is directly north of the Project site. The
property to the west of the project site is
developed with industrial buildings, and is
zoned IG (General Industrial). The
Southern Pacific Rail Line is directly

Figure 1: Project Location

Case Planner: Alexis Vaughn Hearing Body Date Decision Action
Planning Director / DAB
Approval: /I PC 10/23/2018 Approve | Recommend
Submittal Date:| N/A City Initiat&d CcC 11/20/2018 Final

Item E - 1 of 68



Planning Commission Staff Report
File No.: PGPA18-005, PZC18-002
October 23, 2018

south of the Project site. The property to the east of the project site is currently vacant,
and is located within the City of Fontana.

PROJECT ANALYSIS:

[1] Background — In 2010, The Ontario Plan (“TOP”) was adopted, which set forth
the land use pattern for the City to achieve its Vision. Subsequently, zoning districts with
appropriate land uses were adopted to implement the Vision and create consistency
between TOP land use designations and zoning.

The project site is a remnant Caltrans right-of-way property, which was relinquished to
the City of Ontario. The City currently has the property in escrow to be sold to a developer
for the future development of a 43,200 square-foot industrial building. The 2.4-acre
property does not have an assessor parcel number (APN) and therefore the future owner
of the property will be required to submit a Certificate of Compliance to create a legal
parcel.

Currently the project site is identified as right-of-way, with no General Plan land use or
zoning designation. Therefore, a General Plan Amendment and Zone Change are
required to establish a land use designation of Industrial (0.55 FAR) and a zoning
designation of IG (General Industrial) to facilitate the future development of the subject
property and provide land use and zoning consistency with the surrounding parcels.

[2] General Plan Amendment (File No. PGPA18-005) — The project site is identified
as right-of-way, with no Policy Plan (General Plan) land use designation (Exhibit LU-01-
Land Use Plan of TOP’s Policy Plan component). The property is completely surrounded
by Loop Drive, an access road that provides ingress and egress from Etiwanda Avenue
to the developed properties west of the project site, along Loop Drive. As the properties
to the west are within the Industrial (0.55 FAR) land use designation, the project site will
be designated Industrial (0.55 FAR) to provide consistency with the surrounding
properties. The Proposed General Plan Amendment is included as Exhibit A, attached to
this report. Furthermore, the General Plan Amendment will modify the Future Buildout
Table (Exhibit LU-03 of TOP’s Policy Plan component) to be consistent with the proposed
Land Use Plan changes. The revised Future Buildout Table is included as Exhibit C,
attached to this report.

[3] Zone Change (File No. PZC18-002) — Consistent with the above-described
General Plan Amendment, a Zone Change is being processed concurrently which will
provide a zoning designation for the project site, as none currently exists. By establishing
the project site within the 1G (General Industrial) zone, the project site will be consistent
with both the General Plan Amendment and the properties directly to the west and will
allow for the development of an industrial building on the site. The proposed Zone Change
is summarized in Exhibit B, attached to this report.

Page 2 of 10

ltem E - 2 of 68



Planning Commission Staff Report
File No.: PGPA18-005, PZC18-002
October 23, 2018

A Development Plan (File No. PDEV18-030) has been submitted for the 2.4-acre site and
is currently under review for the construction of a 43,200 square-foot industrial building.
The project will be analyzed in anticipation of the associated General Plan Amendment
and Zone Change, and will follow all regulations and guidelines as set forth by TOP and
the Ontario Development Code accordingly. The project’s conceptual site plan and
elevations are depicted in Exhibit D, attached to this report.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE ONTARIO PLAN: The proposed project is consistent with the
principles, goals and policies contained within the Vision, Governance, Policy Plan
(General Plan), and City Council Priorities components of The Ontario Plan (TOP). More
specifically, the goals and policies of TOP that are furthered by the proposed project are
as follows:

[1] City Council Goals.

= |nvest in the Growth and Evolution of the City’s Economy
= Operate in a Businesslike Manner

[2] Governance.
Decision Making:

= Goal G1: Sustained decision-making that consistently moves Ontario towards
its Vision by using The Ontario Plan as a framework for assessing choices.

» G1-2 lLong-term Benefit. We require decisions to demonstrate and
document how they add value to the community and support the Ontario Vision.

[3] Policy Plan (General Plan)

Land Use Element:
= Goal LU2: Compatibility between a wide range of uses.

» LU2-1: Land Use Decisions: We minimize adverse impacts on adjacent
properties when considering land use and zoning requests.

Compliance: The proposed General Plan Amendment closely coordinates
with land use designations in the surrounding area which will not increase adverse
impacts on adjacent properties.

= Goal LU3: Staff, regulations, and processes that support and allow flexible
response to conditions and circumstances in order to achieve the Vision.

Page 3 of 10

Iltem E - 3 of 68



Planning Commission Staff Report
File No.: PGPA18-005, PZC18-002
October 23, 2018

Compliance: The proposed land use designation and zone change applications
will provide consistency between the project site and the surrounding area, while
maintaining a logical land use pattern in and around the affected area. Further, the
applications will allow for the development of the site to occur.

HOUSING ELEMENT COMPLIANCE: The project is consistent with the Housing
Element of the Policy Plan (General Plan) component of The Ontario Plan, as the project
site is not one of the properties in the Available Land Inventory contained in Table A-3
(Available Land by Planning Area) of the Housing Element Technical Report Appendix.

AIRPORT LAND USE COMPATIBILITY PLAN (ALUCP) COMPLIANCE: The project
site is located within the Airport Influence Area of the Ontario International Airport, and
has been found to be consistent with the policies and criteria set forth within the Ontario
International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan. Further, the project site is not located
within any safety or noise impact zones for either the Ontario or Chino airports, is not a
high terrain zone, and has a maximum allowable building height of 200 feet.

ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW: The application is a project pursuant to the California
Environmental Quality Act (Public Resources Code Section 21000 et seq.) ("CEQA") and
an initial study has been prepared to determine possible environmental impacts. The
environmental impacts of this project were reviewed in conjunction with an Addendum to
The Ontario Plan (PGPA06-001) Environmental Impact Report (SCH# 2008101140)
adopted by the City Council on January 27, 2010. The Addendum was prepared pursuant
to CEQA, the State CEQA Guidelines, and The City’s “Guidelines for the Implementation
of the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA)” which provides for the use of a single
environmental assessment in situations where the impacts of subsequent projects are
adequately analyzed. This Application introduces no new significant environmental
impacts not previously analyzed in the Environmental Impact Report. All previously-
adopted mitigation measures are a condition of project approval and are incorporated
herein by reference. The environmental documentation for this project is available for
review at the Planning Department public counter.

Page 4 of 10

ltem E - 4 of 68



Planning Commission Staff Report
File No.: PGPA18-005, PZC18-002

October 23, 2018

EXHIBIT A: Proposed General Plan Amendment

Rural Residential -
Low Density Residential -
Low-Medium Density -
Residential
Medium Density
Residential

- High Density Residential

- Mixed Use

Neighborhood Commercial
General Commercial
Office Commercial
Hospitality

Business Park

Industrial

Airport

7, rai

Land Fill

Parkland

. Open Space - Water

Open Space — Non- \\V\ IND Overla
NN o ovetes

Recreation

Public Facility

- Public School

Space - N COM Overlay

BP Overlay

Existing Policy Plan Land Use

Assessor Parcel Number(s)
Involved

Proposed Policy Plan Land
Use

e

ETIWANDA

No Designation

The property does not currently
have a parcel number (APN).

(1 of 1 properties)

Surrounded by North Loop
Circle, west of Etiwanda Avenue
and south of the I-10 Freeway

@

LOOP

—

'ETIWANDA

Industrial (0.55 FAR)

Page 5 of 10

Iltem E - 5 of 68



Planning Commission Staff Report
File No.: PGPA18-005, PZC18-002
October 23, 2018

EXHIBIT B: Proposed Zone Change

AR-2, Residential-Agricultural PUD, Planned  Unit BP, Business Park - OS-R, Open Space -
Development Recreation
> MU, Mixed Use N -~ i "
\\\\\ RE-2, Rural Estate - 1 — Downtown, 2-East Holt, \\\\\ IP, Industrial Park \\\\\ 83 C’t Open  Space
~ 11-Francis&Euclid ~ ~ emetery
RE-4, Residential Estate CS, Corner Store IL, Light Industrial UC, Utilities Corridor
R \ idential iaht Industrial it id
.
LDR-5, Low Density CN, Neighborhood - IG, General SP. Specific Plan
Residential Commercial Industrial - =P
MDR-11, Low-Medium CC, Community - - SP(AG), Specific Plan with
Density Residential - Commercial IH, Heavy Industrial Agricultural Overlay
MDR-18, Medium Density CCS, Convention Center ONT, Ontario Intl ES, Emergency Shelter
Residential Support Airport Overlay
‘ MDR-25, Medium-High OL. Low Intensity Office CIV. Civic 7 MTC, Multimodal Transit
h Density Residential ' Y ' % Center Overlay
HDR-45,  High  Density - OH, High Intensity Office RC. Rail Corridor ﬁ/// ICC, Interim Community
Residential ' ' Al ;{4 Commercial Overlay

N MHP, Mobile Home Park

Existing Zoning

Assessor Parcel Number(s)

Involved Proposed Zoning

q e
—ONTARIOMILL a—
4

The parcel currently does not i
have a zoning designation or an | —=rmmes el

APN
Q

oy

(1 of 1 properties)

AIRPORT B

[ETIWANDA

TR
Located within North Loop Circle,
Undesignated west of Etiwanda Avenue and IG (General Industrial)
south of the I-10 Freeway

Page 6 of 10

Iltem E - 6 of 68



Planning Commission Staff Report
File No.: PGPA18-005, PZC18-002

October 23, 2018

EXHIBIT C: Future Buildout Table (Exhibit LU-03) Revision

- 1 THE AFRPr\-‘IWAO-:KIIO II-UIUl‘L
LU-03 Future Buildout - '
Non-Residential
Land Use Acres? | Assumed Density/Intensity? Units Population* Square Feet Jobs?
Residential
Rural 520 | 2.0 dufac 1,059 4,232
Low Density® 7,255 | 4.0 du/ac {OMC) 30,584 122,244
4.5 du/ac (NMC)
Low-Medium® 999 | 8.5 du/ac 8,492 33,041
Density
Medium Density 1,897 | 18.0 du/ac (OMC) 38,200 133,791
22.0 dufac (NMC)
High Density 183 | 35.0 dujac 6,415 21,470
Subtotal 10,864 84,750 315,679
Mixed Use -
» Downtown 113 | » 60% of the area at 35 du/ac 2,365 4,729 1,569,554 2,808
+  40% of the area at 0.80 FAR for
office and retail
+ East Holt 57 | = 25% of the area at 30 du/ac 428 256 1,740,483 3,913
Boulevard +« 50% of the area at 1.0 FAR
office
«  25% of area at 0.80 FAR ratail
¢ Meredith 93 [« 23% of the area at 327.4 du/ac 800 1,600 1,172,788 1,462
« 72% at 0.35 FAR for office and
retail uses
= 5% at 0.75 FAR for Lodging
« Transit Center 76 | » 10% of the area at 60 du/ac 457 913 2,983,424 5,337
« 00% of the area 2t 1.0 EAR
office and retail
+ Inland Empire 37 | = 50% of the area at 20 du/ac 368 736 352,662 768
Corridor * 30% of area at 0.50 FAR office
* 20% of area t 0.35 FAR retail
+ Guast 77 | » 20% of the area at 30 du/ac 465 Q29 2,192,636 4,103
+  30% of area at 1.0 FAR retail
» 50% of area at .70 FAR office
« Ontario 345 [« 30% of area at 40 du/ac 4,139 8,278 9,014,306 22,563
Center + 50% of area at 1.0 FAR office
« 20% of area at 0.5. FAR retail
+ Ontario Mills 240 | = 5% of area at 40 du/ac 479 953 5,477,126 7,285
e 20% of area at 0.75 FAR office
»  75% of area at 0.5 FAR retail
s NMC 315 |+ 30% of area at 35 du/ac 3,311 6,601 6,729,689 17,188
West/South « 70% of area at 0.7 EAR office
and retail
« NMC East 264 | « 30% of area at 25 du/ac 1,978 3,956 2,584,524 4,439
« 30% of area at 0.35 EAR for
office
» 40% of area at 0.3 FAR for retail
uses
» Euclid/Francis 10 | » 50% of the area at 30 du/ac 156 312 181,210 419
= 50% of area at 0.8 FAR retail
* SR-60/ 41 | » 18% of the area at 25 du/ac 185 369 924,234 2,098
Hamnar +« 57% of the area at 0.25 FAR
Tuscana retail
Village « 25% of the area at 1.5 FAR
office
Subtotal 1,668 15,129 30,257 34,922,836 72,383
Page 7 of 10

ltem E - 7 of 68



Planning Commission Staff Report
File No.: PGPA18-005, PZC18-002
October 23, 2018

THE = ONTARIO PL

LU 03 Futu re Buildoul1 A FRAVMEWORK FOR THE FUTURE
Non-Residential
Land Use Acres? | Assumed Density/Intensity3 Units Population* Square Feet Jobs?

Retail/Service

Meighborhood® 281 | 0.30 FAR 3,671,585 8,884

Commercial

General 533 | 0.30 FAR 6,954,199 6,470

Commercial

Office/ 514 | 0.75 FA 16,805,775 37,269

Commercial

Hospitality 141 [ 1.00 FAR 6,157,642 7,060

Subtotal 1,470 33,599,200 59,682

Employment

Business Park 1,507 | 0.40 FAR 25,261,610 46,075

Industrial z 0.55 EAR

Subtotal FEFF 178816499 | 186113

7,879 178,923,112 | 180,207

Other

Open Space- 1,232 | Not applicable

Non-Recreation

Open Space- 950 | Mot applicable

Parkland®

Open Space- 50 | Mot applicable

Water

Public Facility 97 | Mot applicabls

Public School 532 | Not applicable

LASOntaric 1,677 | Mot applicable

International

Airport

Landfill 137 | Mot applicable

Railroad 251 | Mot applicable

Roadways 4,871 | Mot applicable

Subtotal 9,906

Total 317684 99,878 345,936 247405508 | 31222
31,786 247,445 148 | 312,272

Notes

1 Historically, citywide buildout levels do not achieve the maximum allowable density/intensity on every parcel and are, on average,
lowear than allowad by the Policy Plan. Accordingly, the buildout projections in this Policy Plan do not assume buildout at the
maximum density or intensity and instead are adjusted downward. To view the buildout assumptions, access the Methodology
report.

2 Acres are given as adjusted gross acreages, which do not include the right-of-way for roadways, flood control facilities, or railroads.

3 Assumed Density/Intensity includes both residential density, expressed as units per acre, and non-residential intensity, expressed
as floor area ratio (FAR), which is the amount of building squara feet in relation to the size of the lot.

4 Projections of population by residential designation are basad on a persons-per-household factor that varies by housing type. For
more information, access the Methodology report.

5 To view the factors used to generate the number of employees by land use category, access the Methodology report.

6 Acreages and corresponding buildout estimates for these designations do not reflect underlying land uses within the Business Park,
Industrial and Commercial Overlays. Estimates for these areas are included within the corresponding Business Park, Industrial and
General Commercial categories.

Page 8 of 10

Iltem E - 8 of 68



Iltem E - 9 of 68

Y |
Y i
1 v
Ef_______ 01
|
|
! ]
o 4

S —

EXHIBIT D: Conceptual Site Plan and Elevations

Planning Commission Staff Report
File No.: PGPA18-005, PZC18-002

October 23, 2018

7 ,\\ e . R
g \\\ z.f..:,... { O,

P

aemar

T 41132 SF.
Page 9 of 10

BUILDING AR

=

NS

7 -
T e
\\\\\\\\\\wwﬂ.\&hﬁbﬁu




Planning Commission Staff Report
File No.: PGPA18-005, PZC18-002
October 23, 2018

EXHIBIT D: Conceptual Site Plan and Elevations Continued

— oblique — r oblique -

| S

West Elevation - N. Loop Drive

East Elevation - N. Loop Drive

Page 10 of 10

Iltem E - 10 of 68



RESOLUTION NO.

A RESOLUTION OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF
ONTARIO RECOMMENDING CITY COUNCIL APPROVAL OF AN
ADDENDUM TO THE ONTARIO PLAN (TOP) CERTIFIED
ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT REPORT (SCH# 2008101140), FOR WHICH
AN INITIAL STUDY WAS PREPARED, ALL IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE
CALIFORNIA ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY ACT, AS AMENDED, FOR
FILE NOS. PGPA18-005 AND PZC18-002

WHEREAS, prior to the adoption of this Resolution, the Planning Director of the
City of Ontario prepared an Initial Study, and approved for attachment to the certified
Environmental Impact Report, an addendum to The Ontario Plan (TOP) certified
Environmental Impact Report (SCH# 2008101140) for File Nos. PGPA18-005 and
PZC18-002 (hereinafter referred to as “Initial Study/Environmental Impact Report
Addendum?”), all in accordance with the requirements of the California Environmental
Quiality Act of 1970, together with State and local guidelines implementing said Act, all as
amended to date (collectively referred to as “CEQA”); and

WHEREAS, File Nos. PGPA18-005 and PZC18-002, analyzed under the Initial
Study/Environmental Impact Report Addendum, consist of an Amendment to the Policy
Plan (General Plan) component of The Ontario Plan to: [1] modify The Ontario Plan (TOP)
Exhibit LU-01- Land Use Plan to establish a land use designation of Industrial (0.55 FAR);
[2] modify the Future Buildout Table (Exhibit LU-03) to be consistent with the land use
designation changes; and [3] establish a zoning designation of IG (General Industrial) to
bring the property zoning into consistency with the Policy Plan. The 2.4-acre project site
is located within North Loop Circle, generally west of Etiwanda Avenue and south of the
Interstate 10 Freeway, in the City of Ontario, California (hereinafter referred to as the
"Project"), and currently does not have a land use designation, zoning designation, or
APN assigned to the parcel; and

WHEREAS, the Initial Study/Environmental Impact Report Addendum concluded
that implementation of the Project could result in a number of significant effects on the
environment and identified mitigation measures that would reduce each of those
significant effects to a less-than-significant level; and

WHEREAS, The Ontario Plan Environmental Impact Report was certified on
January 27, 2010, in which development and use of the Project site was discussed; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to California Environmental Quality Act ("CEQA") Guidelines
Section 15164(a), a lead agency shall prepare an addendum to a previously certified EIR
if some changes or additions are necessary to a project, but the preparation of a
subsequent or supplemental EIR is not required; and

Iltem E - 11 of 68



Planning Commission Resolution
File No. PGPA18-005, PZC18-002
October 23, 2018

Page 2

WHEREAS, the City determined that none of the conditions requiring preparation
of a subsequent or supplemental EIR would occur from the Project, and that preparation
of an addendum to the EIR was appropriate; and

WHEREAS, the City of Ontario is the lead agency on the Project, and the Planning
Commission is the recommending body for the proposed Project; and

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission has reviewed and considered the Initial
Study/Environmental Impact Report Addendum for the Project, has concluded that none
of the conditions requiring preparation of a subsequent or supplemental EIR have
occurred, and intends to take actions on the Project in compliance with CEQA and state
and local guidelines implementing CEQA; and

WHEREAS, the Initial Study/Environmental Impact Report Addendum for the
Project are on file in the Planning Department, located at 303 East B Street, Ontario, CA
91764, are available for inspection by any interested person at that location and are, by
this reference, incorporated into this Resolution as if fully set forth herein; and

WHEREAS, all legal prerequisites to the adoption of this Resolution have occurred.

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY FOUND, DETERMINED, AND RESOLVED
by the Planning Commission of the City of Ontario, as follows:

SECTION 1: Environmental Determination and Findings. As the
recommending body for the Project, the Planning Commission has reviewed and
considered the information contained in the administrative record for the Project. Based
upon the facts and information contained in the administrative record, including all written
and oral evidence presented to the Planning Commission, the Planning Commission finds
as follows:

(1) The environmental impacts of this project were previously reviewed in
conjunction with an Addendum to The Ontario Plan Environmental Impact Report —
SCH# 2008101140, certified by the Ontario City Council on January 27, 2010, in
conjunction with File No. PGPAO06-001 (hereinafter referred to as “Certified EIR”).

(2) The Addendum and administrative record have been completed in
compliance with CEQA, the State CEQA Guidelines, and the City of Ontario Local CEQA
Guidelines; and

(3) The City's "Guidelines for the Implementation of the California
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA)" provide for the use of a single environmental
assessment in situations where the impacts of subsequent projects are adequately
analyzed. This Application introduces no new significant environmental impacts.

ltem E - 12 of 68



Planning Commission Resolution
File No. PGPA18-005, PZC18-002
October 23, 2018

Page 3

(4)  All previously adopted mitigation measures shall be a condition of project
approval, as they are applicable to the Project, and are incorporated herein by this
reference.

(5) The Addendum contains a complete and accurate reporting of the
environmental impacts associated with the Project, and reflects the independent
judgment of the Planning Commission; and

(6)  There is no substantial evidence in the administrative record supporting a
fair argument that the project may result in significant environmental impacts; and

SECTION 2: Additional Environmental Review Not Required. Based on the
Addendum, all related information presented to the Planning Commission, and the
specific findings set forth in Section 1, above, the Planning Commission finds that the
preparation of a subsequent or supplemental Environmental Impact Report is not required
for the Project, as the Project:

(1) Does not constitute substantial changes to the Certified EIR that will require
major revisions to the Certified EIR due to the involvement of new significant
environmental effects or a substantial increase in the severity of previously identified
significant effects; and

(2) Does not constitute substantial changes with respect to the circumstances
under which the Certified EIR was prepared that will require major revisions to the
Certified EIR due to the involvement of new significant environmental effects or a
substantial increase in the severity of the previously identified significant effects; and.

3) Does not contain new information of substantial importance that was not
known and could not have been known with the exercise of reasonable diligence at the
time the Certified EIR was certified/adopted, that shows any of the following:

(@  The project will have one or more significant effects not discussed in
the Certified EIR; or

(b) Significant effects previously examined will be substantially more
severe than shown in the Certified EIR; or

(c) Mitigation measures or alternatives previously found not to be

feasible would in fact be feasible and would substantially reduce one or more significant
effects of the Project, but the City declined to adopt such measures; or

Iltem E - 13 of 68



Planning Commission Resolution
File No. PGPA18-005, PZC18-002
October 23, 2018

Page 4

(d) Mitigation measures or alternatives considerably different from those
analyzed in the Certified EIR would substantially reduce one or more significant effects
on the environment, but which the City declined to adopt.

SECTION 3: Planning Commission Action. Based upon the findings and
conclusions set forth in Sections 1 and 2, above, the Planning Commission hereby finds
that based upon the entire record of proceedings before it, and all information received,
there is no substantial evidence that the Project will constitute substantial changes to the
Certified EIR, and RECOMMENDS THE CITY COUNCIL APPROVES the Addendum to
the Certified EIR, attached hereto as “Attachment A,” and incorporated herein by this
reference.

SECTION 4: Indemnification. The Applicant shall agree to defend, indemnify and
hold harmless, the City of Ontario or its agents, officers, and employees from any claim,
action or proceeding against the City of Ontario or its agents, officers or employees to
attack, set aside, void, or annul this approval. The City of Ontario shall promptly notify the
applicant of any such claim, action, or proceeding, and the City of Ontario shall cooperate
fully in the defense.

SECTION 5: Custodian of Records. The documents and materials that
constitute the record of proceedings on which these findings have been based are located
at the City of Ontario City Hall, 303 East “B” Street, Ontario, California 91764. The
custodian for these records is the City Clerk of the City of Ontario.

SECTION 6: Certification to Adoption. The Secretary shall certify to the
adoption of the Resolution.

Iltem E - 14 of 68



Planning Commission Resolution
File No. PGPA18-005, PZC18-002
October 23, 2018

Page 5

The Secretary Pro Tempore for the Planning Commission of the City of Ontario
shall certify as to the adoption of this Resolution.

| hereby certify that the foregoing Resolution was duly and regularly introduced,
passed and adopted by the Planning Commission of the City of Ontario at a regular
meeting thereof held on the 23rd day of October, 2018, and the foregoing is a full, true
and correct copy of said Resolution, and has not been amended or repealed.

Richard D. Delman
Planning Commission Chairman

ATTEST:

Cathy Wahlstrom
Planning Director
Secretary of Planning Commission

Iltem E - 15 of 68



Planning Commission Resolution
File No. PGPA18-005, PZC18-002
October 23, 2018

Page 6

STATE OF CALIFORNIA )
COUNTY OF SAN BERNARDINO)
CITY OF ONTARIO )

I, Gwen Berendsen, Secretary Pro Tempore of the Planning Commission of the
City of Ontario, DO HEREBY CERTIFY that foregoing Resolution No. PC18-[insert #] was
duly passed and adopted by the Planning Commission of the City of Ontario at their
regular meeting held on October 23, 2018, by the following roll call vote, to wit:
AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:

ABSTAIN:

Gwen Berendsen
Secretary Pro Tempore

Iltem E - 16 of 68



Planning Commission Resolution
File No. PGPA18-005, PZC18-002
October 23, 2018

Page 7

ATTACHMENT A:

Addendum to The Ontario Plan
Environmental Impact Report

(Addendum to follow this page)

Iltem E - 17 of 68



ATTACHMENT A:
ADDENDUM TO THE ONTARIO PLAN
ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT REPORT

City of Ontario

Planning Department

303 East B Street California Environmental Quality Act
Ontario, California 91764 Initial Study Form
Phone: 909.395.2036

Fax: 909.395.2420

Project Title/File No.: PGPA18-005 and PZC18-002

Lead Agency:

City of Ontario, 303 East “B” Street, Ontario, California 91764, (909) 395-2036

Contact Person: Alexis Vaughn, Assistant Planner, (909) 395-2416

Project Sponsor: City of Ontario, 303 East B Street, Ontario, California 91764

Project Location: The project site is located in southwestern San Bernardino County, within the City of Ontario.
The City of Ontario is located approximately 40 miles from downtown Los Angeles, 20 miles from downtown
San Bernardino, and 30 miles from Orange County. As illustrated on Figures 1 through 3, below, the project site
is generally located south of the 1-10 Freeway and west of Etiwanda Avenue.

Figure 1: REGIONAL LOCATION MAP

Phelan

‘= PRAJIECT SITE

Los Angeles County | San Bernarding Coyft
i
’r

’[’ Z:
/
I
Glendale o
Pasadena [5] 4
- @ ; =
Upland
L3 San Bernardino
Los Angeles Q
0
Pomona EFontana [_'i Redlands
Ontario_ o I Y
a4
p Jurupa Valley
Chino
e Chino Hills
Riverside
Brea i Norco Moreno Valley
Fullerton Ef
=N Corona
N,
= ) - A
Anaheim
X
Orange =2 A % iverside Coun Perris
&, %
e ” . S
el i
: . ot range County “

s, o

Menifee
hY

Iltem E - 18 of 68



File No(s).: PGPA18-005, PZC18-002, and PDEV18-030

CEQA Environmental Checklist Form

Figure 2: VICINITY MAP

o

P
=
=

—

Page 2 of 33

Iltem E - 19 of 68



CEQA Environmental Checklist Form
File No(s).: PGPA18-005, PZC18-002, and PDEV18-030

Figure 3: AERIAL PHOTOGRAPH

>
<
©
°
S
Z
whd
w

-

Page 3 of 33

Iltem E - 20 of 68



CEQA Environmental Checklist Form
File No(s).: PGPA18-005, PZC18-002, and PDEV18-030

6. General Plan Designation: Proposal to add a General Plan land use designation of Industrial (0.55 FAR) to a
parcel that is currently unrecognized.

7. Zoning: Proposal to add zoning (IG — General Industrial) to a parcel that is currently unrecognized.

8. Description of Project: A City-initiated amendment to the Policy Plan (General Plan) component of The Ontario
Plan (File No. PGPA18-002) to: [1] modify the Land Use Map (Exhibit LU-01) to establish a land use designation
of Industrial (0.55 FAR), and [2] modify the Future Buildout Table (Exhibit LU-03) to be consistent with the land
use designation changes; in conjunction with a Zone Change (File No. PZC18-002) to establish a zoning
designation of 1G (General Industrial) to bring the property zoning into consistency with the Policy Plan. The
project site consists of 2.4 acres of land located within North Loop Circle, generally west of Etiwanda Avenue
and south of the Interstate 10 Freeway, and currently does not have a land use designation, zoning designation,
or APN assigned to the parcel.

9. Project Setting: The project site is comprised of 2.4 acres of land generally located south of the I-10 Freeway and
west of Etiwanda Avenue. The region surrounding the project site is characterized primarily by industrial and
right-of-way land uses, and vacant land. The I-10 Freeway is directly north of the Project site. The property to the
west of the project site is developed with industrial buildings, and is zoned IG (General Industrial). The Southern
Pacific Rail Line is directly south of the Project site. The property to the east of the project site is currently vacant,
and is located within the City of Fontana.

10. Surrounding Land Uses:

Existing Land Use General Plan Designation ~ Zoning Designation Specific Plan Land Use

Site: Vacant None None N/A
North: I-10 Freeway N/A N/A N/A
South: SouthernLIiD:glflc Rail Rail RC (Rail Corridor) N/A
East: Vacant, City of Fontana N/A N/A N/A
West: Industrial Industrial (0.55 FAR) IG (General Industrial) N/A

11. Other public agencies whose approval is required (e.g., permits, financing approval or participation agreement):
N/A

12. Have California Native American tribes traditionally and culturally affiliated with the project area requested
consultation pursuant to Public Resources Code section 21080.3.1? Xl Yes [ No

If “yes”, has consultation begun? [JYes [No [X] Completed

ENVIRONMENTAL FACTORS POTENTIALLY AFFECTED

The environmental factors checked below would be potentially affected by this project, involving at least one impact
that is a "Potentially Significant Impact" as indicated by the checklist on the following pages.

[] Aesthetics [] Agriculture/Forestry Resources [ ] Air Quality
[] Biological Resources [] Cultural Resources ] Geology/Soils
[] Greenhouse Gas Emissions [] Hazards & Hazardous Materials [] Hydrology/Water Quality
[] Land Use/Planning [] Mineral Resources [] Noise
[] Population/Housing [] Public Services [ ] Recreation
[l Transportation/Traffic [] Utilities/Service Systems ] Mandatory Findings of
Significance
Page 4 of 33

Iltem E - 21 of 68



CEQA Environmental Checklist Form
File No(s).: PGPA18-005, PZC18-002, and PDEV18-030

DETERMINATION (To be completed by the Lead Agency)

On the basis of this initial evaluation:

L] 1 find that the proposed project COULD NOT have a significant effect on the environment, and a NEGATIVE
DECLARATION will be prepared.

L] 1 find that although the proposed project could have a significant effect on the environment, there will not be a
significant effect in this case because revisions in the project have been made by or agreed to by the project
proponent. A MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION will be prepared.

L] 1 find that the proposed project MAY have a significant effect on the environment, and an ENVIRONMENTAL
IMPACT REPORT is required.

L] Ifind that the proposed project MAY have a "potentially significant”" or "potentially significant unless mitigated"
impact on the environment, but at least one effect 1) has been adequately analyzed in an earlier document pursuant
to applicable legal standards, and 2) has been addressed by mitigation measures based on the earlier analysis as
described on attached sheets. An ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT REPORT is required, but it must analyze only
the effects that remain to be addressed.

Xl I find that although the proposed project could have a significant effect on the environment, because all potentially
significant effects (a) have been analyzed adequately in an earlier EIR or NEGATIVE DECLARATION pursuant
to applicable standards, and (b) have been avoided or mitigated pursuant to that earlier EIR or NEGATIVE
DECLARATION, including revisions or mitigation measures that are imposed upon the proposed project, nothing
further is required.

October 10, 2018

Signature Date
Alexis Vaughn, Assistant Planner City of Ontario
Printed Name and Title For

EVALUATION OF ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACTS

1. A brief explanation is required for all answers except "No Impact" answers that are adequately supported by the
information sources a lead agency cites in the parentheses following each question. A "No Impact" answer is
adequately supported if the referenced information sources show that the impact simply does not apply to projects
like the one involved (e.g. the project falls outside a fault rupture zone). A "No Impact” answer should be
explained where it is based on project-specific factors as well as general standards (e.g. the project will not expose
sensitive receptors to pollutants, based on a project-specific screening analysis).

2. All answers must take account of the whole action involved, including off-site as well as on-site, cumulative as
well as project-level, indirect as well as direct, and construction as well as operational impacts.

3. Once the lead agency has determined that a particular physical impact may occur, then the checklist answers must
indicate whether the impact is potentially significant, less than significant with mitigation, or less than significant.
"Potentially Significant Impact" is appropriate if there is substantial evidence that an effect is significant. If there
are one or more "Potentially Significant Impact" entries when the determination is made, an EIR is required.

4. "Negative Declaration: Less Than Significant With Mitigation Incorporated” applies where the incorporation of
mitigation measures has reduced an effect from "Potentially Significant Impact" to a "Less than Significant
Impact.” The lead agency must describe the mitigation measures, and briefly explain how they reduce the effect
to a less than significant level (mitigation measures from the "Earlier Analyses” Section may be cross-referenced).

5. Earlier analyses may be used where, pursuant to the tiering, program EIR, or other CEQA process, an effect has
been adequately analyzed in an earlier EIR or Negative Declaration. Section 15063(c)(3)(D). In this case, a brief
discussion should identify the following:

a. Earlier Analyses Used. Identify and state where they are available for review.

Page 5 of 33

Iltem E - 22 of 68



CEQA Environmental Checklist Form
File No(s).: PGPA18-005, PZC18-002, and PDEV18-030

b. Impacts Adequately Addressed. Identify which effects from the above checklist were within the scope of and
adequately analyzed in an earlier document pursuant to applicable legal standards, and state whether such
effects were addressed by mitigation measures based on the earlier analysis.

c. Mitigation Measures. For effects that are "Less than Significant with Mitigation Measures Incorporated,"
describe the mitigation measures which were incorporated or refined from the earlier document and the extent
to which they address site-specific conditions for the project.

6. Lead agencies are encouraged to incorporate into the checklist references to information sources for potential
impacts (e.g. general plans, zoning ordinances). Reference to a previously prepared or outside document should,
where appropriate, include a reference to the page or pages where the statement is substantiated.

7. Supporting Information Sources. A source list should be attached, and other sources used or individuals contacted

should be cited in the discussion.

8. Thisis only a suggested form, and lead agencies are free to use different formats; however, lead agencies should
normally address the questions from this checklist that are relevant to a project's environmental effects in whatever

format is selected.

9. The explanation of each issue should identify:

a. The significance criteria or threshold, if any, used to evaluate each question; and

b. The mitigation measure identified, if any, to reduce the impact to less than significance.

Issues

1. AESTHETICS. Would the project:
a. Have a substantial adverse effect on a scenic vista?

b. Substantially damage scenic resources, including,
but not limited to, trees, rock outcroppings, and historic
buildings within a state scenic highway?

c. Substantially degrade the existing visual character
or quality of the site and its surroundings?

d. Create a new source of substantial light or glare
which would adversely affect day or nighttime views in the
area?

2. AGRICULTURE AND FOREST RESOURCES. In
determining whether impacts to agricultural resources are
significant environmental effects, lead agencies may refer
to the California Agricultural Land Evaluation and Site
Assessment Model (1997) prepared by the California
Department of Conservation as an optional model to use in
assessing impacts on agriculture and farmland. In
determining whether impacts to forest resources, including
timberland, are significant environmental effects, lead
agencies may refer to information compiled by the
California Department of Forestry and Fire Protection
regarding the state’s inventory of forest land, including the
Forest and Range Assessment Project and the Forest Legacy
Assessment project; and forest carbon measurement
methodology provided in Forest protocols adopted by the
California Air Resources Board. Would the project:

Potentially
Significant
Impact

Less Than
Significant
With
Mitigation

Less Than
Significant
Impact

No
Impact

X
Y

Page 6 of 33

Iltem E - 23 of 68



CEQA Environmental Checklist Form
File No(s).: PGPA18-005, PZC18-002, and PDEV18-030

Issues

a. Convert Prime Farmland, Unique Farmland, or
Farmland of Statewide Importance (Farmland), as shown on
the maps prepared pursuant to the Farmland Mapping and
Monitoring Program of the California Resources Agency, to
non-agricultural use?

b. Conflict with existing zoning for agricultural use,
or a Williamson Act contract?

c. Conflict with existing zoning for, or cause
rezoning of, forest land (as defined in Public Resources
Code section 12220(g)), timberland (as defined by Public
Resources Code section 4526), or timberland zoned
Timberland Production (as defined by Government Code
section 51104(g))?

d. Result in the loss of forest land or conversion of
forest land to non-forest use?

e. Involve other changes in the existing environment
which, due to their location or nature, could result in
conversion of Farmland, to non-agricultural use or
conversion of forest land to non-forest use?

3. AIR QUALITY. Where available, the significance
criteria  established by the applicable air quality
management or air pollution control district may be relied
upon to make the following determinations. Would the
project:

a. Conflict with or obstruct implementation of the
applicable air quality plan?

b. Violate any air quality standard or contribute
substantially to an existing or projected air quality
violation?

c. Result in a cumulatively considerable net increase
of any criteria pollutant for which the project region is
nonattainment under an applicable federal or state ambient
air quality standard (including releasing emissions which
exceed quantitative thresholds for ozone precursors)?

d. Expose sensitive receptors to substantial pollutant
concentrations?

e. Create objectionable odors affecting a substantial
number of people?

4. BIOLOGICAL RESOURCES. Would the project:

a. Have a substantial adverse effect, either directly or
through habitat modifications, on any species identified as a
candidate, sensitive, or special status species in local or
regional plans, policies, or regulations, or by the California
Department of Fish and Game or U.S. Fish and Wildlife
Service?

Potentially
Significant
Impact

[

Less Than
Significant
With
Mitigation

[

Less Than
Significant
Impact

[

No
Impact

X

Page 7 of 33

Iltem E - 24 of 68



CEQA Environmental Checklist Form
File No(s).: PGPA18-005, PZC18-002, and PDEV18-030

Issues

b. Have a substantial adverse effect on any riparian
habitat or other sensitive natural community identified in
local or regional plans, policies, regulations, or by the
California Department of Fish and Game or U.S. Fish and
Wildlife Service?

c. Have a substantial adverse effect on federally
protected wetlands as defined by Section 404 of the Clean
Water Act (including, but not limited to, marsh, vernal pool,
coastal, etc.) through direct removal, filling, hydrological
interruption, or other means?

d. Interfere substantially with the movement of any
native resident or migratory fish or wildlife species or with
established native resident or migratory wildlife corridors,
or impede the use of native wildlife nursery sites?

e. Conflict with any local policies or ordinances
protecting biological resources, such as a tree preservation
policy or ordinance?

f.  Conflict with the provisions of an adopted Habitat
Conservation Plan, Natural Community Conservation Plan,
or other approved local, regional, or state habitat
conservation plan?

5. CULTURAL RESOURCES. Would the project:

a. Cause a substantial adverse change in the
significance of a historical resource as defined in Section
15064.5?

b. Cause a substantial adverse change in the
significance of an archaeological resource pursuant to
Section 15064.5?

c. Directly or indirectly destroy a unique
paleontological resource or site or unique geologic feature?

d. Disturb any human remains, including those
interred outside of formal cemeteries?

6. GEOLOGY AND SOILS. Would the project:

a. Expose people or structures to potential substantial
adverse effects, including the risk of loss, injury or death
involving:

i. Rupture of a known earthquake fault, as
delineated on the most recent Alquist-Priolo Earthquake
Fault Zoning Map issued by the State Geologist for the area
or based on other substantial evidence of a known fault?
Refer to Division of Mines and Geology Special Publication
42.

ii.  Strong seismic ground shaking?

iii.  Seismic-related ground failure, including
liquefaction?

Potentially
Significant
Impact

[

OO

Less Than
Significant
With
Mitigation

[

OO

Less Than
Significant
Impact

[

1 O

No
Impact

X

X X

Page 8 of 33

Iltem E - 25 of 68



CEQA Environmental Checklist Form
File No(s).: PGPA18-005, PZC18-002, and PDEV18-030

Issues

iv. Landslides?

b. Result in substantial soil erosion or the loss of
topsoil?

c. Be located on a geologic unit or soil that is
unstable, or that would become unstable as a result of the
project, and potentially result in on- or off-site landslide,
lateral spreading, subsidence, liquefaction or collapse?

d. Be located on expansive soil, as defined in Table
18 1 B of the Uniform Building Code (1994), creating
substantial risks to life or property?

e. Have soils incapable of adequately supporting the
use of septic tanks or alternative waste water disposal
systems where sewers are not available for the disposal of
waste water?

7. GREENHOUSE GAS EMISSIONS. Would the
project:

a. Generate greenhouse gas emissions, either directly
or indirectly, that may have a significant impact on the
environment?

b. Conflict with an applicable plan, policy or
regulation adopted for the purpose of reducing the emission
of greenhouse gases?

8. HAZARDS AND HAZARDOUS MATERIALS.
Would the project:

a. Create a significant hazard to the public or the
environment through the routine transport, use, or disposal
of hazardous materials?

b. Create a significant hazard to the public or the
environment through reasonably foreseeable upset and
accident conditions involving the release of hazardous
materials into the environment?

c. Emit hazardous emissions or handle hazardous or
acutely hazardous materials, substances, or waste within
one-quarter mile of an existing or proposed school?

d. Be located on a site which is included on a list of
hazardous materials sites compiled pursuant to Government
Code section 65962.5 and, as a result, would it create a
significant hazard to the public or the environment?

e. For a project located within the safety zone of the
airport land use compatibility plan for ONT or Chino
Airports, would the project result in a safety hazard for
people residing or working in the project area?

f. For a project within the vicinity of a private
airstrip, would the project result in a safety hazard for people
residing or working in the project area?

Potentially
Significant
Impact

H
H

[

Less Than
Significant
With
Mitigation
[]

[]

[

Less Than
Significant
Impact

[
[

[

No
Impact

X
X

Page 9 of 33

Iltem E - 26 of 68



CEQA Environmental Checklist Form
File No(s).: PGPA18-005, PZC18-002, and PDEV18-030

Issues

g. Impair implementation of or physically interfere
with an adopted emergency response plan or emergency
evacuation plan?

h. Expose people or structures to a significant risk of
loss, injury or death involving wildland fires, including
where wildlands are adjacent to urbanized areas or where
residences are intermixed with wildlands?

9. HYDROLOGY AND WATER QUALITY. Would
the project:

a. Violate any other water quality standards or waste
discharge requirements or potential for discharge of storm
water pollutants from areas of material storage, vehicle or
equipment fueling, vehicle or equipment maintenance
(including washing), waste handling, hazardous materials
handling or storage, delivery areas or loading docks, or other
outdoor work areas?

b. Substantially deplete groundwater supplies or
interfere substantially with groundwater recharge such that
there would be a net deficit in aquifer volume or a lowering
of the local groundwater table level (e.g., the production rate
of pre-existing nearby wells would drop to a level which
would not support existing land uses or planned uses for
which permits have been granted)?

c. Substantially alter the existing drainage pattern of
the site or area, including through the alteration of the course
of a stream or river, in a manner which would result in
substantial erosion or siltation on- or off-site or volume of
storm water runoff to cause environmental harm or potential
for significant increase in erosion of the project site or
surrounding areas?

d. Substantially alter the existing drainage pattern of
the site or area, including through the alteration of the course
of a stream or river, or substantially increase the rate or
amount of surface runoff in a manner which would result in
flooding on- or off-site or potential for significant changes
in the flow velocity or volume of storm water runoff to cause
environmental harm?

e. Create or contribute runoff water which would
exceed the capacity of existing or planned storm water
drainage systems or provide substantial additional sources
of polluted runoff during construction and/or post-
construction activity?

f. Otherwise substantially degrade water quality or
potential for discharge of storm water to affect the beneficial
uses of receiving water?

g. Place housing within a 100-year flood hazard area
as mapped on a federal Flood Hazard Boundary or Flood
Insurance Rate Map or other flood hazard delineation map?

Potentially
Significant
Impact

[

[

Less Than
Significant
With
Mitigation

[

[

Less Than
Significant
Impact

[

[

No
Impact

X

X

Page 10 of 33

Iltem E - 27 of 68



CEQA Environmental Checklist Form
File No(s).: PGPA18-005, PZC18-002, and PDEV18-030

Issues

h. Place within a 100-year flood hazard area
structures which would impede or redirect flood flows?

i. Expose people or structures to a significant risk of
loss, injury or death involving flooding, including flooding
as a result of the failure of a levee or dam?

j. Expose people or structures to inundation by
seiche, tsunami, or mudflow?

10. LAND USE AND PLANNING. Would the project:
a. Physically divide an established community?

b. Conflict with any applicable land use plan, policy,
or regulation of an agency with jurisdiction over the project
(including, but not limited to the general plan, airport land
use compatibility plan, specific plan, local coastal program,
or zoning ordinance) adopted for the purpose of avoiding or
mitigating an environmental effect?

c. Conflict with any applicable habitat conservation
plan or natural community conservation plan?

11. MINERAL RESOURCES. Would the project:

a. Resultinthe loss of availability of a known mineral
resource that would be of value to the region and the
residents of the state?

b. Result in the loss of availability of a locally-
important mineral resource recovery site delineated on a
local general plan, specific plan or other land use plan?

12. NOISE. Would the project result in:

a. Exposure of persons to or generation of noise
levels in excess of standards established in the local general
plan or noise ordinance, or applicable standards of other
agencies?

b. Exposure of persons to or generation of excessive
groundborne vibration or groundborne noise levels?

c. A substantial permanent increase in ambient noise
levels in the project vicinity above levels existing without
the project?

d. A substantial temporary or periodic increase in
ambient noise levels in the project vicinity above levels
existing without the project?

e. Foraproject located within the noise impact zones
of the airport land use compatibility plan for ONT and
Chino Airports, would the project expose people residing or
working in the project area to excessive noise levels?

f. For a project within the vicinity of a private
airstrip, would the project expose people residing or
working in the project area to excessive noise levels?

Potentially
Significant
Impact

H
H

OO

Less Than
Significant
With
Mitigation

H
H

OO

Less Than
Significant
Impact

[
[

[ O

No
Impact

X
X

X X

Page 11 of 33

Iltem E - 28 of 68



CEQA Environmental Checklist Form
File No(s).: PGPA18-005, PZC18-002, and PDEV18-030

Issues

13. POPULATION AND HOUSING. Would the project:

a. Induce substantial population growth in an area,
either directly (for example, by proposing new homes and
businesses) or indirectly (for example, through extension of
road or other infrastructure)?

b. Displace substantial numbers of existing housing,
necessitating the construction of replacement housing
elsewhere?

c. Displace substantial numbers of people,
necessitating the construction of replacement housing
elsewhere?

14. PUBLIC SERVICES. Would the project:

a. Result in substantial adverse physical impacts
associated with the provision of new or physically altered
governmental facilities, need for new or physically altered
governmental facilities, the construction of which could
cause significant environmental impacts, in order to
maintain acceptable service ratios, response times or other
performance objectives for any of the public services:

i.  Fire protection?
ii.  Police protection?
iii.  Schools?
iv.  Parks?
v.  Other public facilities?
15. RECREATION. Would the project:

a. Increase the use of existing neighborhood and
regional parks or other recreational facilities such that
substantial physical deterioration of the facility would occur
or be accelerated?

b. Does the project include recreational facilities or
require the construction or expansion of recreational
facilities which have an adverse physical effect on the
environment?

16. TRANSPORTATION/TRAFFIC. Would the project:

a. Conflict with an applicable plan, ordinance or
policy establishing measures of effectiveness for the
performance of the circulation system, taking into account
all modes of transportation including mass transit and non-
motorized travel and relevant components of the circulation
system, including but not limited to intersections, streets,
highways and freeways, pedestrian and bicycle paths, and
mass transit?

Potentially
Significant
Impact

[

Oooog

[

Less Than
Significant
With
Mitigation

[

Oooog

[

Less Than
Significant
Impact

[

Ooodo

[

No
Impact

X

X MXXXXKX

Page 12 of 33

Iltem E - 29 of 68



CEQA Environmental Checklist Form
File No(s).: PGPA18-005, PZC18-002, and PDEV18-030

Issues

b. Conflict with an applicable congestion
management program, including, but not limited to, level of
service standards and travel demand measures, or other
standards established by the county congestion management
agency for designated roads or highways?

c. Result in a change in air traffic patterns, including
either an increase in traffic levels or a change in location that
results in substantial safety risks?

d. Substantially increase hazards due to a design
feature (e.g., sharp curves or dangerous intersections) or
incompatible uses (e.g., farm equipment)?

e. Result in inadequate emergency access?

f. Conflict with adopted policies, plans, or programs
regarding public transit, bicycle, or pedestrian facilities, or
otherwise decrease the performance or safety of such
facilities?

17. TRIBAL CULTURAL RESOURCES. Would the
project cause a substantial adverse change in the
significance of a tribal cultural resource, defined in Public
Resources Code section 21074 as either a site, feature,
place, cultural landscape that is geographically defined in
terms of the size and scope of the landscape, sacred place,
or object with cultural value to a California Native
American tribe, and that is

a. Listed or eligible for listing in the California
Register of Historical Resources, or in a local register of
historical resources as defined in Public Resources Code
section 5020.1(k)?

b. A resource determined by the lead agency, in its
discretion and supported by substantial evidence, to be
significant pursuant to criteria set forth in subdivision (c) of
Public Resources Code section 5024.1. In applying the
criteria set forth in subdivision (c) of Public Resources Code
section 5024.1, the lead agency shall consider the
significance of the resource to a California Native American
tribe.

18. UTILITIES AND SERVICE SYSTEMS. Would the
project:

a. Exceed wastewater treatment requirements of the
applicable Regional Water Quality Control Board?

b. Require or result in the construction of new water
or wastewater treatment facilities or expansion of existing
facilities, the construction of which could cause significant
environmental effects?

Potentially
Significant
Impact

[

OO

Less Than
Significant
With
Mitigation

[

OO

Less Than No
Significant Impact

Impact P

L] X

L] X

] X

] X

L] X

L] X

] X

] X

] X

Page 13 of 33

Iltem E - 30 of 68



CEQA Environmental Checklist Form
File No(s).: PGPA18-005, PZC18-002, and PDEV18-030

Issues

c. Require or result in the construction of new storm
water drainage facilities or expansion of existing facilities,
the construction of which could cause significant
environmental effects?

d. Have sufficient water supplies available to serve
the project from existing entitlements and resources, or are
new or expanded entitlements needed? In making this
determination, the City shall consider whether the project is
subject to the water supply assessment requirements of
Water Code Section 10910, et seq. (SB 610), and the
requirements of Government Code Section 664737 (SB
221).

e. Result in a determination by the wastewater
treatment provider which serves or may serve the project
that it has adequate capacity to serve the project's projected
demand in addition to the provider's existing commitments?

f. Be served by a landfill with sufficient permitted
capacity to accommodate the project's solid waste disposal
needs?

g. Comply with federal, state, and local statutes and
regulations related to solid waste?

19. MANDATORY FINDINGS OF SIGNIFICANCE.

a. Does the project have the potential to degrade the
quality of the environment, substantially reduce the habitat
of a fish or wildlife species, cause a fish or wildlife
population to drop below self-sustaining levels, threaten to
eliminate a plant or animal community, substantially reduce
the number or restrict the range of a rare or endangered plant
or animal or eliminate important examples of the major
periods of California history or prehistory?

b. Does the project have the potential to achieve
short-term environmental goals to the disadvantage of long-
term environmental goals?

c. Does the project have impacts that are individually
limited, but cumulatively considerable? ("Cumulatively
considerable" means that the incremental effects of a project
are considerable when viewed in connection with the effects
of past projects, the effects of other current project, and the
effects of probable future projects.)

d. Does the project have environmental effects which
will cause substantial adverse effects on human beings,
either directly or indirectly?

Potentially
Significant
Impact

[

Less Than
Significant
With
Mitigation

[

Less Than
Significant
Impact

[

No
Impact

X

Page 14 of 33

Iltem E - 31 of 68



CEQA Environmental Checklist Form
File No(s).: PGPA18-005, PZC18-002, and PDEV18-030

Less Than

Potentially Significant Less Than No
Issues Significant gn! Significant
Impact With Impact Impact
P Mitigation P

Note: Authority cited: Public Resources Code sections 21083, 21083.05.

Reference: Gov. Code section 65088.4; Public Resources Code sections 21073, 21074, 21080(c), 21080.1, 21080.3,
21080.3.1, 21080.3.2, 21082.3, 21083, 21083.3, 21083.5, 21084.2, 21084.3, 21093, 21094, 21095 and 21151;
Sundstrom v. County of Mendocino (1988) 202 Cal.App.3d 296; Leonoff v. Monterey Board of Supervisors (1990)
222 Cal.App.3d 1337; Eureka Citizens for Responsible Govt. v. City of Eureka (2007) 147 Cal.App.4th 357; Protect
the Historic Amador Waterways v. Amador Water Agency (2004) 116 Cal.App.4th 1099, 1109; San Franciscans
Upholding the Downtown Plan v. City and County of San Francisco (2002) 102 Cal.App.4th 656.

EXPLANATION OF ISSUES

1. AESTHETICS. Would the project:
a. Have a substantial adverse effect on a scenic vista?

Discussion of Effects: The Policy Plan (General Plan) does not identify scenic vistas within the City.
However, the Policy Plan (Policy CD1-5) requires all major require north-south streets be designed and redeveloped
to feature views of the San Gabriel Mountain. The project site is located south of the I-10 Freeway and west of
Etiwanda Avenue, interior to Loop Drive, a local street, as identified in the Functional Roadway Classification Plan
(Figure M-2) of the Mobility Element within the Policy Plan. Therefore, no adverse impacts are anticipated in relation
to the project.

Mitigation: None required.

b. Substantially damage scenic resources, including, but not limited to, trees, rock outcroppings and
historic buildings within a state scenic highway?

Discussion of Effects: The City of Ontario is served by three freeways: 1-10, 1-15, and SR-60. 1-10 and SR-
60 traverse the northern and central portion of the City, respectively, in an east-west direction. 1-15 traverses the
northeastern portion of the City in a north-south direction. These segments of 1-10, I-15, and SR-60 have not been
officially designated as scenic highways by the California Department of Transportation. In addition, there are no
historic buildings or any scenic resources identified on or in the vicinity of the project site. Therefore, it will not result
in adverse environmental impacts.

Mitigation: None required.
c. Substantially degrade the existing visual character or quality of the site and its surroundings?

Discussion of Effects: The project would not degrade the existing visual character or quality of the site or its
surroundings. The project site is located in an area that is characterized by industrial development and is surrounded
by urban land uses.

The proposed project will substantially improve the visual quality of the area through development of the site
with an industrial building, which will be consistent with the policies of the Community Design Element of the Policy
Plan (General Plan) and zoning designations on the property, as well as with the industrial development in the
surrounding area. Therefore, no adverse impacts are anticipated.

Mitigation: None required.

d. Create a new source of substantial light or glare that would adversely affect day or nighttime views in
the area?

Discussion of Effects: New lighting will be introduced to the site with future project development. Pursuant
to the requirements of the City’s Development Code, project on-site lighting will be shielded, diffused or indirect, to
avoid glare to pedestrians or motorists. In addition, lighting fixtures will be selected and located to confine the area of
illumination to within the project site and minimize light spillage.

Site lighting plans will be subject to review by the Planning Department and Police Department prior to
issuance of building permits (pursuant to the City’s Building Security Ordinance). Therefore, no adverse impacts are
anticipated.

Page 15 of 33

Iltem E - 32 of 68



CEQA Environmental Checklist Form
File No(s).: PGPA18-005, PZC18-002, and PDEV18-030

Mitigation: None required.

2. AGRICULTURE AND FOREST RESOURCES. In determining whether impacts to agricultural resources are
significant environmental effects, lead agencies may refer to the California Agricultural Land Evaluation and Site
Assessment Model prepared by the California Department of Conservation as an optional model to use in assessing
impacts on agriculture and farmland. In determining whether impacts to forest resources, including timberland, are
significant environmental effects, lead agencies may refer to information compiled by the California Department of
Forestry and Fire Protection regarding the state’s inventory of forest land, including the Forest and Range Assessment
Project and the Forest Legacy Assessment project; and forest carbon measurement methodology provided in Forest
Protocols adopted by the California Air Resources Board. Would the project:

a. Convert Prime Farmland, Unique Farmland, or Farmland of Statewide Importance (Farmland), as
shown on the maps prepared pursuant to the Farmland Mapping and Monitoring Program of the California
Resources Agency, to non-agricultural use?

Discussion of Effects: The site is presently vacant and does not contain any agricultural uses. Further, the
site is identified as “Urban and Built-Up Land” on the map prepared by the California Resources Agency, pursuant to
the Farmland Mapping and Monitoring Program. As a result, no adverse environmental impacts are anticipated.

Mitigation: None required.
b. Conflict with existing zoning for agricultural use, or a Williamson Act contract?

Discussion of Effects: The project site is not zoned for agricultural use. The project site is proposed to be
zoned IG (General Industrial). The proposed project is consistent with the development standards and allowed land
uses of the proposed zone. Furthermore, there is no Williamson Act contract in effect on the subject site. Therefore,
no impacts to agricultural uses are anticipated, nor will there be any conflict with existing or Williamson Act contracts.

Mitigation: None required.

c. Conflict with existing zoning for, or cause rezoning of, forest land (as defined in Public Resources Code
section 12220(g)), timberland (as defined by Public Resources Code section 4526), or timberland zoned
Timberland Production (as defined by Government Code section 51104(g)?

Discussion of Effects: The project proposed to be zoned IG (General Industrial). The proposed project is
consistent with the Land Use Element (Figure LU-6) of the Policy Plan (General Plan) and the development standards
and allowed land uses of the IG zone. Therefore, no adverse impacts are anticipated.

Mitigation: None required.

d. Resultin the loss of forest land or conversion of forest land to non-forest use?

Discussion of Effects: There is currently no land in the City of Ontario that qualifies as forest land as defined
in Public Resources Code section 12220(g). Neither The Ontario Plan nor the City’s Zoning Code provide designations
for forest land. Consequently, the proposed project would not result in the loss or conversion of forest land.

Mitigation: None required.

e. Involve other changes in the existing environment, which, due to their location or nature, could
individually or cumulatively result in loss of Farmland to non-agricultural use or conversion of forest land to
non-forest use?

Discussion of Effects: The project site is proposed to be zoned 1G (General Industrial) and is not designated
as Farmland. The project site is currently vacant and there are no agricultural uses occurring onsite. As a result, to
the extent that the project would result in changes to the existing environment those changes would not result in loss
of Farmland to non-agricultural use.

Additionally, there is currently no land in the City of Ontario that qualifies as forest land as defined in Public
Resources Code Section 12220(g). Neither The Ontario Plan nor the City’s Zoning Code provide designations for
forest land. Consequently, to the extent that the proposed project would result in changes to the existing environment,
those changes would not impact forest land.

Mitigation Required: None required.

3. AIR QUALITY. Where available, the significance criteria established by the applicable air quality management
or air pollution control district may be relied upon to make the following determinations. Would the project:

Page 16 of 33

Iltem E - 33 of 68



CEQA Environmental Checklist Form
File No(s).: PGPA18-005, PZC18-002, and PDEV18-030

a. Conflict with or obstruct implementation of the applicable air quality plan?

Discussion of Effects: The project will not conflict with or obstruct implementation of any air quality plan.
As noted in The Ontario Plan FEIR (Section 5.3), pollutant levels in the Ontario area already exceed Federal and State
standards. To reduce pollutant levels, the City of Ontario is actively participating in efforts to enhance air quality by
implementing Control Measures in the Air Quality Management Plan for local jurisdictions within the South Coast
Air Basin.

The proposed project is consistent with The Ontario Plan, for which the EIR was prepared and impacts
evaluated. Furthermore, the project is consistent with the City's participation in the Air Quality Management Plan and,
because of the project's limited size and scope, will not conflict with or obstruct implementation of the plan. However,
out of an abundance of caution, any future development will be required to use low emission fuel, use low VOC
architectural coatings and implement an alternative transportation program (which may include incentives to
participate in carpool or vanpool) as recommended by the South Coast Air Quality Management District's Air Quality
modeling program. The project will also be required to follow all previously-certified mitigation measures as outlined
in TOP FEIR.

Mitigation: None required.

b. Violate any air quality standard or contribute substantially to an existing or projected air quality
violation?

Discussion of Effects: The project will not violate any air quality standard or contribute substantially to an
existing or projected air quality violation. The project will be required to follow all previously-certified mitigation
measures as outlined in TOP FEIR. Short term air quality impacts will result from any future construction related
activities, such as excavation and grading, machinery and equipment emissions, vehicle emissions from construction
employees, etc. The daily emissions of nitrogen oxides and particulates from resulting grading and vehicular emissions
may exceed threshold levels of the South Coast Air Quality Management District (SCAQMD).

Mitigation: None required.

c. Resultinacumulatively considerable net increase of any criteria pollutant for which the project region
is non-attainment under an applicable federal or state ambient air quality standard (including releasing
emissions that exceed quantitative thresholds for ozone precursors)?

Discussion of Effects: The project will not result in a cumulatively considerable net increase of any criteria
pollutant for which the region is in non-attainment under an applicable federal or state ambient air quality because of
the limited size and scope of the project. Although no impacts are anticipated, the project will still comply with the
air quality standards of the TOP FEIR and the SCAQMD resulting in impacts that are less than significant [please
refer to Sections 3(a) and 3(b)].

Mitigation: None required.

d. Expose sensitive receptors to substantial pollutant concentrations?

Discussion of Effects: Sensitive receptors are defined as populations that are more susceptible to the effects
of pollution than the population at large. The SCAQMD identifies the following as sensitive receptors: long-term
health care facilities, rehabilitation centers, convalescent centers, retirement homes, residences, schools, playgrounds,
child care centers, and athletic facilities. According to the SCAQMD, projects have the potential to create significant
impacts if they are located within one-quarter mile of sensitive receptors and would emit toxic air contaminants
identified in SCAQMD Rule 1401.

The project will not expose sensitive receptors to any increase in pollutant concentrations because there are
no sensitive receptors located within close proximity of the project site. Further, there is limited potential for sensitive
receptors to be located within close proximity of the site because the project site will be zoned 1G (General Industrial).
The types of uses that would potentially impact sensitive receptors would not be supported on the property pursuant
to the Land Use Element (Figure LU-6) of the Policy Plan (General Plan) and zoning designations on the property.
Therefore, no adverse impacts are anticipated.

Mitigation: None required.
e. Create objectionable odors affecting a substantial number of people?

Discussion of Effects: The uses proposed on the subject site, as well as those permitted within the 1G (General
Industrial) zoning district, do not create objectionable odors. Further, the project shall comply with the policies of the

Page 17 of 33

Iltem E - 34 of 68



CEQA Environmental Checklist Form
File No(s).: PGPA18-005, PZC18-002, and PDEV18-030

Ontario Municipal Code and the Policy Plan (General Plan). Therefore, no adverse impacts are anticipated.
Mitigation: None required.
4. BIOLOGICAL RESOURCES. Would the project:

a. Have a substantial adverse effect, either directly or through habitat modifications, on any species
identified as a candidate, sensitive, or special status species in local or regional plans, policies, or regulations,
or by the California Department of Fish and Game or U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service?

Discussion of Effects: The project site is located within an area that has not been identified as containing
species identified as a candidate, sensitive, or special status species in local or regional plans, policies or regulations
or by the California Department of Fish and Game or the U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service. The site is also not located
within Delhi Soil lands, which serve as potential habitat for the Delhi Sand Flower-loving Fly (DSF). Therefore, no
adverse impacts are anticipated.

Mitigation: None required.

b. Have a substantial adverse effect on any riparian habitat or other sensitive natural community
identified in local or regional plans, policies, regulations, or by the California Department of Fish and Game
or U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service?

Discussion of Effects: The site does not contain any riparian habitat or other sensitive natural community
identified by the Department of Fish & Game or Fish & Wildlife Service. Therefore, no adverse environmental impacts
are anticipated.

Mitigation: None required.

c. Have asubstantial adverse effect on federally protected wetlands as defined by Section 404 of the Clean
Water Act (including, but not limited to, marsh, vernal pool, coastal, etc.) through direct removal, filling,
hydrological interruption, or other means?

Discussion of Effects: No wetland habitat is present on site. Therefore, project implementation would have
no impact on these resources.

Mitigation: None required.

d. Interfere substantially with the movement of any native resident or migratory fish or wildlife species
or with established native resident or migratory wildlife corridors, or impede the use of native wildlife nursery
sites?

Discussion of Effects: The project site is undeveloped and is surrounded by other industrial land uses to the
north, south, and west, and is also bounded on the north by the I-10 Freeway and on the south by the Southern Pacific
Rail Line. As a result, there are no wildlife corridors connecting this site to other areas. Therefore, no adverse
environmental impacts are anticipated.

Muitigation: None required.

e. Conflict with any local policies or ordinances protecting biological resources, such as a tree
preservation policy or ordinance?

Discussion of Effects: The City of Ontario does not have any ordinances protecting biological resources.
Further, the site does not contain any mature trees necessitating the need for preservation. As a result, no adverse
environmental impacts are anticipated.

Mitigation: None required.

f. Conflict with the provisions of an adopted Habitat Conservation Plan (HCP), Natural Community
Conservation Plan (NCCP), or other approved local, regional, or state habitat conservation plan?

Discussion of Effects: The site is not part of an adopted HCP, NCCP or other approved habitat conservation
plan. As a result, no adverse environmental impacts are anticipated.

Muitigation: None required.
5. CULTURAL RESOURCES. Would the project:

a. Cause a substantial adverse change in the significance of a historical resource as defined in Section
15064.5?

Page 18 of 33

Iltem E - 35 of 68



CEQA Environmental Checklist Form
File No(s).: PGPA18-005, PZC18-002, and PDEV18-030

Discussion of Effects: The project site is vacant and does not contain any buildings, structures, or objects.
Therefore, no adverse impacts are anticipated.

Mitigation: None required.

b. Cause a substantial adverse change in the significance of an archaeological resource pursuant to
Section 15064.5?

Discussion of Effects: The Ontario Plan FEIR (Section 5.5) indicates no archeological sites or resources have
been recorded in the City with the Archeological Information Center at San Bernardino County Museum. However,
only about 10 percent of the City of Ontario has been adequately surveyed for prehistoric or historic archaeology.
While no adverse impacts to archeological resources are anticipated at this site due to its urbanized nature, the project
is subject to all mitigation measures as set forth by TOP FEIR. Additionally, standard conditions will be imposed on
any future development, such that in the event of unanticipated archeological discoveries, construction activities will
not continue or will be moved to other parts of the project site and a qualified archaeologist shall be contacted to
determine significance of these resources. If the find is discovered to be historical or a unique archaeological resource,
as defined in Section 15064.5 of the CEQA Guidelines, avoidance or other appropriate measures shall be implemented.

Mitigation: None required.
c. Directly or indirectly destroy a unique paleontological resource or site or unique geologic feature?

Discussion of Effects: The City of Ontario is underlain by deposits of Quaternary and Upper-Pleistocene
sediments deposited during the Pliocene and early Pleistocene time, Quaternary Older Alluvial sediments may contain
significant, nonrenewable, paleontological resources and are, therefore, considered to have high sensitivity at depths
of 10 feet or more below ground surface. In addition, the Ontario Plan FEIR (Section 5.5) indicates that one
paleontological resource has been discovered in the City. While no adverse impacts are anticipated, standard
conditions have been imposed on the project, and shall be imposed on any future development, such that in the event
of unanticipated paleontological resources being identified during excavation, construction activities will not continue
or will be moved to other parts of the project site and a qualified paleontologist shall be contacted to determine
significance of these resources. If the find is determined to be significant, avoidance or other appropriate measures
shall be implemented.

Mitigation: None required.

d. Disturb any human remains, including those interred outside of formal cemeteries?

Discussion of Effects: The proposed project is in an area that has been previously disturbed by development.
No known religious or sacred sites exist within the project area. Thus, human remains are not expected to be
encountered during any construction activities. However, in the unlikely event that human remains are discovered,
existing regulations, including the California Public Resources Code Section 5097.98, would afford protection for
human remains discovered during any future development activities. Furthermore, standard conditions have been
imposed on the project that in the event of unanticipated discoveries of human remains are identified during excavation
or construction activities, the area shall not be disturbed until any required investigation is completed by the County
Coroner and/or Native American consultation has been completed, if deemed applicable.

Mitigation: None required.

e. Cause a substantial adverse change in the significance of a Tribal Cultural Resource as defined in
Public Resources Code Section 21074?

Discussion of Effects: The proposed project is in an area that has been previously disturbed by development.
No known Tribal Cultural Resource sites exist within the project area. Thus, tribal artifacts are not expected to be
encountered during any excavation, grading, or construction activities. Further, The Ontario Plan (TOP) has set forth
mitigation measures regarding tribal and cultural resources, and requires certain project conditions of approval to
protect said resources. The project shall abide by all mitigation measures as set forth in TOP FEIR. Any future
development shall be required to abide by all mitigation measures of TOP FEIR, which includes the following
statements: If human remains are found during project grading/excavation/construction activities, the area shall not
be disturbed until any required investigation is completed by the County Coroner and Native American consultation
has been completed (if deemed applicable); If any archeological or paleontological resources are found during project
grading/excavation/construction, the area shall not be disturbed until the significance of the resource is determined. If
determined to be significant, the resource shall be recovered by a qualified archeologist or paleontologist consistent
with current standards and guidelines, or other appropriate measures implemented.

Page 19 of 33

Iltem E - 36 of 68



CEQA Environmental Checklist Form
File No(s).: PGPA18-005, PZC18-002, and PDEV18-030

Per the regulations and guidelines of SB-18, the City of Ontario requested a notification list from the Native
American Heritage Commission (NAHC) and proceeded to notify the contacts on said list. As of October 10, 2018,
staff has received a total of four comments, including one request for consultation. The City of Ontario completed the
requested consultation, and requested mitigation measures are consistent with those addressed in The Ontario Plan
EIR and will be made required conditions of approval for any future development on the site.

Mitigation: None required.
6. GEOLOGY & SOILS. Would the project:

a. [Expose people or structures to potential substantial adverse effects, including the risk of loss, injury
or death involving:

i Rupture of a known earthquake fault, as delineated on the most recent Alquist-Priolo Earthquake
Fault Zoning Map issued by the State Geologist for the area or based on other substantial evidence of a known
fault? Refer to Division of Mines and Geology Special Publication 42.

Discussion of Effects: There are no active faults known on the site and the project site is located outside
the Fault Rapture Hazard Zone (formerly Alquist-Priolo Zone). The Ontario Plan FEIR (Section 5.7/Figure 5.7-2)
identifies eight active or potentially active fault zones near the City. Given that the closest fault zone is located more
than ten miles from the project site, fault rupture within the project area is not likely. All development will comply
with the Uniform Building Code seismic design standards to reduce geologic hazard susceptibility. Therefore, no
adverse impacts are anticipated.

Mitigation: None required.
ii. Strong seismic ground shaking?

Discussion of Effects: There are no active faults known on the site and the project site is located outside
the Fault Rapture Hazard Zone (formerly Alquist-Priolo Zone). The Land Use Plan (Figure LU-6) of the Policy Plan
(General Plan) FEIR (Section 5.7/Figure 5.7-2) identifies eight active or potentially active fault zones near the City.
The closest fault zone is located more than ten miles from the project site. The proximity of the site to the active faults
will result in ground shaking during moderate to severe seismic events. All construction will be in compliance with
the California Building Code, the Ontario Municipal Code, The Ontario Plan and all other ordinances adopted by the
City related to construction and safety. Therefore, no adverse impacts are anticipated.

Mitigation: None required.

iii. Seismic-related ground failure, including liquefaction?

Discussion of Effects: As identified in the TOP FEIR (Section 5.7), groundwater saturation of sediments
is required for earthquake induced liquefaction. In general, groundwater depths shallower than 10 feet to the surface
can cause the highest liquefaction susceptibility. Depth to ground water at the project site during the winter months is
estimated to be between 250 to 450 feet below ground surface. Therefore, the liquefaction potential within the project
area is minimal. Implementation of The Ontario Plan strategies, Uniform Building Code and Ontario Municipal code
would reduce impacts to a less than significant level.

Mitigation: None required.
iv. Landslides?

Discussion of Effects: The project would not expose people or structures to potential adverse effects,
including the risk of loss, injury, or death involving landslides because the relatively flat topography of the project
site (less than 2 percent slope across the City) makes the chance of landslides remote. Implementation of The Ontario
Plan strategies, Uniform Building Code and Ontario Municipal Code would reduce impacts to a less than significant
level.

Mitigation: None required.
b. Result in substantial soil erosion or the loss of topsoil?

Discussion of Effects: The project will not result in significant soil erosion or loss of topsoil because of the
previously disturbed and developed nature of the project site and the limited size and scope of the project. Grading
increases the potential for erosion by removing protective vegetation, changing natural drainage patterns, and
constructing slopes. However, compliance with the California Building Code and review of grading plans by the City
Engineer will ensure no significant impacts will occur for any future development. In addition, the City requires an

Page 20 of 33

Iltem E - 37 of 68



CEQA Environmental Checklist Form
File No(s).: PGPA18-005, PZC18-002, and PDEV18-030

erosion/dust control plan for projects located within this area. Implementation of a NPDES program, the
Environmental Resource Element of the Policy Plan (General Plan) strategies, Uniform Building Code and Ontario
Municipal code would reduce impacts to a less than significant level.

Mitigation: None required.

c. Be located on a geologic unit or soil that is unstable, or that would become unstable as a result of the
project, and potentially result in on- or off-site landslide, lateral spreading, subsidence, liquefaction or collapse?

Discussion of Effects: The project would not result in the location of development on a geologic unit or soil
that is unstable, or that would become unstable because as previously discussed, the potential for liquefaction and
landslides associated with the project is less than significant. The Ontario Plan FEIR (Section 5.7) indicates that
subsidence is generally associated with large decreases or withdrawals of water from the aquifer. The project would
not withdraw water from the existing aquifer. Further, implementation of The Ontario Plan strategies, Uniform
Building Code and Ontario Municipal code would reduce impacts to a less than significant level for any future
development.

Mitigation: None required.

d. Be located on expansive soil, as defined in Table 18-1-B of the Uniform Building Code (1994), creating
substantial risks to life or property?

Discussion of Effects: The majority of Ontario, including the project site, is located on alluvial soil deposits.
These types of soils are not considered to be expansive. Therefore, no adverse impacts are anticipated.

Mitigation: None required.

e. Have soils incapable of adequately supporting the use of septic tanks or alternative wastewater disposal
systems where sewers are not available for the disposal of wastewater?

Discussion of Effects: The area is served by the local sewer system and the use of alternative systems is not
necessary. There will be no impact to the sewage system.

Mitigation: None required.
7. GREENHOUSE GAS EMISSIONS. Would the project:

a. Generate greenhouse gas emissions, either directly or indirectly, that may have a significant impact on
the environment?

Discussion of Effects: The impact of buildout of The Ontario Plan on the environment due to the emission
of greenhouse gases (“GHGs”) was analyzed in the Environmental Impact Report (“EIR”) for the Policy Plan (General
Plan). According to the EIR, this impact would be significant and unavoidable (Re-circulated Portions of the Ontario
Plan Draft Environmental Impact Report, p. 2-118.). This EIR was certified by the City on January 27, 2010, at which
time a statement of overriding considerations was also adopted for The Ontario Plan’s significant and unavoidable
impacts, including that concerning the emission of greenhouse gases.

Pursuant to Public Resources Code section 21083.3, this impact need not be analyzed further, because (1)
the proposed project would result in an impact that was previously analyzed in The Ontario Plan EIR, which was
certified by the City; (2) the proposed project would not result in any greenhouse gas impacts that were not addressed
in The Ontario Plan EIR; (3) the proposed project is consistent with The Ontario Plan. Further, any future development
will be analyzed in conjunction with TOP and the City’s Climate Action Plan (CAP), to determine whether any GHG
mitigation measures will be required based on the project size and land use proposed.

As part of the City’s certification of The Ontario Plan EIR and its adoption of The Ontario Plan, the City
adopted mitigation measures 6-1 through 6-6 with regard to the significant and unavoidable impact relating to GHG
emissions. These mitigation measures, in summary, required:

MM 6-1. The City is required to prepare a Climate Action Plan (CAP).
MM 6-2. The City is required to consider for inclusion in the CAP a list of emission reduction measures.

MM 6-3. The City is required to amend its Municipal Code to incorporate a list of emission reduction
concepts.

MM 6-4. The City is required to consider the emission reduction measures and concepts contained in
MMs 6-2 and 6-3 when reviewing new development prior to adoption of the CAP.

Page 21 of 33

Iltem E - 38 of 68



CEQA Environmental Checklist Form
File No(s).: PGPA18-005, PZC18-002, and PDEV18-030

MM 6-5. The City is required to evaluate new development for consistency with the Sustainable
Communities Strategy, upon adoption by the Southern California Association of Governments.

MM 6-6. The City is required to participate in San Bernardino County’s Green Valley Initiative.

While Public Resources Code section 21083.3 requires that relevant mitigation measures from a General Plan
EIR be imposed on a project that is invoking that section’s limited exemption from CEQA, these mitigation measures
impose obligations on the City, not applicants, and hence are not directly relevant. However, the mitigation proposed
below carries out, on a project-level, the intent of The Ontario Plan’s mitigation on this subject.

Mitigation Required: None required.

b. Conflict with an applicable plan, policy or regulation adopted for the purpose of reducing the emissions
of greenhouse gases?

Discussion of Effects: The proposed project is consistent with The Ontario Plan Goal ER 4 of improving air
quality by, among other things, implementation of Policy ER4-3, regarding the reduction of greenhouse gas emissions
in accordance with regional, state and federal regulations. In addition, the proposed project is consistent with the
policies outlined in Section 5.6.4 of the Environmental Impact Report for The Ontario Plan, which aims to reduce the
City’s contribution of greenhouse gas emissions at build-out by fifteen (15%), because the project is upholding the
applicable City’s adopted mitigation measures as represented in 6-1 through 6-6. Therefore, the proposed project does
not conflict with an applicable plan, policy or regulation adopted for the purpose of reducing emissions of greenhouse
gases.

Mitigation Required: None required.
8. HAZARDS & HAZARDOUS MATERIALS. Would the project:

a. Create a significant hazard to the public or the environment through the routine transport, use or
disposal of hazardous materials?

Discussion of Effects: The project will not create a significant hazard to the public or the environment through
the routine transport, use or disposal of hazardous materials. Any future development is not anticipated to involve the
transport, use or disposal of hazardous materials during either construction or project implementation. Therefore, no
adverse impacts are anticipated. However, in the unlikely event of an accident, implementation of the strategies
included in The Ontario Plan will decrease the potential for health and safety risks from hazardous materials to a less
than significant impact.

Mitigation: None required.

b. Create asignificant hazard to the public or the environment through reasonably foreseeable upset and
accident conditions involving the release of hazardous materials into the environment?

Discussion of Effects: The proposed project does not include the use of hazardous materials or volatile fuels.
In addition, there are no known stationary commercial or industrial land uses within close proximity to the subject
site, which use/store hazardous materials to the extent that they would pose a significant hazard to visitors/occupants
to the subject site for future development, in the event of an upset condition resulting in the release of a hazardous
material.

Mitigation: None required

c. Emit hazardous emissions or handle hazardous or acutely hazardous materials, substances or waste
within one-quarter mile of an existing or proposed school?

Discussion of Effects: The proposed project does not include the use, emissions or handling of hazardous or
acutely hazardous materials, substances or waste. Therefore, no impacts are anticipated.

Muitigation: None required.

d. Be located on a site which is included on a list of hazardous materials sites compiled pursuant to
Government Code Section 65962.5 and, as a result, would it create a significant hazard to the public or the
environment?

Discussion of Effects: The proposed project site is not listed on the hazardous materials site compiled
pursuant to Government Code Section 65962.5. Therefore, the project would not create a hazard to the public or the
environment and no impact is anticipated.

Page 22 of 33

Iltem E - 39 of 68



CEQA Environmental Checklist Form
File No(s).: PGPA18-005, PZC18-002, and PDEV18-030

Mitigation: None required.

e. For a project located within the safety zone of the airport land use compatibility plan for ONT or
Chino Airports, would the project result in a safety hazard for people residing or working in the project area?

Discussion of Effects: According to Land Use Element (Exhibit LU-06 Airport Environs) of the Policy Plan
(General Plan), the proposed site is located within the airport land use plan. However, the project will not result in a
safety hazard for people working or residing in the project area, as future development will not obstruct aircraft
maneuvering because of the project's low elevation, distance from the Ontario Airport and Chino Airport, maximum
allowable building height of 200 feet and the anticipated architectural style of the development, location outside of
both the safety zones and noise impact zones, and consistency with the policies and criteria of the Airport Land Use
Compatibility Plan (ALUCP). Additionally, future development will be required to comply with standards for
mitigating noise. Therefore, any impacts would be reduced to a less than significant level.

Muitigation: None required.

f. For a project within the vicinity of a private airstrip, would the project result in a safety hazard for
people residing or working in the project area?

Discussion of Effects: The project site is not located within the vicinity of a private airstrip. Therefore, no
impacts are anticipated.

Mitigation: None required.

g. Impair implementation of or physically interfere with an adopted emergency response plan or
emergency evacuation plan?

Discussion of Effects: The City's Safety Element, as contained within The Ontario Plan, includes policies
and procedures to be administered in the event of a disaster. The Ontario Plan seeks interdepartmental and inter-
jurisdictional coordination and collaboration to be prepared for, respond to and recover from everyday and disaster
emergencies. In addition, the project and any future development will comply with the requirements of the Ontario
Fire Department and all City requirements for fire and other emergency access. Because the project is required to
comply with all applicable City codes, any impacts would be reduced to a less than significant level.

Mitigation: None required.

h. Expose people or structures to a significant risk of loss, injury or death involving wildland fires,
including where wildlands are adjacent to urbanized areas or where residences are intermixed with wildlands?

Discussion of Effects: The project site is not located in or near wildlands. Therefore, no impacts are
anticipated.

Mitigation: None required.
9. HYDROLOGY & WATER QUALITY. Would the project:

a. Violate any other water quality standards or waste discharge requirements or potential for discharge
of storm water pollutants from areas of material storage, vehicle or equipment fueling, vehicle or equipment
maintenance (including washing), waste handling, hazardous materials handling or storage, delivery areas or
loading docks, or other outdoor work areas?

Discussion of Effects: The project site is served by City water and sewer service and will not affect water
quality standards or waste discharge requirements. Discharge of storm water pollutants from potential areas of
materials storage, vehicle or equipment fueling, vehicle or equipment maintenance (including washing, waste
handling, hazardous materials handling or storage, delivery areas or loading docks, or other outdoor work) areas could
result in a temporary increase in the amount of suspended solids, trash and debris, oil and grease, organic compounds,
pesticides, nutrients, heavy metals and bacteria pathogens in surface flows during a concurrent storm event, thus
resulting in surface water quality impacts. The site and future development will be required to comply with the
statewide National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) General Industrial Activities Stormwater
Permit, the San Bernardino County Area-Wide Urban Runoff Permit (MS4 permit) and the City of Ontario’s
Municipal Code (Title 6, Chapter 6 (Stormwater Drainage System)). This would reduce any impacts to below a level
of significance.

Mitigation: None required.

b. Substantially deplete groundwater supplies or interfere substantially with groundwater recharge such

Page 23 of 33

Iltem E - 40 of 68



CEQA Environmental Checklist Form
File No(s).: PGPA18-005, PZC18-002, and PDEV18-030

that there would be a net deficit in aquifer volume or a lowering of the local groundwater table level (e.g., the
production rate of pre-existing nearby wells would drop to a level which would not support existing land uses
or planned uses for which permits have been granted)?

Discussion of Effects: No increases in the current amount of water flow to the project site are anticipated,
and the proposed project will not deplete groundwater supplies, nor will it interfere with recharge. The water use
associated with the proposed use of the property will be negligible. The development of the site will require the grading
of the site and excavation is expected to be less than three feet and would not affect the existing aquifer, estimated to
be about 230 to 250 feet below the ground surface. No adverse impacts are anticipated.

Muitigation: None required.

c. Substantially alter the existing drainage pattern of the site or area, including through the alteration of
the course of a stream or river, in a manner which would result in substantial erosion or siltation on- or off-site
or volume of storm water runoff to cause environmental harm or potential for significant increases in erosion
of the project site or surrounding areas?

Discussion of Effects: It is not anticipated that any future development would alter the drainage pattern of
the site or area, in a manner that would result in erosion, siltation or flooding on-or-off site nor will future development
increase the erosion of the subject site or surrounding areas. The existing drainage pattern of the project site will not
be altered and it will have no significant impact on downstream hydrology. Stormwater generated by any future
development will be required to be discharged in compliance with the statewide NPDES General Construction
Activities Stormwater Permit and San Bernardino County MS4 permit requirements. With the full implementation of
a Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plan developed in compliance with the General Construction Activities Permit
requirements, the Best Management Practices included in the SWPPP, and a stormwater monitoring program would
reduce any impacts to below a level of significance. No streams or streambeds are present on the site. No changes in
erosion off-site are anticipated.

Mitigation: None required.

d. Substantially alter the existing drainage pattern of the site or area, including through the alteration of
the course of a stream or river, or substantially increase the rate or amount of surface runoff in a manner that
would result in flooding on- or off-site or potential for significant changes in the flow velocity or volume of
storm water runoff to cause environmental harm?

Discussion of Effects: The proposed project and any future development are not anticipated to increase the
flow velocity or volume of storm water runoff to cause environmental harm from the site and will not create a burden
on existing infrastructure. Furthermore, with the implementation of an approved Water Quality Management Plan
developed for the site, in compliance with the San Bernardino County MS4 Permit requirements, stormwater runoff
volume shall be reduced to below a level of significance.

Mitigation: None required.

e. Create or contribute runoff water which would exceed the capacity of existing or planned storm water
drainage systems or provide substantial additional sources of polluted runoff (a&b) during construction and/or
post-construction activity?

Discussion of Effects: It is not anticipated that the project or any future development would create or
contribute runoff water that would exceed the capacity of existing or planned stormwater drainage systems or create
or contribute stormwater runoff pollutants during construction and/or post-construction activity. Pursuant to the
requirements of The Ontario Plan, the City’s Development Code, and the San Bernardino County MS4 Permit’s
“Water Quality Management Plan” (WQMP), individual developments must provide site drainage and WQMP plans
according to guidelines established by the City’s Engineering Department. If master drainage facilities are not in place
at the time of project development, then standard engineering practices for controlling post-development runoff may
be required, which could include the construction of on-site storm water detention and/or retention/infiltration
facilities. Therefore, no impacts are anticipated.

Mitigation: None required.

f.  Otherwise substantially degrade water quality or potential for discharge of storm water to affect the
beneficial uses of receiving water?

Discussion of Effects: Activities associated with any future construction period could result in a temporary
increase in the amount of suspended solids in surface flows during a concurrent storm event, thus resulting in surface

Page 24 of 33

Iltem E - 41 of 68



CEQA Environmental Checklist Form
File No(s).: PGPA18-005, PZC18-002, and PDEV18-030

water quality impacts. The site is required to comply with the statewide NPDES General Construction Permit and the
City of Ontario’s Municipal Code (Title 6, Chapter 6 (Stormwater Drainage System)) to minimize water pollution.
Thus it is anticipated that there is no potential for discharges of stormwater during construction that will affect the
beneficial uses of the receiving waters. However, with the General Construction Permit requirement and
implementation of the policies in The Ontario Plan, any impacts associated with future development would be less
than significant.

Mitigation: None required.

g. Place housing within a 100-year flood hazard area as mapped on a federal Flood Hazard Boundary or
Flood Insurance Rate Map or other flood hazard delineation map?

Discussion of Effects: The project site is not located within a 100-year flood hazard area as mapped on a
Federal Flood Hazard Boundary or Flood Insurance Rate Map or other flood hazard delineation map. Therefore, no
impacts are anticipated.

Mitigation: None required.
h. Place within a 100-year flood hazard area, structures that would impede or redirect flood flows?

Discussion of Effects: As identified in the Safety Element (Exhibit S-2) of the Policy Plan (General Plan),
the site lies outside of the 100-year flood hazard area. Therefore, no adverse impacts are anticipated.

Mitigation: None required.

i. Expose people or structures to a significant risk of loss, injury or death involving flooding, including
flooding as a result of the failure of a levee or dam?

Discussion of Effects: As identified in the Safety Element (Exhibit S-2) of The Ontario Plan, the site lies
outside of the 100-year flood hazard area. No levees or dams are located near the project site. Therefore, no adverse
impacts are anticipated.

Muitigation: None required.
j.  Expose people or structures to inundation by seiche, tsunami or mudflow?

Discussion of Effects: There are no lakes or substantial reservoirs near the project site; therefore, impacts
from seiche are not anticipated. The City of Ontario has relatively flat topography, less than two percent across the
City, and the chance of mudflow is remote. Therefore, no impacts are anticipated.

Mitigation: None required.
10. LAND USE & PLANNING. Would the project:
a. Physically divide an established community?

Discussion of Effects: The project site is located in an area that is currently developed with urban land uses.
This project will allow for future development of the site to be of similar design and size to surrounding development.
The project will allow the site to become a part of the larger industrial community. No adverse impacts are anticipated.

Mitigation: None required.

b. Conflict with applicable land use plan, policy or regulation of agencies with jurisdiction over the
project (including, but not limited to general plan, airport land use compatibility plan, specific plan, or
development code) adopted for the purpose of avoiding or mitigation an environmental effect?

Discussion of Effects: The proposed project is consistent with The Ontario Plan and does not interfere with
any policies for environmental protection. As such, no impacts are anticipated.

Mitigation: None required.
c. Conflict with any applicable habitat conservation plan or natural community conservation plan?

Discussion of Effects: There are no adopted habitat conservation plans in the project area. As such no
conflicts or impacts are anticipated.

Muitigation: None required.
11. MINERAL RESOURCES. Would the project:

Page 25 of 33

Iltem E - 42 of 68



CEQA Environmental Checklist Form
File No(s).: PGPA18-005, PZC18-002, and PDEV18-030

a. Result in the loss of availability of a known mineral resource that would be of value to the region and
the residents of the state?

Discussion of Effects: The project site is located within a mostly developed area surrounded by urban land
uses. There are no known mineral resources in the area. Therefore, no impacts are anticipated.

Mitigation: None required.

b. Result in the loss of availability of a locally important mineral resource recovery site delineated on a
local general plan, specific plan or other land use plan?

Discussion of Effects: There are no known mineral resources in the area. No impacts are anticipated.

Muitigation: None required.
12. NOISE. Would the project result in:

a. [Exposure of persons to or generation of noise levels in excess of standards established in the local
general plan or noise ordinance, or applicable standards of other agencies?

Discussion of Effects: The project and any future development will not expose people to or generate noise
levels in excess of standards as established in The Ontario Plan FEIR (Section 5.12). No additional analysis will be
required at the time of site development review.

Mitigation: None required.

b. Exposure of persons to or generation of excessive groundborne vibration or groundborne noise levels?

Discussion of Effects: The uses associated with this project normally do not induce groundborne vibrations.
As such, no impacts are anticipated.

Mitigation: None required.

c. A substantial permanent increase in ambient noise levels in the project vicinity above levels existing
without the project?

Discussion of Effects: The project and any future development will not be a significant noise generator and
will not cause a substantial permanent increase in ambient noise levels because of the limited size and scope of the
project. Moreover, any future development will be required to operate within the noise levels permitted for industrial
development, pursuant to City of Ontario Development Code. Therefore, no increases in noise levels within the
vicinity of the project are anticipated.

Mitigation: None required.

d. Asubstantial temporary or periodic increase in ambient noise levels in the project vicinity above levels
existing without the project?

Discussion of Effects: Temporary construction activities associated with any future development will
minimally impact ambient noise levels. All construction machinery will be maintained according to industry standards
to help minimize the impacts. Normal activities associated with the project are unlikely to increase ambient noise
levels.

Mitigation: None required.

e. For a project located within the noise impact zones of the airport land use compatibility plan for ONT
and Chino Airports, would the project expose people residing or working in the project area to excessive noise
levels?

Discussion of Effects: The entire City is located within the Airport Influence Area (AlA) of ONT and the
location of the Noise Impact Zones are reflected in Policy Map 2-3 of the ONT ALUCP and the project site
is located outside the ONT Noise Impact Zones. The Chino Airport influence area is confined to areas of the
City south of Schaefer Avenue and west of Haven Avenue to the southern boundaries and the project site is
located outside of the Chino Airport AIA. The proposed project is consistent with the policies and criteria
of the ONT ALUCP, and, therefore, would not result in exposing people residing or working in the area to
excessive airport noise levels. Consequently, no impacts are anticipated.

Muitigation: None required.

f. For a project within the vicinity of a private airstrip, would the project expose people residing or

Page 26 of 33

Iltem E - 43 of 68



CEQA Environmental Checklist Form
File No(s).: PGPA18-005, PZC18-002, and PDEV18-030
working in the project area to excessive noise levels?

Discussion of Effects: The project site is not located within the vicinity of a private airstrip. Therefore, no
impacts are anticipated.

Mitigation: None required.
13. POPULATION & HOUSING. Would the project:

a. Induce substantial population growth in an area, either directly (for example, by proposing new homes
and businesses) or indirectly (for example, through extension of road or other infrastructure)?

Discussion of Effects: The project is located in a developed area and will not induce population growth.
Therefore, no impacts are anticipated

Mitigation: None required.

b. Displace substantial numbers of existing housing, necessitating the construction of replacement
housing elsewhere?

Discussion of Effects: The project site is currently undeveloped. Therefore, no impacts are anticipated.

Mitigation: None required.

c. Displace substantial numbers of people, necessitating the construction of replacement housing
elsewhere?

Discussion of Effects: The project site is currently undeveloped. Therefore, no impacts are anticipated.

Mitigation: None required.
14. PUBLIC SERVICES. Would the project:

a. Result in substantial adverse physical impacts associated with the provision of new or physically
altered governmental facilities, need for new or physically altered governmental facilities, the construction of
which could cause significant environmental impacts, in order to maintain acceptable service ratios, response
times or other performance objectives for any of the public services:

i Fire protection?

Discussion of Effects: The site is in a developed area currently served by the Ontario Fire Department.
The project and any future development will not require the construction of any new facilities or alteration of any
existing facilities or cause a decline in the levels of service, which could cause the need to construct new facilities. No
impacts are anticipated.

Mitigation: None required.
ii. Police protection?

Discussion of Effects: The site is in a developed area, currently served by the Ontario Police Department.
The project and any future development will not require the construction of any new facilities or alteration of any
existing facilities or cause a decline in the levels of service, which could cause the need to construct new facilities. No
impacts are anticipated.

Mitigation: None required.
iii. Schools?

Discussion of Effects: Any future development will be required to pay school fees as prescribed by state
law prior to the issuance of building permits. No impacts are anticipated.

Mitigation: None required.
iv. Parks?

Discussion of Effects: The site is in a developed area, currently served by the City of Ontario. The project
and any future development will not require the construction of any new facilities or alteration of any existing facilities
or cause a decline in the levels of service, which could cause the need to construct new facilities. No impacts are
anticipated.

Page 27 of 33

Iltem E - 44 of 68



CEQA Environmental Checklist Form
File No(s).: PGPA18-005, PZC18-002, and PDEV18-030

Mitigation: None required.

V. Other public facilities?

Discussion of Effects: The site is in a developed area, currently served by the City of Ontario. The project
and any future development will not require the construction of any new facilities or alteration of any existing facilities
or cause a decline in the levels of service, which could cause the need to construct new facilities. No impacts are
anticipated.

Muitigation: None required.
15. RECREATION. Would the project:

a. Increase the use of existing neighborhood and regional parks or other recreational facilities such that
substantial physical deterioration of the facility would occur or be accelerated?

Discussion of Effects: This project is not proposing any significant new housing or large employment
generator that would cause an increase in the use of neighborhood parks or other recreational facilities. No impacts
are anticipated.

Mitigation: None required.

b. Does the project include recreational facilities or require the construction or expansion of recreational
facilities that have an adverse physical effect on the environment?

Discussion of Effects: This project is not proposing any new significant housing or large employment
generator that would require the construction of neighborhood parks or other recreational facilities. No impacts are
anticipated.

Mitigation: None required.
16. TRANSPORTATION/TRAFFIC. Would the project:

a. Conflict with an applicable plan, ordinance or policy establishing measures of effectiveness for the
performance of the circulation system, taking into account all modes of transportation including mass transit
and non-motorized travel and relevant components of the circulation system, including but not limited?

Discussion of Effects: The project is in an area that is mostly developed with all street improvements existing.
The number of vehicle trips per day is not expected to be increased significantly. Therefore, the project and any future
development will not create a substantial increase in the number of vehicle trips, traffic volume or congestion at
intersections. Less than significant impacts are anticipated.

Mitigation: None required.

b. Conflict with an applicable congestion management program, including, but not limited to, level of
service standard and travel demand measures, or other standards established by the county congestion
management agency for designated roads or highways?

Discussion of Effects: The project is in an area that is mostly developed with all street improvements existing.
The project will not conflict with an applicable congestion management program or negatively impact the level of
service standards on adjacent arterials, as the amount of trips to be generated are minimal in comparison to existing
capacity in the congestion management program. Less than significant impacts are anticipated.

Mitigation: None required.

c. Result in a change in air traffic patterns, including either an increase in traffic levels or a change in
location that results in substantial safety risks?

Discussion of Effects: The project and any future development will not create a substantial safety risk or
interfere with air traffic patterns at Ontario International Airport as any anticipated development will be well under
the maximum allowable building height of 200 feet. No impacts are anticipated.

Mitigation: None required.

d. Substantially increase hazards due to a design feature (e.g., sharp curves or dangerous intersections)
or incompatible uses (e.g., farm equipment)?

Discussion of Effects: The project is in an area that is mostly developed. All street improvements are
complete and no alterations are proposed for adjacent intersections or arterials. Therefore, the project will not create

Page 28 of 33

Iltem E - 45 of 68



CEQA Environmental Checklist Form
File No(s).: PGPA18-005, PZC18-002, and PDEV18-030
a substantial increase in hazards due to a design feature. No impacts are anticipated.
Mitigation: None required.
e. Result in inadequate emergency access?

Discussion of Effects: The project will be designed to provide access for all emergency vehicles and will
therefore not create an inadequate emergency access. No impacts are anticipated.

Mitigation: None required.
f.  Result in inadequate parking capacity?

Discussion of Effects: The project and any future development are required to meet parking standards
established by the Ontario Development Code and will therefore not create an inadequate parking capacity. No impacts
are anticipated.

Mitigation: None required.

g. Conflict with adopted policies, plans, or programs supporting alternative transportation (e.g., bus
turnouts, bicycle racks)?

Discussion of Effects: The project does not conflict with any transportation policies, plans or programs.
Therefore, no impacts are anticipated.

Mitigation: None required.

17. TRIBAL CULTURAL RESOURCES. Would the project cause a substantial adverse change in the significance
of a tribal cultural resource, defined in Public Resources Code section 21074 as either a site, feature, place, cultural
landscape that is geographically defined in terms of the size and scope of the landscape, sacred place, or object with
cultural value to a California Native American tribe, and that is:

a. Listed or eligible for listing in the California Register of Historical Resources, or in a local register of
historical resources as defined in Public Resources Code section 5020.1(k)?

Discussion of Effects: The project site is vacant and does not contain any buildings, structures, or objects.
The site is currently in use as a pocket of land surrounded by a local access road, and was previously designated for
use as a public right-of-way. The project site is not listed, and is not eligible for listing, in the California Register of
Historical Resources or in the local register of historical resources as defined in Public Resources Code section
5020.1(k), as it does not meet the criteria for designation as listed in the California Register of Historical Resources.
Therefore, no adverse impacts are anticipated.

Mitigation: None required.

b. A resource determined by the lead agency, in its discretion and supported by substantial evidence, to
be significant pursuant to criteria set forth in subdivision (c) of Public Resources Code section 5024.1. In
applying the criteria set forth in subdivision (c) of Public Resources Code section 5024.1, the lead agency shall
consider the significance of the resource to a California Native American tribe.

Discussion of Effects: Per the regulations and guidelines of SB-18, the City of Ontario requested a
notification list from the Native American Heritage Commission (NAHC) and proceeded to notify the contacts on said
list of the project. As of October 10, 2018, staff has received a total of four comments, including one request for
consultation. The City of Ontario completed the requested consultation, and requested mitigation measures are
consistent with those previously addressed in The Ontario Plan EIR and will be made conditions of approval for any
future development. The Ontario Plan requires the following mitigation measures, which are consistent with the Tribal
requests received under SB18 and will be required for all future development projects, as referenced below:

i.  If human remains are found during project grading/excavation/construction activities, the area shall
not be disturbed until any required investigation is completed by the County Coroner and Native American
consultation has been completed (if deemed applicable).

ii. If any archeological or paleontological resources are found during project
grading/excavation/construction, the area shall not be disturbed until the significance of the resource is determined. If
determined to be significant, the resource shall be recovered by a qualified archeologist or paleontologist consistent
with current standards and guidelines, or other appropriate measures implemented.

Page 29 of 33

Iltem E - 46 of 68



CEQA Environmental Checklist Form
File No(s).: PGPA18-005, PZC18-002, and PDEV18-030

iii. In areas of documented or inferred archaeological and/or paleontological resource presence, City
staff shall require applicants for development permits to provide studies to document the presence/absence of such
resources. On properties where resources are identified, such studies shall provide a detailed mitigation plan, including
a monitoring program and recovery and/or in situ preservation plan, based on the recommendations of a qualified
cultural preservation expert. The mitigation plan shall include the following requirements:

(D) Archaeologists and/or paleontologists shall be retained for the project and will be on call
during grading and other significant ground-disturbing activities.

2 Should any cultural resources be discovered, no further grading shall occur in the area of
the discovery until the Planning Director or designee is satisfied that adequate provisions are in place to protect these
resources.

3) Unanticipated discoveries shall be evaluated for significance by a San Bernardino County
Certified Professional Archaeologist/Paleontologist. If significance criteria are met, then the project shall be required
to perform data recovery, professional identification, radiocarbon dates, and other special studies; submit materials to
a museum for permanent curation; and provide a comprehensive final report including catalog with museum numbers.

Mitigation: None required.
18. UTILITIES AND SERVICE SYSTEMS. Would the project:
a. [Exceed wastewater treatment requirements of the applicable Regional Water Quality Control Board?

Discussion of Effects: The proposed project site is served by the City of Ontario sewer system, which has
waste treated by the Inland Empire Utilities Agency at the RP-1 treatment plant. The project and any future
development are required to meet the requirements of the Ontario Engineering Department regarding wastewater. No
impacts are anticipated.

Muitigation: None required.

b. Require or result in the construction of new water or wastewater treatment facilities or expansion of
existing facilities, the construction of which could cause significant environmental effects?

Discussion of Effects: The proposed project is served by the City of Ontario sewer system and which has
waste treated by the Inland Empire Utilities Agency at the RP-1 treatment plant. RP-1 is not at capacity and this project
and any future development will not cause RP-1 to exceed capacity. The project will therefore not require the
construction of new wastewater treatment facilities, or the expansion of existing facilities. No impacts are anticipated.

Mitigation: None required.

c. Require or result in the construction of new storm water drainage facilities or expansion of existing
facilities, the construction of which could cause significant environmental effects?

Discussion of Effects: The proposed project is served by the City of Ontario. The project and any future
development are required to meet the requirements of the Ontario Engineering Department regarding storm drain
facilities. No impacts are anticipated.

Mitigation: None required.

d. Have sufficient water supplies available to serve the project from existing entitlements and resources,
or are new or expanded entitlements needed? In making this determination, the City shall consider whether
the project is subject to the water supply assessment requirements of Water Code Section 10910, et seq. (SB
610), and the requirements of Government Code Section 664737 (SB 221).

Discussion of Effects: The project site is served by the City of Ontario water system. There is currently a
sufficient water supply available to the City of Ontario to serve this project and any future development. No impacts
are anticipated.

Mitigation: None required.

e. Result in a determination by the wastewater treatment provider that serves or may serve the project
that it has adequate capacity to serve the project's projected demand in addition to the provider's existing
commitments?

Discussion of Effects: The proposed project site is served by the City of Ontario sewer system, which has
waste treated by the Inland Empire Utilities Agency at the RP-1 treatment plant. RP-1 is not at capacity and this project
will not cause RP-1 to exceed capacity. No impacts are anticipated.

Page 30 of 33

ltem E - 47 of 68



CEQA Environmental Checklist Form
File No(s).: PGPA18-005, PZC18-002, and PDEV18-030

Mitigation: None required.

f. Be served by a landfill with sufficient permitted capacity to accommodate the project's solid waste
disposal needs?

Discussion of Effects: City of Ontario serves the proposed project. Currently, the City of Ontario contracts
with a waste disposal company that transports trash to a landfill with sufficient capacity to handle the City’s solid
waste disposal needs. No impacts are anticipated.

Mitigation: None required.
g. Comply with federal, state, and local statutes and regulations related to solid waste?

Discussion of Effects: Any future development shall be required to comply with federal, state, and local
statues and regulations regarding solid waste. Therefore, no impacts are anticipated.

Mitigation: None required.
19. MANDATORY FINDINGS OF SIGNIFICANCE.

a. Does the project have the potential to degrade the quality of the environment, substantially reduce the
habitat or a fish or wildlife species, cause a fish or wildlife population to drop below self-sustaining levels,
threaten to eliminate a plant or animal community, reduce the number or restrict the range of a rare or
endangered plant or animal or eliminate important examples of the major periods of California history or
prehistory?

Discussion of Effects: The proposed project does not have the potential to reduce wildlife habitat and threaten
a wildlife species. Therefore, no impacts are anticipated.

Mitigation: None required.

b. Does the project have the potential to achieve short-term environmental goals to the disadvantage of
long-term environmental goals?

Discussion of Effects: The project does not have the potential to achieve short-term environmental goals to
the disadvantage of long-term environmental goals.

Mitigation: None required.

c. Does the project have impacts that are individually limited, but cumulatively considerable?
(""Cumulatively considerable™ means that the incremental effects of a project are considerable when viewed in
connection with the effects of past projects, the effects of other current project, and the effects of probable
future projects.)

Discussion of Effects: The project does not have impacts that are cumulatively considerable.

Mitigation: None required.

d. Does the project have environmental effects that will cause substantial adverse effects on human
beings, either directly or indirectly?

Discussion of Effects: The project does not have environmental effects that will cause substantial adverse
effects on human beings, either directly or indirectly.

Mitigation: None required.

EARLIER ANALYSES

(Earlier analyses may be used where, pursuant to the tiering, program EIR, or other CEQA process, one or more
effects have been adequately analyzed in an earlier EIR or Negative Declaration. Section 15063(c)(3)(D)):

1) Earlier Analyses Used. Identify earlier analyses used and state where they are available for review.
a) The Ontario Plan Final EIR
b) The Ontario Plan
c) City of Ontario Development Code

Page 31 of 33

Iltem E - 48 of 68



CEQA Environmental Checklist Form
File No(s).: PGPA18-005, PZC18-002, and PDEV18-030
d) City of Ontario Community Climate Action Plan
e) Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan

All documents listed above are on file with the City of Ontario Planning Department, 303 East “B” Street, Ontario,
California 91764, (909) 395-2036.

2) Impacts Adequately Addressed. Identify which effects from the above checklist were within the scope of, and
adequately analyzed in, an earlier document pursuant to applicable legal standards.

MITIGATION MEASURES

(For effects that are ““Less than Significant with Mitigation Incorporated,” describe the mitigation measures, which
were incorporated or refined from the earlier document and the extent to which they address site-specific conditions
for the project.)

No mitigation measures are required for this project. Any future development shall be required to abide by all
mitigation measures as set forth in The Ontario Plan FEIR.

Page 32 of 33

Iltem E - 49 of 68



CEQA Environmental Checklist Form
File No(s).: PGPA18-005, PZC18-002, and PDEV18-030

Exhibit A — Project Aerial and Proposed Site Plan

S
<
Q
o
8
2
=
w

Page 33 of 33
Item E - 50 of 68



RESOLUTION NO. [INSERT #]

A RESOLUTION OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF
ONTARIO, CALIFORNIA, RECOMMENDING THE CITY COUNCIL
APPROVE FILE NO. PGPA18-005, AN AMENDMENT TO THE LAND USE
ELEMENT OF THE POLICY PLAN (GENERAL PLAN), REVISING
EXHIBIT LU-01 (OFFICIAL LAND USE PLAN) AND EXHIBIT LU-03
(FUTURE BUILDOUT), AFFECTING PROPERTY LOCATED WITHIN
NORTH LOOP CIRCLE, GENERALLY WEST OF ETIWANDA AVENUE
AND SOUTH OF THE INTERSTATE 10 FREEWAY, TO ESTABLISH A
LAND USE DESIGNATION OF INDUSTRIAL, AS THE SITE CURRENTLY
HAS NO LAND USE DESIGNATION OR APN, AND MAKING FINDINGS
IN SUPPORT THEREOF—APN: N/A. (SEE ATTACHMENTS 1 AND 2)
(PART OF CYCLE 3 FOR THE 2018 CALENDAR YEAR).

WHEREAS, the City of Ontario has filed an Application for the approval of a
General Plan Amendment, File No. PGPA18-005, as described in the title of this
Resolution (hereinafter referred to as "Application” or "Project”); and

WHEREAS, the City of Ontario adopted the Policy Plan (General Plan) as part of
The Ontario Plan in January 2010. Since the adoption of The Ontario Plan, the City has
evaluated Exhibits LU-01: Official Land Use Plan and LU-03: Future Buildout further and
is proposing modifications; and

WHEREAS, the Application applies to 2.4 acres of land surrounded by North Loop
Circle, generally located west of Etiwanda Avenue and south of the I-10 Freeway; and

WHEREAS, the proposed change to Exhibit LU-01 Official Land Use Plan includes
a change to the land use designation of a certain property shown on Exhibit A to provide
a land use designations on this property where one does not exist in order to facilitate the
development of the site; and

WHEREAS, Policy Plan Exhibit LU-03 (Future Buildout) specifies the expected
buildout for the City of Ontario, incorporating the adopted land use designations. The
proposed changes to Exhibit LU-01 (Official Land Use Plan) will require that Exhibit LU-
03 (Future Buildout) is modified to be consistent with Exhibit LU-01 (Official Land Use
Plan), as depicted on Exhibit B, attached; and

WHEREAS, the Project is located within the Airport Influence Area of Ontario
International Airport, which encompasses lands within parts of San Bernardino, Riverside,
and Los Angeles Counties, and is subject to, and must be consistent with, the policies
and criteria set forth in the Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan
(“ALUCP”), which applies only to jurisdictions within San Bernardino County, and

Iltem E - 51 of 68



Planning Commission Resolution
File No. PGPA18-005

October 23, 2018

Page 2

addresses the noise, safety, airspace protection, and overflight impacts of current and
future airport activity; and

WHEREAS, the Application is a project pursuant to the California Environmental
Quality Act (Public Resources Code Section 21000 et seq.) ("CEQA"); and

WHEREAS, as the first action on the Project, on October 23, 2018, the Planning
Commission recommended approval of a Resolution recommending City Council adopt
an Addendum to the Environmental Impact Report (SCH# 2008101140) adopted by City
Council on January 27, 2010 for File No. PGPA06-001. The Addendum finds that the
proposed project introduces no new significant environmental impacts, and all previously
adopted mitigation measures are incorporated into the Project by reference; and

WHEREAS, on October 23, 2018 the Planning Commission of the City of Ontario
conducted a hearing to consider the Project, and concluded said hearing on that date;
and

WHEREAS, all legal prerequisites to the adoption of this Resolution have occurred.

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY FOUND, DETERMINED, AND RESOLVED
by the Planning Commission of the City of Ontario, as follows:

SECTION 1: Environmental Determination and Findings. As the
recommending body for the Project, the Planning Commission has reviewed and
considered the information contained in the administrative record for the Project. Based
upon the facts and information contained in the administrative record, including all written
and oral evidence presented to the Planning Commission, the Planning Commission finds
as follows:

(1)  The environmental impacts of this project were reviewed in conjunction with
an Addendum to The Ontario Plan Environmental Impact Report — SCH# 2008101140
(“Certified EIR”), which was certified by the Ontario City Council on January 27, 2010, in
conjunction with File No. PGPA06-001.

(2) The Addendum and administrative record have been completed in
compliance with CEQA, the State CEQA Guidelines, and the City of Ontario Local CEQA
Guidelines; and

3) The City's "Guidelines for the Implementation of the California
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA)" provide for the use of a single environmental
assessment in situations where the impacts of subsequent projects are adequately
analyzed. This Application introduces no new significant environmental impacts.

Iltem E - 52 of 68



Planning Commission Resolution
File No. PGPA18-005

October 23, 2018

Page 3

(4)  All previously adopted mitigation measures shall be a condition of project
approval, as they are applicable to the Project, and are incorporated herein by this
reference.

(5) The Addendum contains a complete and accurate reporting of the
environmental impacts associated with the Project, and reflects the independent
judgment of the Planning Commission; and

(6)  There is no substantial evidence in the administrative record supporting a
fair argument that the project may result in significant environmental impacts; and

SECTION 2: Additional Environmental Review Not Required. Based on the
Addendum, all related information presented to the Planning Commission, and the
specific findings set forth in Section 1, above, the Planning Commission finds that the
preparation of a subsequent or supplemental environmental impact report is not required
for the Project, as the Project:

(1) Does not constitute substantial changes to the Certified EIR that will require
major revisions to the Certified EIR due to the involvement of new significant
environmental effects or a substantial increase in the severity of previously identified
significant effects; and

(2) Does not constitute substantial changes with respect to the circumstances
under which the Certified EIR was prepared, that will require major revisions to the
Certified EIR due to the involvement of new significant environmental effects or a
substantial increase in the severity of the previously identified significant effects; and.

(3) Does not contain new information of substantial importance that was not
known and could not have been known with the exercise of reasonable diligence at the
time the Certified EIR was certified/adopted, that shows any of the following:

(@  The project will have one or more significant effects not discussed in
the Certified EIR; or

(b) Significant effects previously examined will be substantially more
severe than shown in the Certified EIR; or

(c) Mitigation measures or alternatives previously found not to be

feasible would in fact be feasible and would substantially reduce one or more significant
effects of the Project, but the City declined to adopt such measures; or

Iltem E - 53 of 68



Planning Commission Resolution
File No. PGPA18-005

October 23, 2018

Page 4

(d) Mitigation measures or alternatives considerably different from those
analyzed in the Certified EIR would substantially reduce one or more significant effects
on the environment, but which the City declined to adopt.

SECTION 3: Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan
(“ALUCP”) Compliance. The California State Aeronautics Act (Public Utilities Code
Section 21670 et seq.) requires that an Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan be prepared
for all public use airports in the State; and requires that local land use plans and individual
development proposals must be consistent with the policies set forth in the adopted
Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan. On April 19, 2011, the City Council of the City of
Ontario approved and adopted the Ontario International Airport Land use Compatibility
Plan (“ALUCP"), establishing the Airport Influence Area for Ontario International Airport
(“ONT"), which encompasses lands within parts of San Bernardino, Riverside, and Los
Angeles Counties, and limits future land uses and development within the Airport
Influence Area, as they relate to noise, safety, airspace protection, and overflight impacts
of current and future airport activity. As the recommending body for the Project, the
Planning Commission has reviewed and considered the facts and information contained
in the Application and supporting documentation against the ALUCP compatibility factors,
including [1] Safety Criteria (ALUCP Table 2-2) and Safety Zones (ALUCP Map 2-2), [2]
Noise Criteria (ALUCP Table 2-3) and Noise Impact Zones (ALUCP Map 2-3), [3]
Airspace protection Zones (ALUCP Map 2-4), and [4] Overflight Notification Zones
(ALUCP Map 2-5). As the project site is not located within any safety or noise impact
zones for either the Ontario or Chino airports, is not a high terrain zone, and has a
maximum allowable building height of 200 feet, the Planning Commission finds and
determines that the Project and any future development will be consistent with the policies
and criteria set forth within the ALUCP.

SECTION 4: Concluding Facts and Reasons. Based upon the substantial
evidence presented to the Planning Commission during the above-referenced hearing,
and upon the specific findings set forth in Sections 1 through 3, above, the Planning
Commission hereby concludes as follows:

(1) The proposed General Plan Amendment is consistent with the goals and
policies of The Ontario Plan as follows:

LU2-1 Land Use Decisions. We minimize adverse impacts on adjacent
properties when considering land use and zoning requests.

Compliance: The proposed General Plan Amendment closely coordinates

with land use designations in the surrounding area which will not increase adverse
impacts on adjacent properties.

Iltem E - 54 of 68



Planning Commission Resolution
File No. PGPA18-005

October 23, 2018

Page 5

= Goal LU3. Staff, regulations, and processes that support and allow flexible
response to conditions and circumstances in order to achieve the Vision.

Compliance: The proposed land use designation and zone change
applications will provide consistency between the project site and the surrounding area,
while maintaining a logical land use pattern in and around the affected area. Further, the
applications will allow for the development of the site to occur.

(2)  The proposed General Plan Amendment would not be detrimental to the
public interest, health, safety, convenience, or general welfare of the City;

(3) The Land Use Element is a mandatory element allowed four general plan
amendments per calendar year and this general plan amendment is the third amendment
to the Land Use Element of the 2018 calendar year consistent with Government Code
Section 65358;

4) The project is consistent with the Housing Element of the Policy Plan
(General Plan) component of The Ontario Plan, as the project site is not one of the
properties in the Available Land Inventory contained in Table A-3 (Available Land by
Planning Area) of the Housing Element Technical Report Appendix. Changing the land
use designation of the subject property from undesignated to Industrial (0.55 FAR) will
not impact the City’'s Regional Housing Needs Allocation obligations or the City’s ability
to satisfy its share of the region’s future housing need.

(5) During the amendment of the general plan, opportunities for the
involvement of citizens, California Native American Indian tribes (Government Code
Section 65352.3.), public agencies, public utility companies, and civic, education, and
other community groups, through public hearings or other means were implemented
consistent with Government Code Section 65351.

SECTION 5: Planning Commission Action. Based upon the findings and
conclusions set forth in Sections 1 through 4, above, the Planning Commission hereby
RECOMMENDS THE CITY COUNCIL APPROVES the proposed General Plan
Amendment, as depicted in Attachment 1 (Policy Plan Land Use Plan (Exhibit LU-01)
Revision) and Attachment 2 (Future Buildout (Exhibit LU-03) Revision) of this Resolution.

SECTION 6: Indemnification. The Applicant shall agree to defend, indemnify and
hold harmless, the City of Ontario or its agents, officers, and employees from any claim,
action or proceeding against the City of Ontario or its agents, officers or employees to
attack, set aside, void, or annul this approval. The City of Ontario shall promptly notify the
applicant of any such claim, action, or proceeding, and the City of Ontario shall cooperate
fully in the defense.

Iltem E - 55 of 68



Planning Commission Resolution
File No. PGPA18-005

October 23, 2018

Page 6

SECTION 7 of proceedings on which these findings have been based are located
at the City of Ontario City Hall, 303 East “B” Street, Ontario, California 91764. The
custodian for these records is the City Clerk of the City of Ontario.

SECTION 8: Certification to Adoption. The Secretary shall certify to the
adoption of the Resolution.

The Secretary Pro Tempore for the Planning Commission of the City of Ontario shall
certify as to the adoption of this Resolution.

| hereby certify that the foregoing Resolution was duly and regularly introduced,
passed and adopted by the Planning Commission of the City of Ontario at a regular
meeting thereof held on the 23rd day of October, 2018, and the foregoing is a full, true
and correct copy of said Resolution, and has not been amended or repealed.

Richard D. Delman
Planning Commission Chairman

ATTEST:

Cathy Wahlstrom
Planning Director
Secretary of Planning Commission

Iltem E - 56 of 68



Planning Commission Resolution
File No. PGPA18-005
October 23, 2018

Page 7

STATE OF CALIFORNIA )
COUNTY OF SAN BERNARDINO)
CITY OF ONTARIO )

I, Gwen Berendsen, Secretary Pro Tempore of the Planning Commission of the
City of Ontario, DO HEREBY CERTIFY that foregoing Resolution No. PC18-[insert #] was
duly passed and adopted by the Planning Commission of the City of Ontario at their
regular meeting held on October 23, 2018, by the following roll call vote, to wit:
AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:

ABSTAIN:

Gwen Berendsen
Secretary Pro Tempore

Iltem E - 57 of 68



Planning Commission Resolution
File No. PGPA18-005

October 23, 2018

Page 8

ATTACHMENT 1: Policy Plan Land Use Plan (Exhibit LU-01) Revision

TOP:

Rural Residential Neighborhood Commercial Airport Public Facility

General Commercial Land Fill - Public School

Low Density Residential

Low-Medium Density . ) - Open  Space - \\V

Residential Office Commercial | M Pardand \ \ COM Overlay
Medium Density - I i

Residential Hospitality S Open Space - Water BP Overlay

) . — ) Open Space — Non- W
- High Density Residential Business Park V Recreation S\\ IND Overlay
- Mixed Use Industrial M Rail

Assessor Parcel Number(s) Proposed Policy Plan Land

Existing Policy Plan Land Use Involved Use

Q The property does not currently Q

have a parcel number (APN).

LOOP

=1 (1 of 1 properties)

—

ETIWANDA
'ETIWANDA

Surrounded by North Loop
No Designation Circle, west of Etiwanda Avenue Industrial (0.55 FAR)
and south of the I-10 Freeway

Iltem E - 58 of 68



Planning Commission Resolution
File No. PGPA18-005

October 23, 2018
Page 9

ATTACHMENT 2: Future Buildout (Exhibit LU-03) Revision

= T H E A FTRA T AC> Il \)O Il- ;N
LU-03 Future Buildout® R s
Non-Residential
Land Use Acres? [ Assumed Density/Intensity? Units Population* Square Feet Jobs®
Residential
Rural 529 [ 2.0 dufac 1,059 4,232
Low Density® 7,255 | 4.0 du/ac (OMC) 30,584 122,244
4.5 du/ac {NMC)
Low-Medium® 999 | 8.5 du/ac 8,492 33,941
Density
Medium Density 1,897 | 18.0 dufac (OMC) 38,200 133,791
22.0 dufac (NMC)
High Density 183 | 35.0 du/ac 6,415 21,470
Subtotal 10,864 84,750 315,679
Mixed Use -
« Downtown 113 | » 60% of the area 2t 35 du/ac 2,365 4,729 1,569,554 2,808
+  40% of the area at 0.80 FAR for
office and retail
» East Holt 57 | » 25% of the area at 30 du/ac 428 856 1,740,483 3,913
Boulevard + 50% of the area at 1.0 EAR
office
e 25% of area at 0.80 FAR ratail
+  Meredith a3 [« 23% of the area at 37.4 du/ac 800 1,600 1,172,788 1,462
e 72% 3t 0.35 FAR for office and
retail uses
» 5% at 0.75 FAR for Lodging
= Transit Center 76 | = 10% of the area at 60 du/ac 457 913 2,983,424 5,337
* 90% of the area at 1.0 EAR
office and retail
« Inland Empire 37 | = 50% of the area at 20 du/ac 368 736 352,662 768
Corridor +  30% of area at 0.50 FAR office
»  20% of area t 0.35 FAR retail
+ Guast 77 | = 20% of the area at 20 du/ac 465 929 2,192,636 4,103
+ 30% of area at 1.0 FAR retail
» 50% of area at .70 FAR office
« Ontario 345 | = 4,139 8,278 9,014,306 22,563
Center .
+ Ontario Mills 240 | « 5% of arez at 40 du/ac 479 953 5,477,126 7,285
+« 20% of area at 0.75 FAR office
¢ 75% of area at 0.5 FAR retail
« NMC 315 | « 30% of area at 35 du/ac 3,311 6,621 5,729,889 17,188
West/South +  70% of area at 0.7 EAR office
and retail
+ NMC East 264 |« 30% of area at 25 du/ac 1,978 3,956 2,584,524 4,439
* 30% of area at 0.35 EAR for
office
= 40% of area at 0.3 FAR for retail
uses
« Euclid/Francis 10 | = 50% of the area at 20 du/ac 156 312 181,210 419
* 50% of area at 0.8 FAR retail
« SR-60/ 41 |« 18% of the area at 25 du/ac 185 369 924,234 2,098
Hamner *» 57% of the area at 0.25 FAR
Tuscana retail
Village « 25% of the area at 1.5 FAR
office
Subtotal 1,668 15,129 30,257 34,922,836 | 72,383

Iltem E - 59 of 68



Planning Commission Resolution
File No. PGPA18-005

October 23, 2018

Page 10

THE = ONTARIO PL

LU'03 FUtLII’E Bu'ldoul1 A FRAMEWORE FOR THE FUTURE
Non-Residential
Land Use Acres? | Assumed Density/Intensity? | Units Population® Square Feet Jobs?

Retail/Service

Neighborhood® 281 | 0.30 FAR 3,671,585 3,884

Commercial

Ganeral 533 | 0.30 FAR 5,954,199 6,470

Commercial

Office/ 514 | 0.75 FAR 15,805,775 37,269

Commercial

Hospitality 141 | 1.00 FAR 5,157,642 7,060

Subtotal 1,470 33,599,200 59,682

Emplovment

Business Park 1,507 | 0.40 FAR 26,261,610 46,075

Industrial £276 | 0.55 EAR 252554800 | 1344248
6,372 152,661,502 134,132

Subtotal FBFF 178816499 | 186113
7,879 178,923,112 | 180,207

Other

Open Space- 1,232 | Not applicable

MNon-Recreation

Open Space- 950 | Mot applicabla

Parkland®

Open Space- 59 | Mot applicable

Water

Public Facility 97 | Not applicable

Public School 532 | Mot applicable

LA/ Ontario 1,677 | Not applicabla

International

Airport

Landfill 137 | Not applicable

Railroad 251 | Not applicable

Roadways 4,871 | Not applicable

Subtotal 9,906

Total 3784 99,878 345,936 FHFAO5508 | I1EIIT

31,786 247,445,148 | 312,272

Notes

1 Historically, citywide buildout levels do not achieve the maximum allowable density/intensity on every parcel and are, on average,

ed by the Policy Plan. Accordingly, the buildout projections in this Policy Plan do not assume buildout at the
maximum density or intensity and instead are adjusted downward. To view the buildout assumptions, access the Methodology
report.

2 Acres are given as adjusted gross acreages, which do not include the right-of-way for roadways, flood control facilities, or railroads.

3 Assumed Density/Intensity includes both residential density, expressed as units per acre, and non-residential intensity, expressed
as floor area ratio (FAR), which is the amount of building sguare feet in relation to the size of the lot,

4 Projections of pepulation by residential designation are basad on a persons-per-househaold factor that varias by housing type. For
more information, access the Methodology report.

5 To view the factors used to generate the number of employess by land use category, access the Methodology report.

6 Acreages and corresponding buildout estimates for these designations do not reflaect underlying land uses within the Business Park,
Industrial and Commercial Overlays. Estimates for these areas are included within the corresponding Business Park, Industrial and
General Commercial categories.

Iltem E - 60 of 68



RESOLUTION NO. [INSERT #]

A RESOLUTION OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF
ONTARIO, CALIFORNIA, RECOMMENDING THE CITY COUNCIL
APPROVE FILE NO. PZC18-002, A ZONE CHANGE TO ESTABLISH A
ZONE OF IG (GENERAL INDUSTRIAL) ON A LOT TOTALING 2.4 ACRES
OF LAND THAT CURRENTLY DOES NOT HAVE A ZONING
DESIGNATION OR AN APN, TO BRING PROPERTY ZONING INTO
CONSISTENCY WITH THE POLICY PLAN (GENERAL PLAN) LAND USE
PLAN (EXHIBIT LU-01), AFFECTING PROPERTY LOCATED WITHIN
NORTH LOOP CIRCLE, GENERALLY WEST OF ETIWANDA AVENUE
AND SOUTH OF THE INTERSTATE 10 FREEWAY AND MAKING
FINDINGS IN SUPPORT THEREOF—APN: N/A. (SEE ATTACHMENT A)
(PART OF CYCLE 3 FOR THE 2018 CALENDAR YEAR).

WHEREAS, the City of Ontario has filed an Application for the approval of a Zone
Change, File No. PZC18-002, as described in the title of this Resolution (hereinafter
referred to as "Application” or "Project"); and

WHEREAS, the Application applies to 2.4 acres of land surrounded by North Loop
Circle, generally located west of Etiwanda Avenue and south of the 1-10 Freeway; and

WHEREAS, the Project was filed in conjunction with a General Plan Amendment
(PGPA18-005), and that the proposed Zone Change will bring the parcel into consistency
with the Vision of The Ontario Plan (TOP) and the Policy Plan (General Plan) component
of TOP; and

WHEREAS, the Project is located within the Airport Influence Area of Ontario
International Airport, which encompasses lands within parts of San Bernardino, Riverside,
and Los Angeles Counties, and is subject to, and must be consistent with, the policies
and criteria set forth in the Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan
(“ALUCP”), which applies only to jurisdictions within San Bernardino County, and
addresses the noise, safety, airspace protection, and overflight impacts of current and
future airport activity; and

WHEREAS, the Application is a project pursuant to the California Environmental
Quality Act (Public Resources Code Section 21000 et seq.) ("CEQA"); and

WHEREAS, as the first action on the Project, on October 23, 2018, the Planning
Commission recommended approval of a Resolution recommending City Council adopt
an Addendum to the Environmental Impact Report (SCH# 2008101140) adopted by City
Council on January 27, 2010 for File No. PGPA06-001. The Addendum finds that the
proposed project introduces no new significant environmental impacts, and all previously
adopted mitigation measures are incorporated into the Project by reference; and

Iltem E - 61 of 68



Planning Commission Resolution
File No. PZC18-002

October 23, 2018

Page 2

WHEREAS, on October 23, 2018 the Planning Commission of the City of Ontario
conducted a hearing to consider the Project, and concluded said hearing on that date;
and

WHEREAS, all legal prerequisites to the adoption of this Resolution have occurred.

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY FOUND, DETERMINED, AND RESOLVED
by the Planning Commission of the City of Ontario, as follows:

SECTION 1: Environmental Determination and Findings. As the
recommending body for the Project, the Planning Commission has reviewed and
considered the information contained in the administrative record for the Project. Based
upon the facts and information contained in the administrative record, including all written
and oral evidence presented to the Planning Commission, the Planning Commission finds
as follows:

(1) The environmental impacts of this project were reviewed in conjunction with
an Addendum to The Ontario Plan Environmental Impact Report — SCH# 2008101140
(“Certified EIR"), which was certified by the Ontario City Council on January 27, 2010, in
conjunction with File No. PGPA06-001.

(2) The Addendum and administrative record have been completed in
compliance with CEQA, the State CEQA Guidelines, and the City of Ontario Local CEQA
Guidelines; and

(3) The City's "Guidelines for the Implementation of the California
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA)" provide for the use of a single environmental
assessment in situations where the impacts of subsequent projects are adequately
analyzed. This Application introduces no new significant environmental impacts.

(4)  All previously adopted mitigation measures shall be a condition of project
approval, as they are applicable to the Project, and are incorporated herein by this
reference.

(5) The Addendum contains a complete and accurate reporting of the
environmental impacts associated with the Project, and reflects the independent
judgment of the Planning Commission; and

(6)  There is no substantial evidence in the administrative record supporting a
fair argument that the project may result in significant environmental impacts; and

SECTION 2: Additional Environmental Review Not Required. Based on the
Addendum, all related information presented to the Planning Commission, and the

Iltem E - 62 of 68



Planning Commission Resolution
File No. PZC18-002

October 23, 2018

Page 3

specific findings set forth in Section 1, above, the Planning Commission finds that the
preparation of a subsequent or supplemental environmental impact report is not required
for the Project, as the Project:

(1) Does not constitute substantial changes to the Certified EIR that will require
major revisions to the Certified EIR due to the involvement of new significant
environmental effects or a substantial increase in the severity of previously identified
significant effects; and

(2) Does not constitute substantial changes with respect to the circumstances
under which the Certified EIR was prepared, that will require major revisions to the
Certified EIR due to the involvement of new significant environmental effects or a
substantial increase in the severity of the previously identified significant effects; and.

3) Does not contain new information of substantial importance that was not
known and could not have been known with the exercise of reasonable diligence at the
time the Certified EIR was certified/adopted, that shows any of the following:

(@) The project will have one or more significant effects not discussed in
the Certified EIR; or

(b)  Significant effects previously examined will be substantially more
severe than shown in the Certified EIR; or

(© Mitigation measures or alternatives previously found not to be
feasible would in fact be feasible and would substantially reduce one or more significant
effects of the Project, but the City declined to adopt such measures; or

(d) Mitigation measures or alternatives considerably different from those
analyzed in the Certified EIR would substantially reduce one or more significant effects
on the environment, but which the City declined to adopt.

SECTION 3: Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan
(“ALUCP”) Compliance. The California State Aeronautics Act (Public Utilities Code
Section 21670 et seq.) requires that an Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan be prepared
for all public use airports in the State; and requires that local land use plans and individual
development proposals must be consistent with the policies set forth in the adopted
Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan. On April 19, 2011, the City Council of the City of
Ontario approved and adopted the Ontario International Airport Land use Compatibility
Plan (“ALUCP"), establishing the Airport Influence Area for Ontario International Airport
(“ONT"), which encompasses lands within parts of San Bernardino, Riverside, and Los
Angeles Counties, and limits future land uses and development within the Airport
Influence Area, as they relate to noise, safety, airspace protection, and overflight impacts

Iltem E - 63 of 68



Planning Commission Resolution
File No. PZC18-002

October 23, 2018

Page 4

of current and future airport activity. As the recommending body for the Project, the
Planning Commission has reviewed and considered the facts and information contained
in the Application and supporting documentation against the ALUCP compatibility factors,
including [1] Safety Criteria (ALUCP Table 2-2) and Safety Zones (ALUCP Map 2-2), [2]
Noise Criteria (ALUCP Table 2-3) and Noise Impact Zones (ALUCP Map 2-3), [3]
Airspace protection Zones (ALUCP Map 2-4), and [4] Overflight Notification Zones
(ALUCP Map 2-5). As the project site is not located within any safety or noise impact
zones for either the Ontario or Chino airports, is not a high terrain zone, and has a
maximum allowable building height of 200 feet, the Planning Commission finds and
determines that the Project and any future development will be consistent with the policies
and criteria set forth within the ALUCP.

SECTION 4: Concluding Facts and Reasons. Based upon the substantial
evidence presented to the Planning Commission during the above-referenced hearing,
and upon the specific findings set forth in Sections 1 through 3, above, the Planning
Commission hereby concludes as follows:

(1) The proposed Zone Change is consistent with the goals, policies, plans and
exhibits of the Vision, Policy Plan (General Plan), and City Council Priorities:

LU2-1 Land Use Decisions. We minimize adverse impacts on adjacent
properties when considering land use and zoning requests.

Compliance: The proposed Zone Change closely coordinates with, land
uses, zoning designations and land use designations in the surrounding area which will
not increase adverse impacts on adjacent properties.

Goal LU3. Staff, regulations, and processes that support and allow flexible
response to conditions and circumstances in order to achieve the Vision.

Compliance: The proposed land use designation and zone change
applications will provide consistency between the project site and the surrounding area,
while maintaining a logical land use pattern in and around the affected area. Further, the
applications will allow for the development of the site to occur.

(2)  The proposed Zone Change would not be detrimental to the public interest,
health, safety, convenience, or general welfare of the City.

Compliance: The proposed Zone Change will be closely coordinated with

the surrounding area. Further, future development will be required to meet Ontario
Development Code and Municipal Code standards.

Iltem E - 64 of 68



Planning Commission Resolution
File No. PZC18-002

October 23, 2018

Page 5

3) The proposed Zone Change will not adversely affect the harmonious
relationship with adjacent properties and land uses, in that it has been coordinated;

Compliance: The proposed Zone Change will be closely coordinated to
allow development to occur which shall be consistent with the surrounding neighborhood
in terms of scale, massing, and industrial land uses. Further, future development will be
required to meet Ontario Development Code and Municipal Code standards.

(4) The subject site is physically suitable, including, but not limited to, parcel
size, shape, access, and availability of utilities, for the request and anticipated
development.

Compliance: The subiject site is surrounded by developed land, including
industrial uses and transportation routes. The project site is large enough to be developed
with a building suitable for general industrial purposes, and will be developed to be
consistent with existing industrial buildings within the project vicinity.

SECTION 5: Planning Commission Action. Based upon the findings and
conclusions set forth in Sections 1 through 4, above, the Planning Commission hereby
RECOMMENDS THE CITY COUNCIL APPROVES the proposed Zone Change, as
depicted in Attachment A of this Resolution.

SECTION 6: Indemnification. The Applicant shall agree to defend, indemnify and
hold harmless, the City of Ontario or its agents, officers, and employees from any claim,
action or proceeding against the City of Ontario or its agents, officers or employees to
attack, set aside, void, or annul this approval. The City of Ontario shall promptly notify the
applicant of any such claim, action, or proceeding, and the City of Ontario shall cooperate
fully in the defense.

SECTION 7 of proceedings on which these findings have been based are located
at the City of Ontario City Hall, 303 East “B” Street, Ontario, California 91764. The
custodian for these records is the City Clerk of the City of Ontario.

SECTION 8: Certification to Adoption. The Secretary shall certify to the
adoption of the Resolution.

Iltem E - 65 of 68



Planning Commission Resolution
File No. PZC18-002

October 23, 2018

Page 6

The Secretary Pro Tempore for the Planning Commission of the City of Ontario
shall certify as to the adoption of this Resolution.

| hereby certify that the foregoing Resolution was duly and regularly introduced,
passed and adopted by the Planning Commission of the City of Ontario at a regular
meeting thereof held on the 23rd day of October, 2018, and the foregoing is a full, true
and correct copy of said Resolution, and has not been amended or repealed.

Richard D. Delman
Planning Commission Chairman

ATTEST:

Cathy Wahlstrom
Planning Director
Secretary of Planning Commission

Iltem E - 66 of 68



Planning Commission Resolution
File No. PZC18-002
October 23, 2018

Page 7

STATE OF CALIFORNIA )
COUNTY OF SAN BERNARDINO)
CITY OF ONTARIO )

I, Gwen Berendsen, Secretary Pro Tempore of the Planning Commission of the
City of Ontario, DO HEREBY CERTIFY that foregoing Resolution No. PC18-[insert #] was
duly passed and adopted by the Planning Commission of the City of Ontario at their
regular meeting held on October 23, 2018, by the following roll call vote, to wit:
AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:

ABSTAIN:

Gwen Berendsen
Secretary Pro Tempore

Iltem E - 67 of 68



Planning Commission Resolution
File No. PZC18-002
October 23, 2018

Page 8
ATTACHMENT A: Proposed Zone Change
CURRENT ZONING:
AR-2, Residential-Agricultural Eg\%loprﬁéﬂmd Unit BP, Business Park - gSérRéatigpen Space -

m RE-2, Rural Estate
N RE-4, Residential Estate

LDR-5, Low Density
Residential

MU, Mixed Use > = } _
1 — Downtown, 2-East Holt, \\\\\ IP, Industrial Park \\\\\ 83 C’t Open  Space
11-Francis&Euclid ~ b emetery

CS, Corner Store - IL, Light Industrial UC, Utilities Corridor

CN, Neighborhood
Commercial

MDR-11, Low-Medium - CC, Community - IH. Heavy Industrial SP(AG), Specific Plan with
Density Residential Commercial ! Y Agricultural Overlay

IG, General

Industrial SP, Specific Plan

MDR-18, Medium Density
Residential

w MDR-25, Medium-High
k Density Residential
HDR-45, High Density
Residential
\
N MHP, Mobile Home Park

Existing Zoning

CCS, Convention Center
Support

ONT, Ontario Int'l « .~ ES, Emergency Shelter
Airport Overlay

. 7 MTC, Multimodal Transit
CIv, Civic / % Center Overlay
s i i
RC, Rail Corridor ///}"4 ICC, Interim Community

Commercial Overlay

OL, Low Intensity Office

OH, High Intensity Office

Assessor Parcel Number(s)

Involved Proposed Zoning

—oNTARIOMILLS

The parcel currently does not
have a zoning designation or an
APN

110 FWY W.B. 110 FWY E.B.

1-10 E/B OFF RAMP

(1 of 1 properties)

[ETIWANDA

S SRR
Located within North Loop Circle,
Undesignated west of Etiwanda Avenue and IG (General Industrial)
south of the I-10 Freeway

Iltem E - 68 of 68



PLANNING COMMISSION
STAFF REPORT

October 23, 2018

SUBJECT: A General Plan Amendment (File No. PGPA18-006) to add text to Exhibit
LU-01 - Land Use Plan regarding parkland in the Ontario Ranch area. City Initiated. City
Council action is required

PROPERTY OWNER: N/A

RECOMMENDED ACTION: That the Planning Commission recommends City Council
approval of File No. PGPA18-006, pursuant to the facts and reasons contained in the staff
report and attached resolution.

PROJECT ANALYSIS:

[1] Background — In 2010, The Ontario Plan (TOP) Policy Plan (General Plan)
component set forth the land use pattern for the City to achieve its Vision. At the time of
adoption, the final locations of proposed parks within Ontario Ranch (area south of
Riverside Drive) were not, and are still not, completely known as the area is still in the
process of developing. Two elements of the Policy Plan contain maps that depict park
land: the Land Use Element Land Use Plan (Exhibit LU-1) and the Parks and Recreation
Element Park Facilities Map (Figure PR-1). Currently, both maps would need to be
amended to change a park’s status from conceptual to existing and document the location
of the park when it is developed.

[2] Proposed Change - To clarify and streamline updates to park locations in the
Policy Plan, staff is proposing to add a note to Exhibit LU-1 that:

a) Clarifies that the park locations depicted in Exhibit LU-01 within Ontario Ranch are
conceptual; and

b) Refers to the Parks and Recreation Element Figure PR-1 for the locations of
existing and proposed park facilities in Ontario Ranch.

The proposed GPA is the first step in a two-step process. At a later date, staff intends to
bring another GPA forward to remove conceptual parks in Ontario Ranch from Exhibit
LU-01, with the exception of the Great Park and the Lakes, minimizing the need to update
Exhibit LU-01 as parks are developed. The Land Use Plan (Exhibit LU-01), Park Facilities
Map (Figure PR-1), and the Note proposed to be added to Exhibit LU-01 are shown below.

Case Planner: Clarice Burden Hearing Body Date Decision Action
Planning Director, / DAB
Approval: A\ PC 10/23/18 Recommend
Submittal Date:| N/A \ cC

ItemF -1 of 12



Planning Commission Staff Report
File No.: PGPA18-006

October 23, 2018

EXHIBIT LU-01
LAND USE PLAN

LEGEND
Residential

R - 2 dunc)

Loww Dipmsity (2.1 - $ oo )

Low Medum Densty (5.1 11 u fae)
[ deckom Devary 10,8 - 25 e c]
[ 1o Derny 281 - 45 ey
Mixnd Use

Apprrved by City Counc an Jaiey 27,3910

B e
' 7 et Conr
2 Erra & ntas i
§ A e
£ Mo e %0 Ve
§ i g St 11 G
& G Lty
RutallService
[ Hesatbooot Commenal (04 F AR}
T Govers Commarcan (14 FAR)
I Oce Commenciai 0 78 FaR)
B=
Bosiness Park {08 FAA)
[ e
Other

(=1

E’._
3
[H=
=
=
1
=] i
Es-1lIEE
i =
| H
T,
g
I

'F‘-r"'_‘\
it e %'i—‘-

Figure PR-1
Park Facilities

[ Residentia

[ wonresidential

[ senoenss

I vater

[ Green Beit/ Drainage/
Other Open Space

[ Proposed Parks; Recreation®

[ =vsting Parks/ Recreation

@ =

5 =Special Use Parks

*Drpicted parks. schools and water in the New Model
Colony are conceptual and will be detailed in requined
‘specific plars. In addition, based on population buildout
estimates, 49.6 acres of parkland will be required in
addition to those mapped to falfll the public park
roquirement of 3 acres per 1000 population. Private
parkes, required at 2 acres per 1,000 population will be
necessary to meet the city's overall goal of 5 acres per
1000 popralation.

Page 2 of 4

ItemF -2 of 12



Planning Commission Staff Report
File No.: PGPA18-006
October 23, 2018

Note: The locations of parks depicted in Exhibit LU-01
in Ontario Ranch (area south of Riverside Drive) are
conceptual, including the 400-plus acre Great Park
(designated as Open Space — Parkland) and the
approximate 60-acre Lakes (designated as Open
Space — Water).

Refer to Figure PR-1 — Park Facilities for further detail
on existing and conceptual park locations in Ontario
Ranch.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE ONTARIO PLAN: The proposed project is consistent with the
principles, goals and policies contained within the Vision, Governance, Policy Plan
(General Plan), and City Council Priorities components of The Ontario Plan (TOP). More
specifically, the goals and policies of TOP that are furthered by the proposed project are
as follows:

[1] City Council Goals.

= QOperate in a Businesslike Manner

» Invest in the City’s Infrastructure (Water, Streets, Sewers, Parks, Storm
Drains and Public Facilities)

= Encourage, Provide or Support Enhanced Recreational, Educational,
Cultural and Healthy City Programs, Policies and Activities

= Ensure the Development of a Well Planned, Balanced, and Self-
Sustaining Community in the Ontario Ranch

[2] Policy Plan (General Plan)

Land Use Element:

» LU1-6 Complete Community: We incorporate a variety of land uses and
building types in our land use planning efforts that result in a complete community where
residents at all stages of life, employers, workers and visitors have a wide spectrum of
choices of where they can live, work, shop and recreate within Ontario.

Parks & Recreation Element:

= Goal PR1: A system of safe and accessible parks that meets the needs of the
community.

Page 3 of 4

Item F -3 of 12



Planning Commission Staff Report
File No.: PGPA18-006
October 23, 2018

» PR1-1 Access to Parks. We strive to provide a park and/or recreational
facility within walking distance (¥2 mile) of every residence.

» PR1-5 Acreage Standard. We strive to provide 5 acres of parkland (public
and private) per 1,000 residents.

» PR1-6 Private Parks. We expect development to provide a minimum of 2
acres of developed private park space per 1,000 residents.

» PR1-9 Phased Development. We require parks be built in new communities
before a significant proportion of residents move in.

HOUSING ELEMENT COMPLIANCE: The project is consistent with the Housing
Element of the Policy Plan (General Plan) component of The Ontario Plan, as the project
site is not one of the properties in the Available Land Inventory contained in Table A-3
(Available Land by Planning Area) of the Housing Element Technical Report Appendix.

AIRPORT LAND USE COMPATIBILITY PLAN (ALUCP) COMPLIANCE: The project
site is located within the Airport Influence Area of the Ontario International Airport, and
has been found to be consistent with the policies and criteria set forth within the Ontario
International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan. The project site is also located within
the Airport Influence area of Chino Airport and is consistent with policies and criteria set
forth within the 2011 California Airport Land Use Planning Handbook published by the
California Department of Transportation, Division of Aeronautics.

ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW: The environmental impacts of this project were previously
reviewed in conjunction with an Environmental Impact Report (SCH# 2008101140)
adopted by City Council on January 27, 2010 in conjunction with File No. PGPA06-001.
This Application introduces no new significant environmental impacts. All previously
adopted mitigation measures are be a condition of project approval and are incorporated
herein by reference.

Page 4 of 4

Item F -4 of 12



RESOLUTION NO.

A RESOLUTION OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF
ONTARIO, CALIFORNIA, RECOMMENDING THE CITY COUNCIL
APPROVE FILE NO. PGPA18-006, A GENERAL PLAN AMENDMENT TO
ADD TEXT TO THE ONTARIO PLAN (TOP) EXHIBIT LU-01 - LAND USE
PLAN REGARDING PARKLAND IN THE ONTARIO RANCH AREA, AND
MAKING FINDINGS IN SUPPORT THEREOF—APN: N/A. (LAND USE
ELEMENT CYCLE 3 FOR THE 2018 CALENDAR YEAR).

WHEREAS, the City of Ontario ("Applicant") has initiated an Application for the
approval of a General Plan Amendment, File No. PGPA18-006, as described in the title
of this Resolution (hereinafter referred to as "Application" or "Project"); and

WHEREAS, the Application applies to references to parkland within the Ontario
Ranch Area of the City; and

WHEREAS, the Application proposed to add the following text to The Ontario Plan
(TOP) Exhibit LU-01 — Land Use Plan; and

Note: The locations of parks depicted in Exhibit LU-01
in Ontario Ranch (area south of Riverside Drive) are
conceptual, including the 400-plus acre Great Park
(designated as Open Space — Parkland) and the
approximate 60-acre Lakes (designated as Open
Space — Water).

Refer to Figure PR-1 — Park Facilities for further detalil
on existing and conceptual park locations in Ontario
Ranch.

WHEREAS, Figure PR-1 — Park Facilities is an existing Figure in The Ontario Plan
(TOP); and

WHEREAS, the Application is a project pursuant to the California Environmental
Quiality Act (Public Resources Code Section 21000 et seq.) ("CEQA"); and

WHEREAS, the environmental impacts of this project were previously reviewed in
conjunction with an Environmental Impact Report (SCH# 2008101140) adopted by City
Council on January 27, 2010 in conjunction with File No. PGPA06-001, and this
Application introduces no new significant environmental impacts; and

Item F -5 o0f 12



Planning Commission Resolution
File No. PGPA18-006

October 23, 2018

Page 2

WHEREAS, the City's "Local Guidelines for the Implementation of the California
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA)" provide for the use of a single environmental
assessment in situations where the impacts of subsequent projects are adequately
analyzed; and

WHEREAS, the Application is a project pursuant to CEQA (Public Resources Code
Section 21000 et seq.), and an initial study has been prepared to determine possible
environmental impacts; and

WHEREAS, Ontario Development Code Table 2.02-1 (Review Matrix) grants the
Planning Commission the responsibility and authority to review and make
recommendation to City Council on the subject Application; and

WHEREAS, the Project has been reviewed for consistency with the Housing
Element of the Policy Plan component of The Ontario Plan, as State Housing Element
law (as prescribed in Government Code Sections 65580 through 65589.8) requires that
development projects must be consistent with the Housing Element, if upon consideration
of all its aspects, it is found to further the purposes, principals, goals, and policies of the
Housing Element; and

WHEREAS, the Project is located within the Airport Influence Area of Ontario
International Airport, which encompasses lands within parts of San Bernardino, Riverside,
and Los Angeles Counties, and is subject to, and must be consistent with, the policies
and criteria set forth in the Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan
(“ALUCP”), which applies only to jurisdictions within San Bernardino County, and
addresses the noise, safety, airspace protection, and overflight impacts of current and
future airport activity; and

WHEREAS, City of Ontario Development Code Division 2.03 (Public Hearings)
prescribes the manner in which public notification shall be provided and hearing
procedures to be followed, and all such notifications and procedures have been
completed; and

WHEREAS, on October 23, 2018, the Planning Commission of the City of Ontario
conducted a hearing to consider the Project, and concluded said hearing on that date;
and

WHEREAS, all legal prerequisites to the adoption of this Resolution have occurred.

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY FOUND, DETERMINED, AND RESOLVED
by the Planning Commission of the City of Ontario, as follows:

Item F -6 of 12



Planning Commission Resolution
File No. PGPA18-006

October 23, 2018

Page 3

SECTION 1: Environmental Determination and Findings. As the
recommending body for the Project, the Planning Commission has reviewed and
considered the information contained in the previous Certified EIR and supporting
documentation. Based upon the facts and information contained in the previous Certified
EIR and supporting documentation, the Planning Commission finds as follows:

(1) The environmental impacts of this project were reviewed in conjunction with
The Ontario Plan Environmental Impact Report - SCH# 2008101140, certified by the City
of Ontario City Council on January 27, 2010, in conjunction with File No. PGPA06-001.

(2)  The previous Certified EIR contains a complete and accurate reporting of
the environmental impacts associated with the Project; and

(3) The previous Certified EIR was completed in compliance with CEQA and
the Guidelines promulgated thereunder; and

4) The previous Certified EIR reflects the independent judgment of the
Planning Commission; and

(5) The proposed project will introduce no new significant environmental
impacts beyond those previously analyzed in the previous Certified EIR, and all mitigation
measures previously adopted with the Certified EIR, are incorporated herein by this
reference.

SECTION 2: Subsequent or Supplemental Environmental Review Not
Required. Based on the information presented to the Planning Commission, and the
specific findings set forth in Section 1, above, the Planning Commission finds that the
preparation of a subsequent or supplemental Certified EIR is not required for the Project,
as the Project:

(1) Does not constitute substantial changes to the Certified EIR that will require
major revisions to the Certified EIR due to the involvement of new significant
environmental effects or a substantial increase in the severity of previously identified
significant effects; and

(2) Does not constitute substantial changes with respect to the circumstances
under which the Certified EIR was prepared, that will require major revisions to the
Certified EIR due to the involvement of new significant environmental effects or a
substantial increase in the severity of the previously identified significant effects; and.

3) Does not contain new information of substantial importance that was not

known and could not have been known with the exercise of reasonable diligence at the
time the Certified EIR was certified, that shows any of the following:

ItemF -7 of 12



Planning Commission Resolution
File No. PGPA18-006

October 23, 2018

Page 4

(@) The project will have one or more significant effects not discussed in
the Certified EIR; or

(b)  Significant effects previously examined will be substantially more
severe than shown in the Certified EIR; or

(© Mitigation measures or alternatives previously found not to be
feasible would in fact be feasible and would substantially reduce one or more significant
effects of the Project, but the City declined to adopt such measures; or

(d) Mitigation measures or alternatives considerably different from those
analyzed in the Certified EIR would substantially reduce one or more significant effects
on the environment, but which the City declined to adopt.

SECTION 3: Housing Element Compliance. Pursuant to the requirements of
California Government Code Chapter 3, Article 10.6, commencing with Section 65580, as
the recommending body for the Project, the Planning Commission recommends the City
Council find that based upon the facts and information contained in the Application and
supporting documentation, at the time of Project implementation, the project is consistent
with the Housing Element of the Policy Plan (General Plan) component of The Ontario
Plan, as the project site is not a property in the Available Land Inventory contained in
Table A-3 (Available Land by Planning Area) of the Housing Element Technical Report
Appendix (as amended).

SECTION 4: Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan
(“ALUCP”) Compliance. The California State Aeronautics Act (Public Utilities Code
Section 21670 et seq.) requires that an Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan be prepared
for all public use airports in the State; and requires that local land use plans and individual
development proposals must be consistent with the policies set forth in the adopted
Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan. On April 19, 2011, the City Council of the City of
Ontario approved and adopted the Ontario International Airport Land use Compatibility
Plan (“ALUCP"), establishing the Airport Influence Area for Ontario International Airport
(“ONT"), which encompasses lands within parts of San Bernardino, Riverside, and Los
Angeles Counties, and limits future land uses and development within the Airport
Influence Area, as they relate to noise, safety, airspace protection, and overflight impacts
of current and future airport activity. As the recommending body for the Project, the
Planning Commission has reviewed and considered the facts and information contained
in the Application and supporting documentation against the ALUCP compatibility factors,
including [1] Safety Criteria (ALUCP Table 2-2) and Safety Zones (ALUCP Map 2-2), [2]
Noise Criteria (ALUCP Table 2-3) and Noise Impact Zones (ALUCP Map 2-3), [3]
Airspace protection Zones (ALUCP Map 2-4), and [4] Overflight Notification Zones
(ALUCP Map 2-5). As a result, the Planning Commission, therefore, finds and determines
that the Project, when implemented in conjunction with the conditions of approval, will be

Item F - 8 of 12



Planning Commission Resolution
File No. PGPA18-006

October 23, 2018

Page 5

consistent with the policies and criteria set forth within the ALUCP. The project site is also
located within the Airport Influence area of Chino Airport and is consistent with policies
and criteria set forth within the 2011 California Airport Land Use Planning Handbook
published by the California Department of Transportation, Division of Aeronautics.

SECTION 5: Concluding Facts and Reasons. Based upon the substantial
evidence presented to the Planning Commission during the above-referenced hearing,
and upon the specific findings set forth in Section 1 through 4, above, the Planning
Commission hereby concludes as follows:

(1) The proposed change does not involve a change in, or conflict with:

a) The Ontario Plan Vision. The addition of a note to Exhibit LU-01 — Land Use
Plan with directions to see Figure PR-1 — Park Facilities for details on parks within the
Ontario Ranch area does not involve a change in, or conflict with the Vision of The Ontario
Plan;

b) Any principle of the Policy Plan (General Plan) component of The Ontario
Plan. The addition of a note to Exhibit LU-01 — Land Use Plan with directions to see Figure
PR-1 — Park Facilities for details on parks within the Ontario Ranch area does not involve
a change in, or conflict with the principles, goals, or policies of The Ontario Plan. The
proposed General Plan amendment is consistent with the goals and policies of The
Ontario Plan as follows:

Land Use Element:

» LU1-6 Complete Community: We incorporate a variety of land uses
and building types in our land use planning efforts that result in a complete
community where residents at all stages of life, employers, workers and
visitors have a wide spectrum of choices of where they can live, work, shop
and recreate within Ontario.

Parks & Recreation Element:

= Goal PR1: A system of safe and accessible parks that meets the
needs of the community.

» PR1-1 Access to Parks. We strive to provide a park and/or
recreational facility within walking distance (¥4 mile) of every residence.

» PR1-5 Acreage Standard. We strive to provide 5 acres of parkland
(public and private) per 1,000 residents.

Item F -9 of 12



Planning Commission Resolution
File No. PGPA18-006

October 23, 2018

Page 6

» PR1-6 Private Parks. We expect development to provide a minimum
of 2 acres of developed private park space per 1,000 residents.

» PR1-9 Phased Development. We require parks be built in new
communities before a significant proportion of residents move in.

c) Any basic/foundational component of The Ontario Plan. The addition of a
note to Exhibit LU-01 — Land Use Plan with directions to see Figure PR-1 — Park Facilities
for details on parks within the Ontario Ranch area does not involve a change in, or conflict
with any basic or foundational component of The Ontario Plan.

d) The Land Use Element is a mandatory element of the Policy Plan (General
Plan) component of The Ontario Plan, which, pursuant to GC Section 65358, may be
amended up to four times per calendar year, and the proposed General Plan Amendment
is the third cycle amendment to the Land Use Element within the 2018 calendar year.

(2) The proposed amendment would contribute to the achievement of the
purposes of the Policy Plan (General Plan) component of The Ontario Plan, or, at a
minimum, would not be detrimental to them. The proposed addition of a note to Exhibit
LU-01 — Land Use Plan with directions to see Figure PR-1 — Park Facilities for details on
parks within the Ontario Ranch area will assist in simplifying the documenting of updates
to park facilities as recreational open space amenities are completed in the Ontario Ranch
area.

SECTION 6: Planning Commission Action. Based upon the findings and
conclusions set forth in Sections 1 through 4, above, the Planning Commission hereby
RECOMMENDS THE CITY COUNCIL APPROVE the herein described Application.

SECTION 7: Indemnification. The Applicant shall agree to defend, indemnify and
hold harmless, the City of Ontario or its agents, officers, and employees from any claim,
action or proceeding against the City of Ontario or its agents, officers or employees to
attack, set aside, void, or annul this approval. The City of Ontario shall promptly notify the
applicant of any such claim, action, or proceeding, and the City of Ontario shall cooperate
fully in the defense.

SECTION 8: Custodian of Records. The documents and materials that
constitute the record of proceedings on which these findings have been based are located
at the City of Ontario City Hall, 303 East “B” Street, Ontario, California 91764. The
custodian for these records is the City Clerk of the City of Ontario.

SECTION 9: Certification to Adoption. The Secretary shall certify to the
adoption of the Resolution.

Item F - 10 of 12



Planning Commission Resolution
File No. PGPA18-006

October 23, 2018

Page 7

The Secretary Pro Tempore for the Planning Commission of the City of Ontario
shall certify as to the adoption of this Resolution.

| hereby certify that the foregoing Resolution was duly and regularly introduced,
passed and adopted by the Planning Commission of the City of Ontario at a regular
meeting thereof held on the 23rd day of October, 2018, and the foregoing is a full, true
and correct copy of said Resolution, and has not been amended or repealed.

Richard D. Delman
Planning Commission Chairman

ATTEST:

Cathy Wahlstrom
Planning Director
Secretary of Planning Commission

ItemF - 11 of 12



Planning Commission Resolution
File No. PGPA18-006
October 23, 2018

Page 8

STATE OF CALIFORNIA )
COUNTY OF SAN BERNARDINO)
CITY OF ONTARIO )

I, Gwen Berendsen, Secretary Pro Tempore of the Planning Commission of the
City of Ontario, DO HEREBY CERTIFY that foregoing Resolution No. PC18-[insert #] was
duly passed and adopted by the Planning Commission of the City of Ontario at their
regular meeting held on October 23, 2018, by the following roll call vote, to wit:
AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:

ABSTAIN:

Gwen Berendsen
Secretary Pro Tempore

Item F - 12 of 12



October 23, 2018

PLANNING COMMISSION
STAFF REPORT

SUBJECT: A Development Code Amendment (File No. PDCA18-004) to increase the
allowable building/structure height from 55 feet to 80 feet within the IH (Heavy Industrial)
zoning district. City Initiated. City Council action is required.

RECOMMENDED ACTION: That the Planning Commission recommend the City Council
adopt an addendum to The Ontario Plan Environmental Impact Report and approve File
No. PDCA18-004 pursuant to the facts and reasons contained in the staff report and

attached resolutions.

PROJECT SETTING: The proposed
Development Code Amendment
(Amendment) affects the properties located
within the IH (Heavy Industrial) zoning
district. The IH zoning district is located
within the eastern portion of the City
generally located south of the I-10 Freeway
and east of the 1-15 Freeway and is
bounded by Southern Pacific Railroad
Company on the north, Etiwanda Avenue to
the East, Philadelphia Street to the south
and Wineville Avenue to the west. Figure 1:
Project Location, depicts the IH zoning
district in purple.
PROJECT ANALYSIS:
[1] Background — The proposed
Development Code Amendment (File No.
PDCA18-004) was continued from the
September 25, 2018 Planning Commission

meeting to allow additional time to properly
notice the project.

The Development Code (Ontario Municipal
Code Title 9) provides the legislative
framework for the implementation of The

: =15 A

WINEVILLE AV

Legend
Zones
- IH, Heavy Industrial

[ ], Light Industrial

T

[ |15, General Industrial [ | RC, Rail Corridor 51 _
. ) :

[ ] uc, utiiities Corridor
[ ] sP. specific Plan

Figure

1: Project Location

Case Planner: Lorena Mejia Hearing Body Date Decision Action
Planning Director % DAB
Approval: i PC 10/23/18 Recommend
Submittal Date:| 8/30/2018 | cc 11/20/18 Introduction
CcC 12/4/18 Final

Item G - 1 of 56



Planning Commission Staff Report
File No.: PDCA18-004
October 23, 2018

Ontario Plan, which states long-term principles, goals, and policies for guiding the growth
and development of the City in a manner that achieves Ontario's vision, and promotes
and protects the public health, safety, comfort, convenience, prosperity, and welfare of its
citizens. On December 1, 2015, the City Council approved a comprehensive update to
the Ontario Development Code (Ordinance No. 3028), which became effective on
January 1, 2016. Staff periodically reviews the Development Code to adjust or clarify
provisions, within the code that are deemed necessary. Ordinance No. 3028 created five
new industrial zoning districts that included the BP (Business Park), IP (Industrial Park),
IL (Light Industrial), IG (General Industrial) and IH (Heavy Industrial) zoning districts. Each
industrial zone is unique from the other, creating a hierarchy of industrial uses from light
to heavy and acting as transition/buffer zones between sensitive uses (such as
residential, schools, parks, etc...) and heavier nuisance uses. The Development Code
update also established building development standards (buildings setbacks,
lot/landscape coverage, floor area ratios and allowable building heights) for the five
industrial zones.

[2] Development Code Amendment — The proposed Amendment will increase the
allowable building/structure height from 55 feet to 80 feet within the IH zoning district of
the Development Code Chapter 6.0 — Development and Subdivision Regulations, Table
6.01-10: Industrial Zoning District Development Standards (see Exhibit A: Revised
Table 6.01-10).

The Development Code established the IH zoning district to accommodate heavier
manufacturing, assembly, storage, warehousing and other similar heavy industrial uses.
Land uses that are normally permitted within the IH zone typically incorporate taller
facilities within their operations such silos, smokestacks and tanks as part of their back of
house operations. The 55 foot maximum building height for the IH zone was established
in the 2015 comprehensive Development Code update. However, staff's periodic reviews
of the Development Code, examined building heights in various zones and found that the
IH zone building height did not reflect the existing built environment. There are existing
facilities within the IH zone that exceed the 55 foot building height resulting in the creation
of legal non-conforming structures throughout the zone. Staff also reviewed the allowable
building heights of neighboring specific plans and found that allowable building heights
are also greater than what is currently permitted within the IH zone. The table below lists
the neighboring specific plans and their maximum allowable heights for reference.

Specific Plan Maximum Building Height

Shea Business Center 100 FT

Pacific Gate-East Gate 70 FT

California Commerce Center FAA (Federal Aviation Administrative ) Regulations
Entratter 75 FT

Furthermore, staff has seen an increased need for taller buildings within the IH Industrial
zone since warehouse distribution facilities are requiring higher interior building

Page 2 of 7

Item G - 2 of 56



Planning Commission Staff Report
File No.: PDCA18-004
October 23, 2018

clearances for higher racking/stacking of goods/inventory in addition to accommodating
additional heights for equipment/forklift clearances. Therefore, the Amendment will allow
for the flexibility of meeting current industry needs for taller buildings and eliminating legal
non-conforming structures within the IH zone that currently exceed the 55 foot height limit.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE ONTARIO PLAN: The proposed project is consistent with the
principles, goals and policies contained within the Vision, Governance, Policy Plan
(General Plan), and City Council Priorities components of The Ontario Plan (TOP). More
specifically, the goals and policies of TOP that are furthered by the proposed project are
as follows:

[1] City Council Goals.

= |nvest in the Growth and Evolution of the City’s Economy
= Maintain the Current High Level of Public Safety
= QOperate in a Businesslike Manner
[2] Vision.
Distinctive Development:

= Commercial and Residential Development

» Development quality that is broadly recognized as distinctive and not
exclusively tied to the general suburban character typical of much of Southern California.

[3] Governance.
Decision Making:

= Goal G1: Sustained decision-making that consistently moves Ontario towards
its Vision by using The Ontario Plan as a framework for assessing choices.

> G1-2 lLong-term Benefit. We require decisions to demonstrate and
document how they add value to the community and support the Ontario Vision

[4] Policy Plan (General Plan)
Land Use Element:
= Goal LU2: Compatibility between a wide range of uses.

Safety Element:

Page 3 of 7

Item G - 3 of 56



Planning Commission Staff Report
File No.: PDCA18-004
October 23, 2018

= Goal S1: Minimized risk of injury, loss of life, property damage and economic
and social disruption caused by earthquake-induced and other geologic hazards.

» S1-1 Implementation of Regulations and Standards. We require that all new
habitable structures be designed in accordance with the most recent California Building
Code adopted by the City, including provisions regarding lateral forces and grading.

>
HOUSING ELEMENT COMPLIANCE: The project is consistent with the Housing
Element of the Policy Plan (General Plan) component of The Ontario Plan, as the project
site is not one of the properties in the Available Land Inventory contained in Table A-3
(Available Land by Planning Area) of the Housing Element Technical Report Appendix.

AIRPORT LAND USE COMPATIBILITY PLAN (ALUCP) COMPLIANCE: The project
site is located within the Airport Influence Area of the Ontario International Airport, and
has been found to be consistent with the policies and criteria set forth within the Ontario
International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan.

ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW: The application is a project pursuant to the California
Environmental Quality Act (Public Resources Code Section 21000 et seq.) ("CEQA") and
an initial study has been prepared to determine possible environmental impacts. The
environmental impacts of this project were reviewed in conjunction with an addendum
to The Ontario Plan Environmental Impact Report (SCH# 2008101140) adopted by
City Council on January 27, 2010, in conjunction with File No. PGPA06-001. The
Addendum was prepared pursuant to CEQA, the State CEQA Guidelines and The
City’s “Guidelines for the Implementation of the California Environmental Quality Act
(CEQA)” which provides for the use of a single environmental assessment in situations
where the impacts of subsequent projects are adequately analyzed. This Application
introduces no new significant environmental impacts not previously analyzed in the
Environmental Impact Report. All previously adopted mitigation measures are a condition
of project approval and are incorporated herein by reference. The environmental
documentation for this project is available for review at the Planning Department public
counter.

Page 4 of 7

Item G - 4 of 56



Planning Commission Staff Report
File No.: PDCA18-004
October 23, 2018

Exhibit A: Revised Table 6.01-10

Table 6.01-10: Industrial Zoning District Development Standards

Industrial Zoning Districts Additional

\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\
Ll Ly S Ao ey

Page 5 of 7

Item G - 5 of 56



Planning Commission Staff Report

File No.: PDCA18-004
October 23, 2018

Table 6.01-10: Industrial Zoning District Deve

lopment Standards

_ Industrial Zoning Districts Additional
Requirements . Regulations
(1) Freeway 20 FT
(2) Arterial Street 20 FT
(3) Collector/Local 10FT
b. Screened Loading and OFT
Storage Yard to Interior Property Line
Exception: From i 10 FT (area shall be densely landscaped) n/a
property | ommon with resid |
district
c. ned Loading and OFT
Storage Yard to B Id ngs, Walls, and
Fences
7. Walls, Fences and Refer to Section 6.02.020 (Design Standards for Residential Zoning
Obstructions Districts).
8. Off Street Parking Refer to Division 6.03 (Off-Street Parking and Loading).
Maintgénarf)crgperty Appearance and Refer to Division 6.10 (Property Appearance and Maintenance).
10. Historic Preservation Certain portions of commercial zoning distri e iden 'f' d s histori
potentially historic, and are I d on h C ity’s H Resources
EI'g'b'I'yL' Developmen gI et forth in Div 701 (H
Preser ) nd applica p g dpm ggl et
forth i D n 4.02 (D y P ermits and Actions) a d f this
Dev Ipm Cd hIIppIy tnce
11. Signs Refer to Division 8.1 (Sign Regulations).
12. Security Standards F fB IdO 5 rio Municipal Code Title 4, Chapter 11 (Security Standards
ngs
13. Noise Buildings hIIbdgdd cted to mitigat e levels from
lexterior sources. Refer OMCTI5(PbIWIf M als, and
C nduct), Ch p r29 (N0|se).
14. Airport Safety Zones EA/(p) \1V ithin h AI\K rt In f||_ e UA 2 (AIA)'b'I' tl)DII she dAE)l/JCTD
shall be subjeﬁ to the requirzments and sst(;ndg:ggaélf tlt:gALSrCF(’. )
B. BUILDIN G DEVEL OPMENT STANDARD S
1. Maximum Building Area Single-Tenant: 45,000 SF n/a Note 9
Multi-Tenant: 60,000 SF
a. From Freeway Property 20 FT
Line

b. From Arterial Street
Property Line

(1) Holt Boulevard

10 FT

Page 6 of 7

Item G - 6 of 56



Planning Commission Staff Report

File No.: PDCA18-004
October 23, 2018

Table 6.01-10: Industrial Zoning District Development Standards

Industrial Zoning Districts Additional
Requirements )
BP P IL IH Regulations
(2) All Other Arterial 20 FT
Streets
c. From Collector and 10FT
Local Street Property Line
3. Minimum Interior Property OFT Note 6
Line Setback
Exception: Property line 30 FT
common with residential districts
4. Maximum Height 45 FT 55 FT 80 FT Note 7
5. Minimum Setback From S0 FT Note 8
Major Pipelines (to habitable
structures)

Note 7: The maximum building height and FAR may be restricted pursuant to the Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility
Plan (ALUCP). Refer to the ALUCP for properties affected by airport safety zones.

Page 7 of 7

Item G - 7 of 56



RESOLUTION NO.

A RESOLUTION OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF
ONTARIO, CALIFORNIA RECOMMENDING THE CITY COUNCIL
APPROVE AN ADDENDUM TO THE ONTARIO PLAN ENVIRONMENTAL
IMPACT REPORT, FOR WHICH AN INITIAL STUDY WAS PREPARED,
ALL IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE CALIFORNIA ENVIRONMENTAL
QUALITY ACT, AS AMENDED, FOR FILE NO. PDCA18-004.

WHEREAS, prior to the adoption of this Resolution, the Planning Director of the
City of Ontario prepared an Initial Study, and approved for attachment to the certified
Environmental Impact Report, an addendum to The Ontario Plan Environmental Impact
Report for File No. PDCA18-004 (hereinafter referred to as “Initial Study/Environmental
Impact Report Addendum”), all in accordance with the requirements of the California
Environmental Quality Act of 1970, together with State and local guidelines implementing
said Act, all as amended to date (collectively referred to as “CEQA”); and

WHEREAS, File No. PDCA18-004 analyzed under the Initial Study/Environmental
Impact Report Addendum, consists of a Development Code Amendment, File No.
PDCA18-004 to increase the allowable building/structure height from 55 feet to 80 feet
within the IH (Heavy Industrial) zoning district, in the City of Ontario, California (hereinafter
referred to as the "Project"); and

WHEREAS, the Initial Study/Environmental Impact Report Addendum concluded
that implementation of the Project introduces no new significant environmental impacts
not previously analyzed in The Ontario Plan Environmental Impact Report; and

WHEREAS, The Ontario Plan Environmental Impact Report was certified on
January 27, 2010, in which development and use of the Project site was discussed; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to California Environmental Quality Act ("CEQA") Guidelines
Section 15164(a), a lead agency shall prepare an addendum to a previously certified EIR
if some changes or additions are necessary to a project, but the preparation of a
subsequent or supplemental EIR is not required; and

WHEREAS, the City determined that none of the conditions requiring preparation
of a subsequent or supplemental EIR would occur from the Project, and that preparation
of an addendum to the EIR was appropriate; and

WHEREAS, the City of Ontario is the lead agency on the Project, and the Planning
Commission is the recommending authority for the proposed approval to construct and
otherwise undertake the Project; and

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission has reviewed and considered the Initial

Study/Environmental Impact Report Addendum for the Project, has concluded that none
of the conditions requiring preparation of a subsequent of supplemental EIR have

Item G - 8 of 56



Planning Commission Resolution
File No. PDCA18-004

October 23, 2018

Page 2

occurred, and intends to take actions on the Project in compliance with CEQA and state
and local guidelines implementing CEQA; and

WHEREAS, on September 25, 2018, the Planning Commission of the City of
Ontario conducted a hearing to consider the Project, and continued said hearing to
October 23, 2018; and

WHEREAS, on October 23, 2018, the Planning Commission of the City of Ontario
conducted a hearing to consider the Project, and concluded said hearing on that date;
and

WHEREAS, the Initial Study/Environmental Impact Report Addendum for the
Project are on file in the Planning Department, located at 303 East B Street, Ontario, CA
91764, are available for inspection by any interested person at that location and are, by
this reference, incorporated into this Resolution as if fully set forth herein; and

WHEREAS, all legal prerequisites to the adoption of this Resolution have occurred.

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY FOUND, DETERMINED, AND RESOLVED
by the Planning Commission of the City of Ontario, as follows:

SECTION 1: Environmental Determination and Findings. As the
recommending body for the Project, the Planning Commission has reviewed and
considered the information contained in the administrative record for the Project. Based
upon the facts and information contained in the administrative record, including all written
and oral evidence presented to the Planning Commission, the Planning Commission finds
as follows:

(1) The environmental impacts of this project were reviewed in conjunction with
an Addendum to The Ontario Plan Environmental Impact Report (SCH# 2008101140),
was certified by the Ontario City Council on January 27, 2010, in conjunction with File No.
PGP06-001 (hereinafter referred to as “Certified EIR”).

(2) The Addendum and administrative record have been completed in
compliance with CEQA, the State CEQA Guidelines, and the City of Ontario Local CEQA
Guidelines; and

(3) The City's "Guidelines for the Implementation of the California
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA)" provide for the use of a single environmental
assessment in situations where the impacts of subsequent projects are adequately
analyzed. This Application introduces no new significant environmental impacts.

Item G - 9 of 56



Planning Commission Resolution
File No. PDCA18-004

October 23, 2018

Page 3

(4)  All previously adopted mitigation measures shall be a condition of project
approval, as they are applicable to the Project, and are incorporated herein by this
reference.

(5) The Addendum contains a complete and accurate reporting of the
environmental impacts associated with the Project, and reflects the independent
judgment of the Planning Commission; and

(6)  There is no substantial evidence in the administrative record supporting a
fair argument that the project may result in significant environmental impacts; and

SECTION 2: Additional Environmental Review Not Required. Based on the
Addendum, all related information presented to the Planning Commission, and the
specific findings set forth in Section 1, above, the Planning Commission finds that the
preparation of a subsequent or supplemental Environmental Impact Report is not required
for the Project, as the Project:

(1) Does not constitute substantial changes to the Certified EIR that will require
major revisions to the Certified EIR due to the involvement of new significant
environmental effects or a substantial increase in the severity of previously identified
significant effects; and

(2) Does not constitute substantial changes with respect to the circumstances
under which the Certified EIR was prepared, that will require major revisions to the
Certified EIR due to the involvement of new significant environmental effects or a
substantial increase in the severity of the previously identified significant effects; and.

(3) Does not contain new information of substantial importance that was not
known and could not have been known with the exercise of reasonable diligence at the
time the Certified EIR was certified/adopted, that shows any of the following:

(@  The project will have one or more significant effects not discussed in
the Certified EIR; or

(b) Significant effects previously examined will be substantially more
severe than shown in the Certified EIR; or

(c) Mitigation measures or alternatives previously found not to be

feasible would in fact be feasible and would substantially reduce one or more significant
effects of the Project, but the City declined to adopt such measures; or

Item G - 10 of 56



Planning Commission Resolution
File No. PDCA18-004

October 23, 2018

Page 4

(d) Mitigation measures or alternatives considerably different from those
analyzed in the Certified EIR would substantially reduce one or more significant effects
on the environment, but which the City declined to adopt.

SECTION 3: Planning Commission Action. Based upon the findings and
conclusions set forth in Sections 1 and 2, above, the Planning Commission hereby finds
that based upon the entire record of proceedings before it, and all information received,
there is no substantial evidence that the Project will constitute substantial changes to the
Certified EIR, and RECOMMENDS THE CITY COUNCIL APPROVES the Addendum to
the Certified EIR, attached hereto as “Attachment A,” and incorporated herein by this
reference.

SECTION 4: Indemnification. The Applicant shall agree to defend, indemnify and
hold harmless, the City of Ontario or its agents, officers, and employees from any claim,
action or proceeding against the City of Ontario or its agents, officers or employees to
attack, set aside, void, or annul this approval. The City of Ontario shall promptly notify the
applicant of any such claim, action, or proceeding, and the City of Ontario shall cooperate
fully in the defense.

SECTION 5: Custodian of Records. The documents and materials that
constitute the record of proceedings on which these findings have been based are located
at the City of Ontario City Hall, 303 East “B” Street, Ontario, California 91764. The
custodian for these records is the City Clerk of the City of Ontario.

SECTION 6: Certification to Adoption. The Secretary shall certify to the
adoption of the Resolution.

Item G - 11 of 56



Planning Commission Resolution
File No. PDCA18-004

October 23, 2018

Page 5

The Secretary Pro Tempore for the Planning Commission of the City of Ontario shall
certify as to the adoption of this Resolution.

| hereby certify that the foregoing Resolution was duly and regularly introduced,
passed and adopted by the Planning Commission of the City of Ontario at a regular
meeting thereof held on the 23rd day of October 2018, and the foregoing is a full, true
and correct copy of said Resolution, and has not been amended or repealed.

Richard D. Delman
Planning Commission Chairman

ATTEST:

Cathy Wahlstrom
Planning Director
Secretary of Planning Commission

Item G - 12 of 56



Planning Commission Resolution
File No. PDCA18-004
October 23, 2018

Page 6

STATE OF CALIFORNIA )
COUNTY OF SAN BERNARDINO)
CITY OF ONTARIO )

I, Gwen Berendsen, Secretary Pro Tempore of the Planning Commission of the
City of Ontario, DO HEREBY CERTIFY that foregoing Resolution No. PC18-[insert #] was
duly passed and adopted by the Planning Commission of the City of Ontario at their
regular meeting held on October 23, 2018, by the following roll call vote, to wit:
AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:

ABSTAIN:

Gwen Berendsen
Secretary Pro Tempore

Item G - 13 of 56



Planning Commission Resolution
File No. PDCA18-004

October 23, 2018

Page 7

ATTACHMENT A:

Addendum to The Ontario Plan
Environmental Impact Report

(Addendum to follow this page)

Item G - 14 of 56



Attachment A—ADDENDUM TO THE ONTARIO PLAN
ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT REPORT

City of Ontario
Planning Department
303 East “B” Street
Ontario, California
Phone: (909) 395-2036

California Environmental Quality Act Pax. (909) 305.2420

Environmental Checklist Form

Project Title/File No.: PDCA18-004

Lead Agency: City of Ontario, 303 East “B” Street, Ontario, California 91764, (909) 395-2036

Contact Person: Lorena Mejia, Senior Planner, (909) 395-2276
Project Sponsor: City of Ontario, 303 East “B” Street, Ontario, California 91764

Project Location: The project site is located in southwestern San Bernardino County, within the City of
Ontario. The City of Ontario is located approximately 40 miles from downtown Los Angeles, 20 miles from
downtown San Bernardino, and 30 miles from Orange County. As illustrated on Figures 1 and 2, below, the
project site is located the eastern portion of the City generally located south of the 1-10 Freeway and east
of the 1-15 Freeway and is bounded by the Southern Pacific Railroad Company on the north, Etiwanda

Avenue to the East, Philadelphia Street to the south and Wineville Avenue to the west.

Figure 1—REGIONAL LOCATION MAP

i Phelan
i Hesperia
51 [
Los Angeles County ! San Bernarding Count| PROJECT SITE
] n
fi E\r/.\}? r‘ restline
/ L
/ S\ !
/
/
Glendale s
Pasadena =] & 7 =
2 8
Upland
am San Bernardino
Los Angeles 0
0
Pomona Fontana Redlands
Ontario N
i Jurupa Valley
Chino
O Chino Hills
Riverside
Brea B Norco Moreno Valley
Fullerton {?
=Y Corona
,
[=] = = \\
Anaheim
¥ ?
Orange 2 ¥ iverside Coun Perris
# i )
j‘fﬁ 5 \-7\"'1
% > ) c | 1,
ol iwine ~-Orange County ‘1 ,
4, : Menifee
Page 1 of 31

Item G - 15 of 56



CEQA Environmental Checklist Form
File No: PDCA18-004

DJECT SITE

éLegend

| Zones
| I H, Heavy Industrial ] UC, Utilities Corridor
: E IL, Light Industrial |: SP, Specific Plan

I E IG, General Industrial |: RC, Rail Corridor

General Plan Designation: Industrial

Zoning: IH (Heavy Industrial)

Description of Project: A Development Code Amendment (File No. PDCA 18-004) to increase the
allowable building/structure height from 55 feet to 80 feet within the IH (Heavy Industrial) zoning district.

Page 2 of 31

ltem G - 16 of 56



CEQA Environmental Checklist Form

File No:

PDCA18-004

Project
(Heavy

Setting: The proposed Development Code Amendment affects the properties located within the IH
Industrial) zoning district. The IH zoning district is located within the eastern portion of the City

generally located south of the I-10 Freeway and east of the I-15 Freeway and is bounded by Southern
Pacific Railroad Company on the north, Etiwanda Avenue to the East, Philadelphia Street to the south and
Wineville Avenue to the west. The majority of the IH zone has been developed with heavy industrial uses
and with structures/buildings exceeding 55 feet in height.

ENVIRONMENTAL FACTORS POTENTIALLY AFFECTED:

The environmental factors checked below would be potentially affected by this project, involving at least
one impact that is a "Potentially Significant Impact" as indicated by the checklist on the following pages.

ODooooodog

Aesthetics [[] Agriculture Resources
Air Quality [] Biological Resources
Cultural Resources [] Geology/Soils
Greenhouse Gas Emissions [] Hazards & Hazardous Materials
Hydrology / Water Quality [] Land Use/ Planning
Population / Housing [] Mineral Resources
Noise [] Public Services
Recreation [] Transportation / Traffic
[

Utilities / Service Systems Mandatory Findings of Significance

DETERMINATION (To be completed by the Lead Agency):

On the basis of this initial evaluation:

[
[

| find that the proposed project COULD NOT have a significant effect on the environment, and a
NEGATIVE DECLARATION will be prepared.

| find that although the proposed project could have a significant effect on the environment, there
will not be a significant effect in this case because revisions in the project have been made by or
agreed to by the project proponent. A MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION will be prepared.

| find that the proposed project MAY have a significant effect on the environment, and an
ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT REPORT is required.

| find that the proposed project MAY have a "potentially significant" or "potentially significant unless
mitigated" impact on the environment, but at least one effect 1) has been adequately analyzed in
an earlier document pursuant to applicable legal standards, and 2) has been addressed by
mitigation measures based on the earlier analysis as described on attached sheets. An
ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT REPORT is required, but it must analyze only the effects that remain
to be addressed.

| find that although the proposed project could have a significant effect on the environment, because
all potentially significant effects (a) have been analyzed adequately in an earlier EIR pursuant to
applicable standards, and (b) have been avoided or mitigated pursuant to that earlier EIR, including
revisions or mitigation measures that are imposed upon the proposed project, nothing further is
required.

?/vv September 12, 2018

Signature Date
Lorena Mejia, Senior Planner City of Ontario Planning Department
Printed Name and Title For

Page 3 of 31

Item G - 17 of 56



CEQA Environmental Checklist Form
File No: PDCA18-004

EVALUATION OF ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACTS:

1)

2)

3)

4)

5)

6)

7

8)

9)

A brief explanation is required for all answers except "No Impact" answers that are adequately
supported by the information sources a lead agency cites in the parentheses following each question.
A "No Impact" answer is adequately supported if the referenced information sources show that the
impact simply does not apply to projects like the one involved (e.g. the project falls outside a fault
rupture zone). A "No Impact" answer should be explained where it is based on project-specific factors
as well as general standards (e.g. the project will not expose sensitive receptors to pollutants, based
on a project-specific screening analysis).

All answers must take account of the whole action involved, including off-site as well as on-site,
cumulative as well as project-level, indirect as well as direct, and construction as well as operational
impacts.

Once the lead agency has determined that a particular physical impact may occur, then the checklist
answers must indicate whether the impact is potentially significant, less than significant with mitigation,
or less than significant. "Potentially Significant Impact" is appropriate if there is substantial evidence
that an effect is significant. If there are one or more "Potentially Significant Impact”" entries when the
determination is made, an EIR is required.

"Negative Declaration: Less Than Significant With Mitigation Incorporated” applies where the
incorporation of mitigation measures has reduced an effect from "Potentially Significant Impact” to a
"Less than Significant Impact.” The lead agency must describe the mitigation measures, and briefly
explain how they reduce the effect to a less than significant level (mitigation measures from the "Earlier
Analyses” Section may be cross-referenced).

Earlier analyses may be used where, pursuant to the tiering, program EIR, or other CEQA process, an
effect has been adequately analyzed in an earlier EIR or negative declaration. Section 15063(c)(3)(D).
In this case, a brief discussion should identify the following:

a) Earlier Analyses Used. Identify and state where they are available for review.

b) Impacts Adequately Addressed. Identify which effects from the above checklist were within the
scope of and adequately analyzed in an earlier document pursuant to applicable legal standards,
and state whether such effects were addressed by mitigation measures based on the earlier
analysis.

c) Mitigation Measures. For effects that are "Less than Significant with Mitigation Measures
Incorporated,” describe the mitigation measures which were incorporated or refined from the earlier
document and the extent to which they address site-specific conditions for the project.

Lead agencies are encouraged to incorporate into the checklist references to information sources for
potential impacts (e.g. general plans, zoning ordinances). Reference to a previously prepared or
outside document should, where appropriate, include a reference to the page or pages where the
statement is substantiated.

Supporting Information Sources. A source list should be attached, and other sources used or individuals
contacted should be cited in the discussion.

This is only a suggested form, and lead agencies are free to use different formats; however, lead
agencies should normally address the questions from this checklist that are relevant to a project's
environmental effects in whatever format is selected.

The explanation of each issue should identify:
a) The significance criteria or threshold, if any, used to evaluate each question; and

b) The mitigation measure identified, if any, to reduce the impact to less than significance.

Page 4 of 31

Item G - 18 of 56



CEQA Environmental Checklist Form
File No: PDCA18-004

Issues Potentially Less Than Less Than No
Significant Significant Significant Impact
Impact With Impact
Mitigation
1) AESTHETICS. Would the project:
a) Have a substantial adverse effect on a scenic vista? ] ] ] X
b) Substantially damage scenic resources, including, but not ] ] ] X
limited to, trees, rock outcroppings, and historic buildings
within a state scenic highway?
c) Substantially degrade the existing visual character or ] ] ] X
quality of the site and its surroundings?
d) Create a new source of substantial light or glare which ] ] ] X
would adversely affect day or nighttime views in the area?
2) AGRICULTURE AND FOREST RESOURCES. In determining
whether impacts to agricultural resources are significant
environmental effects, lead agencies may refer to the
California Agricultural Land Evaluation and Site Assessment
Model (1997) prepared by the California Department of
Conservation as an optional model to use in assessing impacts
on agriculture and farmland. In determining whether impacts
to forest resources, including timberland, are significant
environmental effects, lead agencies may refer to information
compiled by the California Department of Forestry and Fire
Protection regarding the state’s inventory of forest land,
including the Forest and Range Assessment Project and the
Forest Legacy Assessment project; and forest carbon
measurement methodology provided in Forest protocols
adopted by the California Air Resources Board. Would the
project:
a) Convert Prime Farmland, Unique Farmland, or Farmland ] ] ] X
of Statewide Importance (Farmland), as shown on the
maps prepared pursuant to the Farmland Mapping and
Monitoring Program of the California Resources Agency,
to non-agricultural use?
b) Conflict with existing zoning for agricultural use, or a ] ] ] X
Williamson Act contract?
c) Conflict with existing zoning for, or cause rezoning of, ] ] ] X
forest land (as defined in Public Resources Code section
12220(g)), timberland (as defined by Public Resources
Code section 4526), or timberland zoned Timberland
Production (as defined by Government Code section
51104(g))?
d) Result in the loss of forest land or conversion of forest ] ] ] X
land to non-forest use?
e) Involve other changes in the existing environment which, ] ] ] X
due to their location or nature, could result in conversion
of Farmland, to non-agricultural use or conversion of
forest land to non-forest use?
3) AIR QUALITY. Where available, the significance criteria

established by the applicable air quality management or air
pollution control district may be relied upon to make the
following determinations. Would the project:

a) Conflict with or obstruct implementation of the applicable
air quality plan?

b) Violate any air quality standard or contribute substantially
to an existing or projected air quality violation?

Page 5 of 31

Item G - 19 of 56



CEQA Environmental Checklist Form
File No: PDCA18-004

Issues Potentially Less Than Less Than No
Significant Significant Significant Impact
Impact With Impact
Mitigation
c) Resultin a cumulatively considerable net increase of any ] ] ] X
criteria pollutant for which the project region is
nonattainment under an applicable federal or state
ambient air quality standard (including releasing
emissions which exceed quantitative thresholds for
0zone precursors)?
d) Expose sensitive receptors to substantial pollutant ] ] ] X
concentrations?
e) Create objectionable odors affecting a substantial ] ] ] |Z|

number of people?

4)

BIOLOGICAL RESOURCES. Would the project:

a)

Have a substantial adverse effect, either directly or
through habitat modifications, on any species identified
as a candidate, sensitive, or special status species in
local or regional plans, policies, or regulations, or by the
California Department of Fish and Game or U.S. Fish and
Wildlife Service?

b)

Have a substantial adverse effect on any riparian habitat
or other sensitive natural community identified in local or
regional plans, policies, regulations or by the California
Department of Fish and Game or U.S. Fish and Wildlife
Service?

<)

Have a substantial adverse effect on federally protected
wetlands as defined by Section 404 of the Clean Water
Act (including, but not limited to, marsh, vernal pool,
coastal, etc.) through direct removal, filling, hydrological
interruption, or other means?

d)

Interfere substantially with the movement of any native
resident or migratory fish or wildlife species or with
established native resident or migratory wildlife corridors,
or impede the use of native wildlife nursery sites?

e)

Conflict with any local policies or ordinances protecting
biological resources, such as a tree preservation policy or
ordinance?

f)

Conflict with the provisions of an adopted Habitat
Conservation Plan, Natural Community Conservation
Plan, or other approved local, regional, or state habitat
conservation plan?

[

[

[

X

5)

CULTURAL RESOURCES. Would the project:

a)

Cause a substantial adverse change in the significance
of a historical resource as defined in California Code of
Regulations Section 15064.5?

b)

Cause a substantial adverse change in the significance
of an archaeological resource pursuant to California
Code of Regulations Section 15064.5?

c)

Directly or indirectly destroy a unique paleontological
resource or site or unique geologic feature?

d)

Disturb any human remains, including those interred
outside of formal cemeteries?

e)

Cause a substantial adverse change in the significance
of a Tribal Cultural Resource as defined in Public
Resources Code Section 21074?

0 O I | I

0 O I | I

(N O | A

X X X X X

6)

GEOLOGY AND SOILS. Would the project:

Page 6 of 31

Item G - 20 of 56



CEQA Environmental Checklist Form
File No: PDCA18-004

Issues Potentially Less Than Less Than No
Significant Significant Significant Impact
Impact With Impact
Mitigation
a) Expose people or structures to potential substantial ] ] ] X
adverse effects, including the risk of loss, injury or death
involving:
i) Rupture of a known earthquake fault, as delineated ] ] ] X
on the most recent Alquist-Priolo Earthquake Fault
Zoning Map issued by the State Geologist for the
area or based on other substantial evidence of a
known fault? Refer to Division of Mines and
Geology Special Publication 42.
iy  Strong seismic ground shaking? ] ] ] X
i) Seismic-related ground failure, including ] ] ] X
liquefaction?
iv) Landslides? ] ] ] X
b) Result in substantial soil erosion or the loss of topsoil? ] ] ] X
c) Be located on a geologic unit or soil that is unstable, or ] ] ] X
that would become unstable as a result of the project, and
potentially result in on- or off-site landslide, lateral
spreading, subsidence, liquefaction or collapse?
d) Be located on expansive soil, as defined in Table 18 1 B ] ] ] X
of the Uniform Building Code (1994), creating substantial
risks to life or property?
e) Have soils incapable of adequately supporting the use of ] ] ] X

septic tanks or alternative waste water disposal systems
where sewers are not available for the disposal of waste
water?

7) GREENHOUSE GAS EMISSIONS. Would the project:
a) Generate greenhouse gas emissions, either directly or ] ] ] X
indirectly, that may have a significant impact on the
environment?
b) Conflict with an applicable plan, policy or regulation ] ] ] X
adopted for the purpose of reducing the emission of
greenhouse gases?
8) HAZARDS AND HAZARDOUS MATERIALS. Would the
project:
a) Create a significant hazard to the public or the ] ] ] X

environment through the routine transport, use, or
disposal of hazardous materials?

b)

Create a significant hazard to the public or the
environment through reasonably foreseeable upset and
accident conditions involving the release of hazardous
materials into the environment?

c)

Emit hazardous emissions or handle hazardous or
acutely hazardous materials, substances, or waste within
one-quarter mile of an existing or proposed school?

d)

Be located on a site which is included on a list of
hazardous materials sites compiled pursuant to
Government Code section 65962.5 and, as a result,
would it create a significant hazard to the public or the
environment?

e)

For a project located within the safety zone of the airport
land use compatibility plan for ONT or Chino Airports,
would the project result in a safety hazard for people
residing or working in the project area?

Page 7 of 31

Item G - 21 of 56



CEQA Environmental Checklist Form
File No: PDCA18-004

Issues

Potentially
Significant
Impact

Less Than
Significant
With
Mitigation

Less Than
Significant
Impact

No
Impact

f)

For a project within the vicinity of a private airstrip, would
the project result in a safety hazard for people residing or
working in the project area?

[

[

[

g) Impair implementation of or physically interfere with an ] ] ] X
adopted emergency response plan or emergency
evacuation plan?

h) Expose people or structures to a significant risk of loss, ] ] ] X

injury or death involving wildland fires, including where
wildlands are adjacent to urbanized areas or where
residences are intermixed with wildlands?

9)

HYDROLOGY AND WATER QUALITY. Would the project:

a)

Violate any other water quality standards or waste
discharge requirements or potential for discharge of
storm water pollutants from areas of material storage,
vehicle or equipment fueling, vehicle or equipment
maintenance (including washing), waste handling,
hazardous materials handling or storage, delivery areas
or loading docks, or other outdoor work areas?

b)

Substantially deplete groundwater supplies or interfere
substantially with groundwater recharge such that there
would be a net deficit in aquifer volume or a lowering of
the local groundwater table level (e.g., the production rate
of pre-existing nearby wells would drop to a level which
would not support existing land uses or planned uses for
which permits have been granted)?

<)

Substantially alter the existing drainage pattern of the site
or area, including through the alteration of the course of
a stream or river, in a manner which would result in
substantial erosion or siltation on- or off-site or volume of
storm water runoff to cause environmental harm or
potential for significant increase in erosion of the project
site or surrounding areas?

d)

Substantially alter the existing drainage pattern of the site
or area, including through the alteration of the course of
a stream or river, or substantially increase the rate or
amount of surface runoff in a manner which would result
in flooding on- or off-site or potential for significant
changes in the flow velocity or volume of storm water
runoff to cause environmental harm?

e)

Create or contribute runoff water which would exceed the
capacity of existing or planned storm water drainage
systems or provide substantial additional sources of
polluted runoff during construction and/or post-
construction activity?

f)

Otherwise substantially degrade water quality or potential
for discharge of storm water to affect the beneficial uses
of receiving water?

9)

Place housing within a 100-year flood hazard area as
mapped on a federal Flood Hazard Boundary or Flood
Insurance Rate Map or other flood hazard delineation
map?

h)

Place within a 100-year flood hazard area structures
which would impede or redirect flood flows?

[

[

X

Expose people or structures to a significant risk of loss,
injury or death involving flooding, including flooding as a
result of the failure of a levee or dam?

Page 8 of 31

Item G - 22 of 56



CEQA Environmental Checklist Form
File No: PDCA18-004

Issues

Potentially
Significant
Impact

Less Than
Significant
With
Mitigation

Less Than
Significant
Impact

No
Impact

)

Expose people or structures to inundation by seiche,
tsunami, or mudflow?

[

[

[

10) LAND USE AND PLANNING. Would the project:

a)

Physically divide an established community?

b)

Conflict with any applicable land use plan, policy, or
regulation of an agency with jurisdiction over the project
(including, but not limited to the general plan, airport land
use compatibility plan, specific plan, local coastal
program, or zoning ordinance) adopted for the purpose of
avoiding or mitigating an environmental effect?

L]
L]

L]
L]

XX

c)

Conflict with any applicable habitat conservation plan or
natural community conservation plan?

11) MINERAL RESOURCES. Would the project:

mineral resource recovery site delineated on a local
general plan, specific plan or other land use plan?

a) Result in the loss of availability of a known mineral ] ] ] X
resource that would be of value to the region and the
residents of the state?

b) Result in the loss of availability of a locally-important ] ] ] X

12) NOISE. Would the project result in:

a)

Exposure of persons to or generation of noise levels in
excess of standards established in the local general plan
or noise ordinance, or applicable standards of other
agencies?

[

[

[

X

b)

Exposure of persons to or generation of excessive
ground-borne vibration or ground-borne noise levels?

c)

A substantial permanent increase in ambient noise levels
in the project vicinity above levels existing without the
project?

d)

A substantial temporary or periodic increase in ambient
noise levels in the project vicinity above levels existing
without the project?

e)

For a project located within the noise impact zones of the
airport land use compatibility plan for ONT and Chino
Airports, would the project expose people residing or
working in the project area to excessive noise levels?

O O g g

O O g g

O O O 0O

M X X X

f)

For a project within the vicinity of a private airstrip, would
the project expose people residing or working in the
project area to excessive noise levels?

[

[

X

13) POPULATION AND HOUSING. Would the project:

a)

Induce substantial population growth in an area, either
directly (for example, by proposing new homes and
businesses) or indirectly (for example, through extension
of road or other infrastructure)?

b)

Displace substantial numbers of existing housing,
necessitating the construction of replacement housing
elsewhere?

c)

Displace substantial numbers of people, necessitating
the construction of replacement housing elsewhere?

14) PUBLIC SERVICES. Would the project:

Page 9 of 31

Item G - 23 of 56



CEQA Environmental Checklist Form
File No: PDCA18-004

Issues

Potentially
Significant
Impact

Less Than
Significant
With
Mitigation

Less Than
Significant
Impact

No
Impact

a)

Result in substantial adverse physical impacts associated
with the provision of new or physically altered
governmental facilities, need for new or physically altered
governmental facilities, the construction of which could
cause significant environmental impacts, in order to
maintain acceptable service ratios, response times or
other performance objectives for any of the public
services:

i)  Fire protection?

ii)  Police protection?

iii) Schools?

iv) Parks?

v)  Other public facilities?

EpENEEi

EpENEEi

Oogoin

XXX XX

15) RECREATION. Would the project:

a) Increase the use of existing neighborhood and regional ] ] ] X
parks or other recreational facilities such that substantial
physical deterioration of the facility would occur or be
accelerated?

b) Does the project include recreational facilities or require ] ] ] X

the construction or expansion of recreational facilities
which have an adverse physical effect on the
environment?

16) TRANSPORTATION/TRAFFIC. Would the project:

a)

Conflict with an applicable plan, ordinance or policy
establishing measures of effectiveness for the
performance of the circulation system, taking into account
all modes of transportation including mass transit and
non-motorized travel and relevant components of the
circulation system, including but not limited to
intersections, streets, highways and freeways, pedestrian
and bicycle paths, and mass transit?

b)

Conflict with an applicable congestion management
program, including, but not limited to, level of service
standards and travel demand measures, or other
standards established by the county congestion
management agency for designated roads or highways?

c)

Result in a change in air traffic patterns, including either
an increase in traffic levels or a change in location that
results in substantial safety risks?

d)

Substantially increase hazards due to a design feature
(e.g., sharp curves or dangerous intersections) or
incompatible uses (e.g., farm equipment)?

e)

Result in inadequate emergency access?

f)

Result in inadequate parking capacity?

9)

Conflict with adopted policies, plans, or programs
regarding public transit, bicycle, or pedestrian facilities, or
otherwise decrease the performance or safety of such
facilities?

g o o

g o o

I I A

MIXX X X

17) UTILITIES AND SERVICE SYSTEMS. Would the project:

Page 10 of 31

Item G - 24 of 56



CEQA Environmental Checklist Form
File No: PDCA18-004

Issues

Potentially
Significant
Impact

Less Than
Significant
With
Mitigation

Less Than
Significant
Impact

No
Impact

a)

Exceed wastewater treatment requirements of the
applicable Regional Water Quality Control Board?

[

[

[

b)

Require or result in the construction of new water or
wastewater treatment facilities or expansion of existing
facilities, the construction of which could cause significant
environmental effects?

[

[

[

c)

Require or result in the construction of new storm water
drainage facilities or expansion of existing facilities, the
construction of which could cause significant
environmental effects?

d)

Have sufficient water supplies available to serve the
project from existing entitlements and resources, or are
new or expanded entitlements needed? In making this
determination, the City shall consider whether the project
is subject to the water supply assessment requirements
of Water Code Section 10910, et seq. (SB 610), and the
requirements of Government Code Section 664737 (SB
221).

e)

Result in a determination by the wastewater treatment
provider which serves or may serve the project that it has
adequate capacity to serve the project's projected
demand in addition to the provider's existing
commitments?

f)

Be served by a landfill with sufficient permitted capacity
to accommodate the project's solid waste disposal
needs?

9)

Comply with federal, state, and local statutes and
regulations related to solid waste?

18) MANDATORY FINDINGS OF SIGNIFICANCE

a)

Does the project have the potential to degrade the quality
of the environment, substantially reduce the habitat of a
fish or wildlife species, cause a fish or wildlife population
to drop below self-sustaining levels, threaten to eliminate
a plant or animal community, substantially reduce the
number or restrict the range of a rare or endangered plant
or animal or eliminate important examples of the major
periods of California history or prehistory?

b)

Does the project have the potential to achieve short-term
environmental goals to the disadvantage of long-term
environmental goals?

<)

Does the project have impacts that are individually
limited, but cumulatively considerable? ("Cumulatively
considerable” means that the incremental effects of a
project are considerable when viewed in connection with
the effects of past projects, the effects of other current
project, and the effects of probable future projects.)

d)

Does the project have environmental effects which will
cause substantial adverse effects on human beings,
either directly or indirectly?

[

[

[

X

Note: Authority cited: Sections 21083, 21083.05, Public Resources Code. Reference: Section 65088.4, Gov. Code; Sections
21080, 21083.05, 21095, Pub. Resources Code; Eureka Citizens for Responsible Govt. v. City of Eureka (2007) 147 Cal.App.4th
357; Protect the Historic Amador Waterways v. Amador Water Agency (2004) 116 Cal.App.4th at 1109; San Franciscans Upholding

the Downtown Plan v. City and County of San Francisco (2002) 102 Cal.App.4th 656.

Page 11 of 31

Item G - 25 of 56



CEQA Environmental Checklist Form
File No: PDCA18-004

| EXPLANATION OF ISSUES
1) AESTHETICS. Would the project:

a) Have a substantial adverse effect on a scenic vista?

Discussion of Effects: The proposed project will not have a significant adverse effect aesthetically.
As provided in TOP EIR, the City of Ontario’s physical setting lends opportunities for many views
of the community and surrounding natural features, including panoramic views of the San
Bernardino and San Gabriel Mountains and stretches of open space and undeveloped land south
of Riverside Drive. TOP EIR provides that compliance with TOP Policy CD1-5 in the Community
Design Element will avoid significant impacts to scenic vista by making it the policy of the City to
protect public views of the San Gabriel Mountains. The proposed Development Code Amendment
to increase the allowable building/structure height from 55 feet to 80 feet within the IH (Heavy
Industrial) zoning district does not propose or involve any new development or construction. The
IH zoning district is located within the eastern portion of the City generally located south of the I-10
Freeway and east of the I-15 Freeway. The majority of the IH zone has been developed with heavy
industrial uses and with structures/buildings exceeding 55 feet in height. Subsequent development
resulting from the proposed Development Code Amendment is not anticipated to result in any
alteration of existing public views of the San Gabriel Mountains. Since no adverse aesthetic impacts
are expected, no mitigation is necessary.

Mitigation: None required. The project will not result in any new, increased or substantially different
impacts, other than those previously considered and addressed in the Certified TOP FEIR. No
changes or additions to TOP FEIR analyses are necessary.

b) Substantially damage scenic resources, including, but not limited to, tress, rock
outcroppings and historic buildings within a state scenic highway?

Discussion of Effects: The City of Ontario is served by three freeways: 1-10, I-15, and SR-60. 1-10
and SR-60 traverse the northern and central portion of the City, respectively, in an east—west
direction. 1-15 traverses the northeastern portion of the City in a north—south direction. These
segments of I-10, 1-15, and SR-60 have not been officially designated as scenic highways by the
California Department of Transportation. The proposed Development Code Amendment to
increase the allowable building/structure height from 55 feet to 80 feet within the IH (Heavy
Industrial) zoning district does not propose or involve any new development or construction. The
IH zoning district is located within the eastern portion of the City generally located south of the I-10
Freeway and east of the I-15 Freeway. The majority of the IH zone has been developed with heavy
industrial uses and with structures/buildings exceeding 55 feet in height. Therefore, it will not result
in adverse environmental impacts.

Mitigation: None required.

c) Substantially degrade the existing visual character or quality of the site and its
surroundings?

Discussion of Effects: The project would not degrade the existing visual character or quality of the
site or its surroundings. The proposed Development Code Amendment to increase the allowable
building/structure height from 55 feet to 80 feet within the IH (Heavy Industrial) zoning district does
not propose or involve any new development or construction. The IH zoning district is located
within the eastern portion of the City generally located south of the I-10 Freeway and east of the I-
15 Freeway. The majority of the IH zone has been developed with heavy industrial uses and with
structures/buildings exceeding 55 feet in height. The IH zone is located in an area that is
characterized by industrial development and is surrounded by industrial land uses. The proposed
Development Code Amendment would not impact the allowable uses that closely correlate with
land use designations that surround the IH zone. Therefore, no impacts are anticipated.

Mitigation: None required. The project will not result in any new, increased or substantially different
impacts, other than those previously considered and addressed in the Certified TOP FEIR. No
changes or additions to TOP FEIR analyses are necessary.

Page 12 of 31

Item G - 26 of 56



CEQA Environmental Checklist Form
File No: PDCA18-004

d) Create anew source of substantial light or glare that would adversely affect day or nighttime
views in the area?

Discussion of Effects: The proposed project would not introduce new lighting to the surrounding
area beyond what was anticipated in the Certified TOP FEIR. Therefore, no new adverse impacts
are anticipated.

Mitigation: None required. The Project will not result in any new, increased or substantially different
impacts, other than those previously considered and addressed in the Certified TOP FEIR. No
changes or additions to TOP FEIR analyses are necessary.

2) AGRICULTURE AND FOREST RESOURCES. In determining whether impacts to agricultural
resources are significant environmental effects, lead agencies may refer to the California Agricultural
Land Evaluation and Site Assessment Model prepared by the California Department of Conservation
as an optional model to use in assessing impacts on agriculture and farmland. In determining whether
impacts to forest resources, including timberland, are significant environmental effects, lead agencies
may refer to information compiled by the California Department of Forestry and Fire Protection
regarding the state’s inventory of forest land, including the Forest and Range Assessment Project and
the Forest Legacy Assessment project; and forest carbon measurement methodology provided in
Forest Protocols adopted by the California Air Resources Board. Would the project:

a) Convert Prime Farmland, Unique Farmland, or Farmland of Statewide Importance
(Farmland), as shown on the maps prepared pursuant to the Farmland Mapping and
Monitoring Program of the California Resources Agency, to non-agricultural use?

Discussion of Effects: The IH zone is not zoned for agricultural uses. The majority of the IH zone is
previously developed. The project will not create any new impacts to agricultural uses in the vicinity
which were not identified in the Certified TOP FEIR. As a result, no new adverse environmental
impacts are anticipated.

Mitigation: No new mitigation measures required. The Project will not result in any new, increased
or substantially different impacts, other than those previously considered and addressed in the
Certified TOP FEIR. No changes or additions to TOP FEIR analyses are necessary.

b) Conflict with existing zoning for agricultural use, or a Williamson Act contract?

Discussion of Effects: The IH zone is not zoned for agricultural use. Furthermore, there is no
Williamson Act contract in effect within the IH zone. Therefore, no impacts to agricultural uses are
anticipated, nor will there be any conflict with existing or Williamson Act contracts.

Mitigation: No new mitigation measures required. The project will not result in any new, increased
or substantially different impacts, other than those previously considered and addressed in the
Certified TOP FEIR. No changes or additions to TOP FEIR analyses are necessary.

c) Conflict with existing zoning for, or cause rezoning of, forest land (as defined in Public
Resources Code section 12220(g)), timberland (as defined by Public Resources Code
section 4526), or timberland zoned Timberland Production (as defined by Government Code
section 51104(g)?

Discussion of Effects: The project would not result in the rezoning of forest land, timberland, or
timberland zoned Timberland Production because such land use designations do not exist within
the City of Ontario. Therefore, no adverse impacts are anticipated.

Mitigation: No new mitigation measures required. The project will not result in any new, increased
or substantially different impacts, other than those previously considered and addressed in the
Certified TOP FEIR. No changes or additions to TOP FEIR analyses are necessary.

d) Resultin the loss of forest land or conversion of forest land to non-forest use?

Discussion of Effects: There is currently no land in the City of Ontario that qualifies as forest land
as defined in Public Resources Code section 12220(g). Neither The Ontario Plan nor the City’s
Zoning Code provide designations for forest land. Consequently, the proposed project would not
result in the loss or conversion of forest land.

Page 13 of 31

Item G - 27 of 56



CEQA Environmental Checklist Form
File No: PDCA18-004

Mitigation: No new mitigation measures required. The project will not result in any new, increased
or substantially different impacts, other than those previously considered and addressed in the
Certified TOP FEIR. No changes or additions to TOP FEIR analyses are necessary.

e) Involve other changes in the existing environment, which, due to their location or nature,
could individually or cumulatively result in loss of Farmland to non-agricultural use or
conversion of forest land to non-forest use?

Discussion of Effects: The IH zone is not designated as Farmland and there are no agricultural
uses occurring within the zone. As a result, to the extent that the project would result in changes to
the existing environment, those changes would not result in loss of Farmland to non-agricultural
use.

Additionally, there is currently no land in the City of Ontario that qualifies as forest land as defined
in Public Resources Code Section 12220(g). Neither The Ontario Plan nor the City’s Zoning Code
provide designations for forest land. Consequently, to the extent that the proposed project would
result in changes to the existing environment, those changes would not impact forest land.

Mitigation: No new mitigation measures required. The project will not result in any new, increased
or substantially different impacts, other than those previously considered and addressed in the
Certified TOP FEIR. No changes or additions to TOP FEIR analyses are necessary.

3) AIR QUALITY. Where available, the significance criteria established by the applicable air quality
management or air pollution control district may be relied upon to make the following determinations.
Would the project:

a) Conflict with or obstruct implementation of the applicable air quality plan?

Discussion of Effects: The City is located in a non-attainment region of South Coast Air Basin
(SCAB). However, this impact has already been evaluated and mitigated to the extent feasible in
TOP FEIR. TOP FEIR has addressed short-term construction impacts, however, and adequate
mitigation (Mitigation Measure 3-1) has been adopted by the City that would help reduce emissions
and air quality impacts. No new impacts beyond those identified in TOP FEIR would result from
Project implementation. The proposed Development Code Amendment to increase the allowable
building/structure height from 55 feet to 80 feet within the IH zoning district does not propose or
involve any new development or construction and would not generate significant new or greater air
quality impacts than identified in TOP FEIR.

Mitigation: No new mitigation measures required. The project will not result in any new, increased
or substantially different impacts, other than those previously considered and addressed in the
Certified TOP FEIR. No changes or additions to TOP FEIR analyses are necessary.

b) Violate any air quality standard or contribute substantially to an existing or projected air
qguality violation?

Discussion of Effects: The project will not generate significant new or greater air quality impacts
than identified in TOP FEIR. Adequate mitigation (Mitigation Measure 3-1) has already been
adopted by the City that would reduce emissions and air quality impacts to a less-than-significant
level. No new impacts beyond those identified in TOP FEIR would result from Project
implementation.

Mitigation: No new mitigation measures required. The project will not result in any new, increased
or substantially different impacts, other than those previously considered and addressed in the
Certified TOP FEIR. No changes or additions to TOP FEIR analyses are necessary.

¢) Result in a cumulatively considerable net increase of any criteria pollutant for which the
project region is non-attainment under an applicable federal or state ambient air quality
standard (including releasing emissions that exceed quantitative thresholds for ozone
precursors)?

Discussion of Effects: The proposed Development Code Amendment to increase the allowable
building/structure height from 55 feet to 80 feet within the IH zoning district does not propose or
involve any new development or construction project and will not generate significant new or

Page 14 of 31

Item G - 28 of 56



CEQA Environmental Checklist Form
File No: PDCA18-004

greater air quality impacts than identified in TOP FEIR. Adequate mitigation (Mitigation Measure 3-
1) has already been adopted by the City that would reduce emissions and air quality impacts to a
less-than-significant level. No new impacts beyond those identified in TOP FEIR would result from
Project implementation.

Mitigation: No new mitigation measures required. The project will not result in any new, increased
or substantially different impacts, other than those previously considered and addressed in the
Certified TOP FEIR. No changes or additions to TOP FEIR analyses are necessary.

d) Expose sensitive receptors to substantial pollutant concentrations?

Discussion of Effects: As discussed in Section 5.3 of TOP FEIR, the proposed project is within a
non-attainment region of the SCAB. Essentially this means that any new contribution of emissions
into the SCAB would be considered significant and adverse. The proposed Development Code
Amendment to increase the allowable building/structure height from 55 feet to 80 feet within the IH
zoning district does not propose or involve any new development or construction project and will
not generate significant new or greater air quality impacts than identified in TOP FEIR. Adequate
mitigation (Mitigation Measure 3-1) has already been adopted by the City that would reduce air
pollutants to a less-than-significant level. No new impacts beyond those identified in TOP FEIR
would result from Project implementation.

Mitigation: No new mitigation measures required. The project will not result in any new, increased
or substantially different impacts, other than those previously considered and addressed in the
Certified TOP FEIR. No changes or additions to TOP FEIR analyses are necessary.

e) Create objectionable odors affecting a substantial number of people?

Discussion of Effects: The proposed Development Code Amendment to increase the allowable
building/structure height from 55 feet to 80 feet within the IH zoning district does not propose or
involve any new development or construction project. Any new buildings and any future
development resulting from the proposed project will be required to comply with the standards in
place at the time of development. The Project will not create significant objectionable odors.
Therefore the Project will not introduce new odors beyond those previously analyzed in TOP EIR

Mitigation: No new mitigation measures required. The project will not result in any new, increased
or substantially different impacts, other than those previously considered and addressed in the
Certified TOP FEIR. No changes or additions to TOP FEIR analyses are necessary.

4) BIOLOGICAL RESOURCES. Would the project:

a) Have a substantial adverse effect, either directly or through habitat modifications, on any
species identified as a candidate, sensitive, or special status species in local or regional
plans, policies, or regulations, or by the California Department of Fish and Game or U.S.
Fish and Wildlife Service?

Discussion of Effects: The proposed Development Code Amendment to increase the allowable
building/structure height from 55 feet to 80 feet within the IH zoning district does not propose or
involve any new development or construction project. Therefore, no adverse impacts are
anticipated.

Mitigation: None required. The project will not result in any new, increased or substantially different
impacts, other than those previously considered and addressed in the Certified TOP FEIR. No
changes or additions to TOP FEIR analyses are necessary.

b) Have a substantial adverse effect on any riparian habitat or other sensitive natural
community identified in local or regional plans, policies, regulations or by the California
Department of Fish and Game or U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service?

Discussion of Effects: The proposed Development Code Amendment to increase the allowable
building/structure height from 55 feet to 80 feet within the IH zoning district does not propose or
involve any new development or construction project. Therefore, no adverse environmental impacts
are anticipated.

Page 15 of 31

Item G - 29 of 56



CEQA Environmental Checklist Form
File No: PDCA18-004

Mitigation: None required. The project will not result in any new, increased or substantially different
impacts, other than those previously considered and addressed in the Certified TOP FEIR. No
changes or additions to TOP FEIR analyses are necessary.

c) Have a substantial adverse effect on federally protected wetlands as defined by Section 404
of the Clean Water Act (including, but not limited to, marsh, vernal pool, coastal, etc.)
through direct removal, filling, hydrological interruption, or other means?

Discussion of Effects: The proposed Development Code Amendment to increase the allowable
building/structure height from 55 feet to 80 feet within the IH zoning district does not propose or
involve any new development or construction project. Therefore, project implementation would
have no impact on these resources.

Mitigation: None required. The project will not result in any new, increased or substantially different
impacts, other than those previously considered and addressed in the Certified TOP FEIR. No
changes or additions to TOP FEIR analyses are necessary.

d) Interfere substantially with the movement of any native resident or migratory fish or wildlife
species or with established native resident or migratory wildlife corridors, or impede the
use of native wildlife nursery sites?

Discussion of Effects: The proposed Development Code Amendment to increase the allowable
building/structure height from 55 feet to 80 feet within the IH zoning district does not propose or
involve any new development or construction project. New development within the IH zone would
be subject to TOP FEIR requirements for implementation of regulatory and standard conditions of
approval to mitigate for impacts to species and project-specific CEQA review will be undertaken at
the appropriate time. Policy ER5-1 encourages efforts to conserve flood control channels and
transmission line corridors as wildlife movement corridors. Therefore, no adverse environmental
impacts are anticipated.

Mitigation: None required. The project will not result in any new, increased or substantially different
impacts, other than those previously considered and addressed in the Certified TOP FEIR. No
changes or additions to TOP FEIR analyses are necessary.

e) Conflict with any local policies or ordinances protecting biological resources, such as atree
preservation policy or ordinance?

Discussion of Effects: The City of Ontario does not have any ordinances protecting biological
resources. Therefore the project does not conflict with existing plans. As a result, no adverse
environmental impacts are anticipated.

Mitigation: None required. The project will not result in any new, increased or substantially different
impacts, other than those previously considered and addressed in the Certified TOP FEIR. No
changes or additions to TOP FEIR analyses are necessary.

f) Conflict with the provisions of an adopted Habitat Conservation Plan (HCP), Natural
Community Conservation Plan (NCCP), or other approved local, regional, or state habitat
conservation plan?

Discussion of Effects: The project site is not part of an adopted HCP, NCCP or other approved
habitat conservation plan. As a result, no adverse environmental impacts are anticipated.

Mitigation: None required. The project will not result in any new, increased or substantially different
impacts, other than those previously considered and addressed in the Certified TOP FEIR. No
changes or additions to TOP FEIR analyses are necessary.

5) CULTURAL RESOURCES. Would the project:

a) Cause a substantial adverse change in the significance of a historical resource as defined
in Section 15064.5?

Discussion of Effects: The proposed Development Code Amendment to increase the allowable
building/structure height from 55 feet to 80 feet within the IH zoning district does not propose or

Page 16 of 31

ltem G - 30 of 56



CEQA Environmental Checklist Form
File No: PDCA18-004

involve any new development or construction project. Therefore, no new impacts beyond those
identified in TOP FEIR would result from the Project.

Mitigation: No new mitigation measures required. The project will not result in any new, increased
or substantially different impacts, other than those previously considered and addressed in the
Certified TOP FEIR. No changes or additions to TOP FEIR analyses are necessary.

b) Cause a substantial adverse change in the significance of an archaeological resource
pursuant to Section 15064.5?

Discussion of Effects: The Ontario Plan FEIR (Section 5.5) indicates no archeological sites or
resources have been recorded in the City with the Archeological Information Center at San
Bernardino County Museum. However, only about 10 percent of the City of Ontario has been
adequately surveyed for prehistoric or historic archaeology. While no adverse impacts to
archeological resources are anticipated, the City’s Standard Conditions of Approval for New
Development Projects, adopted by City Council Resolution No. 2017-027 on April 18, 2017 imposes
conditions which provide that in the event of unanticipated archeological discoveries, construction
activities will not continue or will moved to other parts of the project site and a qualified
archaeologist shall be contacted to determine significance of these resources. If the find is
discovered to be historical or unique archaeological resources, as defined in Section 15064.5 of
the CEQA Guidelines, avoidance or other appropriate measures shall be implemented.

Mitigation: No new mitigation measures required. The project will not result in any new, increased
or substantially different impacts, other than those previously considered and addressed in the
Certified TOP FEIR. No changes or additions to TOP FEIR analyses are necessary.

c) Directly or indirectly destroy a unique paleontological resource or site or unique geologic
feature?

Discussion of Effects: The City of Ontario is underlain by deposits of Quaternary and Upper-
Pleistocene sediments deposited during the Pliocene and early Pleistocene time, Quaternary Older
Alluvial sediments may contain significant, nonrenewable, paleontological resources and are,
therefore, considered to have high sensitivity at depths of 10 feet or more below ground surface. In
addition, the Ontario Plan FEIR (Section 5.5) indicates that one paleontological resource has been
discovered in the City. The proposed Development Code Amendment to increase the allowable
building/structure height from 55 feet to 80 feet within the IH zoning district does not propose or
involve any new development or construction project and no adverse impacts are anticipated.

Mitigation: No new mitigation measures required. The project will not result in any new, increased
or substantially different impacts, other than those previously considered and addressed in the
Certified TOP FEIR. No changes or additions to TOP FEIR analyses are necessary.

d) Disturb any human remains, including those interred outside of formal cemeteries?

Discussion of Effects: The proposed Development Code Amendment to increase the allowable
building/structure height from 55 feet to 80 feet within the IH zoning district does not propose or
involve any new development or construction project and no adverse impacts are anticipated.

Mitigation: No new mitigation measures required. The project will not result in any new, increased
or substantially different impacts, other than those previously considered and addressed in the
Certified TOP FEIR. No changes or additions to TOP FEIR analyses are necessary.

e) Cause a substantial adverse change in the significance of a Tribal Cultural Resource as
defined in Public Resources Code Section 210747

Discussion of Effects: The proposed Development Code Amendment to increase the allowable
building/structure height from 55 feet to 80 feet within the IH zoning district does not propose or
involve any new development or construction project and no adverse impacts are anticipated.

Mitigation: No new mitigation measures required. The project will not result in any new, increased
or substantially different impacts, other than those previously considered and addressed in the
Certified TOP FEIR. No changes or additions to TOP FEIR analyses are necessary.

Page 17 of 31

Item G - 31 of 56



CEQA Environmental Checklist Form
File No: PDCA18-004

6) GEOLOGY & SOILS. Would the project:

a) Expose people or structures to potential substantial adverse effects, including the risk of
loss, injury or death involving:

i) Rupture of a known earthquake fault, as delineated on the most recent Alquist-Priolo
Earthquake Fault Zoning Map issued by the State Geologist for the area or based on
other substantial evidence of a known fault? Refer to Division of Mines and Geology
Special Publication 42.

Discussion of Effects: There are no active faults known on the site and the project site is located
outside the Fault Rapture Hazard Zone (formerly Alquist-Priolo Zone). The Ontario Plan FEIR
(Section 5.7/Figure 5.7-2) identifies eight active or potentially active fault zones near the City.
Given that the closest fault zone is located more than ten miles from the project site, fault
rupture within the project area is not likely. All future development will comply with the Uniform
Building Code seismic design standards to reduce geologic hazard susceptibility; therefore, no
adverse impacts are anticipated.

Mitigation: None required. The project will not result in any new, increased or substantially
different impacts, other than those previously considered and addressed in the Certified TOP
FEIR. No changes or additions to TOP FEIR analyses are necessary.

i) Strong seismic ground shaking?

Discussion of Effects: There are no active faults known on the site and the project site is located
outside the Fault Rapture Hazard Zone (formerly Alquist-Priolo Zone). The Land Use Plan
(Figure LU-6) of the Policy Plan (General Plan) FEIR (Section 5.7/Figure 5.7-2) identifies eight
active or potentially active fault zones near the City. The closest fault zone is located more than
ten miles from the project site. The proximity of the site to the active faults will result in ground
shaking during moderate to severe seismic events. All future construction will be in compliance
with the California Building Code, the Ontario Municipal Code, The Ontario Plan and all other
ordinances adopted by the City related to construction and safety. Therefore, no adverse
impacts are anticipated.

Mitigation: None required. The project will not result in any new, increased or substantially
different impacts, other than those previously considered and addressed in the Certified TOP
FEIR. No changes or additions to TOP FEIR analyses are necessary.

iii) Seismic-related ground failure, including liquefaction?

Discussion of Effects: As identified in the TOP FEIR (Section 5.7), groundwater saturation of
sediments is required for earthquake induced liquefaction. In general, groundwater depths
shallower than 10 feet to the surface can cause the highest liquefaction susceptibility. Depth to
ground water at the project site during the winter months is estimated to be between 250 to
450 feet below ground surface; therefore, the liquefaction potential within the City is minimal.
Implementation of The Ontario Plan strategies, Uniform Building Code and Ontario Municipal
code would reduce impacts to a less than significant level.

Mitigation: None required. The project will not result in any new, increased or substantially
different impacts, other than those previously considered and addressed in the Certified TOP
FEIR. No changes or additions to TOP FEIR analyses are necessary.

iv) Landslides?

Discussion of Effects: The project would not expose people or structures to potential adverse
effects, including the risk of loss, injury, or death involving landslides because the relatively flat
topography of the project site (less than 2 percent slope across the City) makes the chance of
landslides remote. Implementation of The Ontario Plan strategies, Uniform Building Code and
Ontario Municipal Code would reduce impacts to a less than significant level.

Mitigation: None required. The project will not result in any new, increased or substantially
different impacts, other than those previously considered and addressed in the Certified TOP
FEIR. No changes or additions to TOP FEIR analyses are necessary.

Page 18 of 31

Item G - 32 of 56



CEQA Environmental Checklist Form
File No: PDCA18-004

b) Result in substantial soil erosion or the loss of topsoil?

Discussion of Effects: The proposed Development Code Amendment to increase the allowable
building/structure height from 55 feet to 80 feet within the IH zoning district does not propose or
involve any new development or construction project. The proposed project would not create
greater erosion impacts than were identified in the Certified TOP FEIR.

Mitigation: None required. The project will not result in any new, increased or substantially different
impacts, other than those previously considered and addressed in the Certified TOP FEIR. No
changes or additions to TOP FEIR analyses are necessary.

c) Be located on a geologic unit or soil that is unstable, or that would become unstable as a
result of the project, and potentially result in on- or off-site landslide, lateral spreading,
subsidence, liquefaction or collapse?

Discussion of Effects: The project would not create greater landslide potential impacts than were
identified in the Certified TOP FEIR. Therefore, no adverse impacts are anticipated.

Mitigation: None required. The project will not result in any new, increased or substantially different
impacts, other than those previously considered and addressed in the Certified TOP FEIR. No
changes or additions to TOP FEIR analyses are necessary.

d) Belocated on expansive soil, as defined in Table 18-1-B of the Uniform Building Code (1994),
creating substantial risks to life or property?

Discussion of Effects: The majority of Ontario, including the project site, is located on alluvial soil
deposits. These types of soils are not considered to be expansive; therefore, no adverse impacts
are anticipated.

Mitigation: None required. The project will not result in any new, increased or substantially different
impacts, other than those previously considered and addressed in the Certified TOP FEIR. No
changes or additions to TOP FEIR analyses are necessary.

e) Have soils incapable of adequately supporting the use of septic tanks or alternative
wastewater disposal systems where sewers are not available for the disposal of
wastewater?

Discussion of Effects: The proposed Development Code Amendment to increase the allowable
building/structure height from 55 feet to 80 feet within the IH zoning district does not propose or
involve any new development or construction project and no adverse impacts are anticipated.
Therefore, there will be no impact to septic tanks or alternate wastewater disposal systems.

Mitigation: None required. The project will not result in any new, increased or substantially different
impacts, other than those previously considered and addressed in the Certified TOP FEIR. No
changes or additions to TOP FEIR analyses are necessary.

7) GREENHOUSE GAS EMISSIONS. Would the project:

a) Generate greenhouse gas emissions, either directly or indirectly, that may have a significant
impact on the environment?

Discussion of Effects: The impact of buildout of The Ontario Plan on the environment due to the
emission of greenhouse gases (“GHGs") was analyzed in the Environmental Impact Report (“EIR”")
for the Policy Plan (General Plan). According to the EIR, this impact would be significant and
unavoidable. (Re-circulated Portions of the Ontario Plan Draft Environmental Impact Report, p. 2-
118.) This EIR was certified by the City on January 27, 2010, at which time a statement of overriding
considerations was also adopted for The Ontario Plan’s significant and unavoidable impacts,
including that concerning the emission of greenhouse gases.

The project will not create greater impacts than were identified in the Certified TOP FEIR. Pursuant
to Public Resources Code Section 21083.3, this impact need not be analyzed further, because (1)
the proposed project would result in an impact that was previously analyzed in The Ontario Plan
EIR, which was certified by the City; (2) the proposed project would not result in any greenhouse

Page 19 of 31

ltem G - 33 of 56



CEQA Environmental Checklist Form
File No: PDCA18-004

gas impacts that were not addressed in The Ontario Plan EIR; (3) the proposed project is consistent
with The Ontario Plan.

Mitigation: No new mitigation measures required. The project will not result in any new, increased
or substantially different impacts, other than those previously considered and addressed in the
Certified TOP FEIR. No changes or additions to TOP FEIR analyses are necessary. The mitigation
measures adopted as part of TOP FEIR adequately addresses any potential significant impacts
and there is no need for any additional mitigation measures.

b) Conflict with an applicable plan, policy or regulation adopted for the purpose of reducing
the emissions of greenhouse gases?

Discussion of Effects: The project will not create significantly greater impacts than were identified
in the Certified TOP FEIR. The proposed project is consistent with The Ontario Plan Goal ER 4 of
improving air quality by, among other things, implementation of Policy ER4-3, regarding the
reduction of greenhouse gas emissions in accordance with regional, state and federal regulations.
In addition, the proposed project is consistent with the policies outlined in Section 5.6.4 of the
Environmental Impact Report for The Ontario Plan, which aims to reduce the City’s contribution of
greenhouse gas emissions at build-out by 15 percent, because the project is upholding the
applicable City’s adopted mitigation measures as represented in 6-1 through 6-6. Therefore, the
proposed project does not conflict with an applicable plan, policy or regulation adopted for the
purpose of reducing emissions of greenhouse gases.

Mitigation: No new mitigation measures required. The project will not result in any new, increased
or substantially different impacts, other than those previously considered and addressed in the
Certified TOP FEIR. No changes or additions to TOP FEIR analyses are necessary.

8) HAZARDS & HAZARDOUS MATERIALS. Would the project:

a) Create a significant hazard to the public or the environment through the routine transport,
use or disposal of hazardous materials?

Discussion of Effects: The proposed Development Code Amendment to increase the allowable
building/structure height from 55 feet to 80 feet within the IH zoning district does not propose or
involve any new development or construction project. The project is not anticipated to involve the
transport, use or disposal of hazardous materials during project implementation; therefore, no
adverse impacts are anticipated.

Mitigation: None required. The project will not result in any new, increased or substantially different
impacts, other than those previously considered and addressed in the Certified TOP FEIR. No
changes or additions to TOP FEIR analyses are necessary.

b) Create a significant hazard to the public or the environment through reasonably foreseeable
upset and accident conditions involving the release of hazardous materials into the
environment?

Discussion of Effects: The proposed Development Code Amendment to increase the allowable
building/structure height from 55 feet to 80 feet within the IH zoning district does not propose or
involve any new development or construction project. The project is not anticipated to involve the
use or disposal of hazardous materials during project implementation; therefore, no adverse
impacts are anticipated.

Mitigation: None required. The project will not result in any new, increased or substantially different
impacts, other than those previously considered and addressed in the Certified TOP FEIR. No
changes or additions to TOP FEIR analyses are necessary.

¢) Emit hazardous emissions or handle hazardous or acutely hazardous materials, substances
or waste within one-quarter mile of an existing or proposed school?

Discussion of Effects: The proposed Development Code Amendment to increase the allowable
building/structure height from 55 feet to 80 feet within the IH zoning district does not propose or
involve any new development or construction project. The proposed project does not include the

Page 20 of 31

Item G - 34 of 56



CEQA Environmental Checklist Form
File No: PDCA18-004

use, emissions or handling of hazardous or acutely hazardous materials, substances or waste;
therefore, no impacts are anticipated.

Mitigation: None required. The project will not result in any new, increased or substantially different
impacts, other than those previously considered and addressed in the Certified TOP FEIR. No
changes or additions to TOP FEIR analyses are necessary.

d) Be located on a site which is included on a list of hazardous materials sites compiled
pursuant to Government Code Section 65962.5 and, as a result, would it create a significant
hazard to the public or the environment?

Discussion of Effects: The proposed Development Code Amendment to increase the allowable
building/structure height from 55 feet to 80 feet within the IH zoning district does not propose or
involve any new development or construction project. Therefore, the project would not create a
hazard to the public or the environment, and no impact is anticipated.

Mitigation: None required. The project will not result in any new, increased or substantially different
impacts, other than those previously considered and addressed in the Certified TOP FEIR. No
changes or additions to TOP FEIR analyses are necessary.

e) For a project located within the safety zone of the airport land use compatibility plan for
ONT or Chino Airports, would the project result in a safety hazard for people residing or
working in the project area?

Discussion of Effects: The proposed Development Code Amendment to increase the allowable
building/structure height from 55 feet to 80 feet within the IH zoning district does not propose or
involve any new development or construction project. Therefore, no impacts are anticipated.

Mitigation: None required. The project will not result in any new, increased or substantially different
impacts, other than those previously considered and addressed in the Certified TOP FEIR. No
changes or additions to TOP FEIR analyses are necessary.

f) For a project within the vicinity of a private airstrip, would the project result in a safety
hazard for people residing or working in the project area?

Discussion of Effects: The project site is not located within the vicinity of a private airstrip; therefore,
no impacts are anticipated.

Mitigation: None required. The project will not result in any new, increased or substantially different
impacts, other than those previously considered and addressed in the Certified TOP FEIR. No
changes or additions to TOP FEIR analyses are necessary.

g) Impair implementation of or physically interfere with an adopted emergency response plan
or emergency evacuation plan?

Discussion of Effects: The proposed project will not create greater impacts than were identified in
the Certified TOP FEIR. The City's Safety Element, as contained within The Ontario Plan, includes
policies and procedures to be administered in the event of a disaster. The Ontario Plan seeks
interdepartmental and inter-jurisdictional coordination and collaboration to be prepared for, respond
to and recover from every day and disaster emergencies. The proposed Development Code
Amendment to increase the allowable building/structure height from 55 feet to 80 feet within the IH
zoning district does not propose or involve any new development or construction project. In
addition, any future development within the IH zone will comply with the requirements of the Ontario
Fire Department and all City requirements for fire and other emergency access. Because future
development would be required to comply with all applicable State and City codes, any impacts
would be reduced to a less than significant level.

Mitigation: None required. The project will not result in any new, increased or substantially different
impacts, other than those previously considered and addressed in the Certified TOP FEIR. No
changes or additions to TOP FEIR analyses are necessary.

Page 21 of 31

ltem G - 35 of 56



CEQA Environmental Checklist Form
File No: PDCA18-004

h) Expose people or structures to a significant risk of loss, injury or death involving wildland
fires, including where wildlands are adjacent to urbanized areas or where residences are
intermixed with wildlands?

Discussion of Effects: The proposed Development Code Amendment to increase the allowable
building/structure height from 55 feet to 80 feet within the IH zoning district does not propose or
involve any new development or construction project and no adverse impacts are anticipated.

Mitigation: None required. The project will not result in any new, increased or substantially different
impacts, other than those previously considered and addressed in the Certified TOP FEIR. No
changes or additions to TOP FEIR analyses are necessary.

9) HYDROLOGY & WATER QUALITY. Would the project:

a) Violate any other water quality standards or waste discharge requirements or potential for
discharge of storm water pollutants from areas of material storage, vehicle or equipment
fueling, vehicle or equipment maintenance (including washing), waste handling, hazardous
materials handling or storage, delivery areas or loading docks, or other outdoor work areas?

Discussion of Effects: The proposed Development Code Amendment to increase the allowable
building/structure height from 55 feet to 80 feet within the IH zoning district does not propose or
involve any new development or construction project and no adverse impacts are anticipated.

Mitigation: None required. The project will not result in any new, increased or substantially different
impacts, other than those previously considered and addressed in the Certified TOP FEIR. No
changes or additions to TOP FEIR analyses are necessary.

b) Substantially deplete groundwater supplies or interfere substantially with groundwater
recharge such that there would be a net deficit in aquifer volume or a lowering of the local
groundwater table level (e.g., the production rate of pre-existing nearby wells would drop to
a level which would not support existing land uses or planned uses for which permits have
been granted)?

Discussion of Effects: The proposed Development Code Amendment to increase the allowable
building/structure height from 55 feet to 80 feet within the IH zoning district does not propose or
involve any new development or construction project and no adverse impacts are anticipated.

Mitigation: None required. The project will not result in any new, increased or substantially different
impacts, other than those previously considered and addressed in the Certified TOP FEIR. No
changes or additions to TOP FEIR analyses are necessary.

c) Substantially alter the existing drainage pattern of the site or area, including through the
alteration of the course of a stream or river, in a manner which would result in substantial
erosion or siltation on- or off-site or volume of storm water runoff to cause environmental
harm or potential for significant increases in erosion of the project site or surrounding
areas?

Discussion of Effects: The proposed Development Code Amendment to increase the allowable
building/structure height from 55 feet to 80 feet within the IH zoning district does not propose or
involve any new development or construction project and no adverse impacts are anticipated.

Mitigation: None required. The project will not result in any new, increased or substantially different
impacts, other than those previously considered and addressed in the Certified TOP FEIR. No
changes or additions to TOP FEIR analyses are necessary.

d) Substantially alter the existing drainage pattern of the site or area, including through the
alteration of the course of a stream or river, or substantially increase the rate or amount of
surface runoff in a manner that would result in flooding on- or off-site or potential for
significant changes in the flow velocity or volume of storm water runoff to cause
environmental harm?

Page 22 of 31

ltem G - 36 of 56



CEQA Environmental Checklist Form
File No: PDCA18-004

Discussion of Effects: The proposed Development Code Amendment to increase the allowable
building/structure height from 55 feet to 80 feet within the IH zoning district does not propose or
involve any new development or construction project and no adverse impacts are anticipated.

Mitigation: None required. The project will not result in any new, increased or substantially different
impacts, other than those previously considered and addressed in the Certified TOP FEIR. No
changes or additions to TOP FEIR analyses are necessary.

e) Create or contribute runoff water which would exceed the capacity of existing or planned
storm water drainage systems or provide substantial additional sources of polluted runoff
(a&b) during construction and/or post-construction activity?

Discussion of Effects: The proposed Development Code Amendment to increase the allowable
building/structure height from 55 feet to 80 feet within the IH zoning district does not propose or
involve any new development or construction project and no adverse impacts are anticipated.

Mitigation: None required. The project will not result in any new, increased or substantially different
impacts, other than those previously considered and addressed in the Certified TOP FEIR. No
changes or additions to TOP FEIR analyses are necessary.

f) Otherwise substantially degrade water quality or potential for discharge of storm water to
affect the beneficial uses of receiving water?

Discussion of Effects: The proposed Development Code Amendment to increase the allowable
building/structure height from 55 feet to 80 feet within the IH zoning district does not propose or
involve any new development or construction project and no adverse impacts are anticipated.

Mitigation: None required. The Project will not result in any new, increased or substantially different
impacts, other than those previously considered and addressed in the Certified TOP FEIR. No
changes or additions to TOP FEIR analyses are necessary.

g) Place housing within a 100-year flood hazard area as mapped on a federal Flood Hazard
Boundary or Flood Insurance Rate Map or other flood hazard delineation map?

Discussion of Effects: The proposed project does not include housing and will not create greater
impacts than were identified in the Certified TOP FEIR.

Mitigation: None required. The project will not result in any new, increased or substantially different
impacts, other than those previously considered and addressed in the Certified TOP FEIR. No
changes or additions to TOP FEIR analyses are necessary.

h) Place within a 100-year flood hazard area, structures that would impede or redirect flood
flows?

Discussion of Effects: The proposed project is not within a 100-year flood hazard area and will not
create greater impacts than were identified in the Certified TOP FEIR.

Mitigation: None required. The project will not result in any new, increased or substantially different
impacts, other than those previously considered and addressed in the Certified TOP FEIR. No
changes or additions to TOP FEIR analyses are necessary.

i) Expose people or structures to a significant risk of loss, injury or death involving flooding,
including flooding as a result of the failure of a levee or dam?

Discussion of Effects: The proposed project will not create greater impacts than were identified in
the Certified TOP FEIR. There are no levees or dams upstream from the project site that would
result in significant risk of loss, injury or death involving flooding, as a result of failure; therefore, no
impact are anticipated.

Mitigation: None required. The Project will not result in any new, increased or substantially different
impacts, other than those previously considered and addressed in the Certified TOP FEIR. No
changes or additions to TOP FEIR analyses are necessary.

i) Expose people or structures to inundation by seiche, tsunami or mudflow?

Page 23 of 31

Item G - 37 of 56



CEQA Environmental Checklist Form
File No: PDCA18-004

Discussion of Effects: The proposed Development Code Amendment to increase the allowable
building/structure height from 55 feet to 80 feet within the IH zoning district does not propose or
involve any new development or construction project. Furthermore, the City of Ontario has
relatively flat topography, less than two percent across the City, and the chance of mudflow is
remote. Therefore, no impacts are anticipated.

Mitigation: None required. The project will not result in any new, increased or substantially different
impacts, other than those previously considered and addressed in the Certified TOP FEIR. No
changes or additions to TOP FEIR analyses are necessary.

10) LAND USE & PLANNING. Would the project:
a) Physically divide an established community?

Discussion of Effects: The proposed Development Code Amendment to increase the allowable
building/structure height from 55 feet to 80 feet within the IH zoning district does not propose or
involve any new development or construction project. The proposed project will not create greater
impacts than were identified in the Certified TOP FEIR. No adverse impacts are anticipated.

Mitigation: None required. The project will not result in any new, increased or substantially different
impacts, other than those previously considered and addressed in the Certified TOP FEIR. No
changes or additions to TOP FEIR analyses are necessary.

b) Conflict with applicable land use plan, policy or regulation of agencies with jurisdiction over
the project (including, but not limited to general plan, airport land use compatibility plan,
specific plan, or development code) adopted for the purpose of avoiding or mitigation an
environmental effect?

Discussion of Effects: The proposed project will not create greater impacts than were identified in
the Certified TOP FEIR. The proposed project does not interfere with any policies for environmental
protection; therefore, no impacts are anticipated.

Mitigation: None required. The Project will not result in any new, increased or substantially different
impacts, other than those previously considered and addressed in the Certified TOP FEIR. No
changes or additions to TOP FEIR analyses are necessary.

c) Conflict with any applicable habitat conservation plan or natural community conservation
plan?

Discussion of Effects: There are no adopted habitat conservation plans in the project area;
therefore, no conflicts or impacts are anticipated.

Mitigation: None required. The Project will not result in any new, increased or substantially different
impacts, other than those previously considered and addressed in the Certified TOP FEIR. No
changes or additions to TOP FEIR analyses are necessary.

11) MINERAL RESOURCES. Would the project:

a) Result in the loss of availability of a known mineral resource that would be of value to the
region and the residents of the state?

Discussion of Effects: The proposed project will not create greater impacts than were identified in
the Certified TOP FEIR. The project site is located within a mostly developed area surrounded by
urban land uses. There are no known mineral resources in the area; therefore, no impacts are
anticipated.

Mitigation: None required. The project will not result in any new, increased or substantially different
impacts, other than those previously considered and addressed in the Certified TOP FEIR. No
changes or additions to TOP FEIR analyses are necessary.

b) Result in the loss of availability of a locally important mineral resource recovery site
delineated on alocal general plan, specific plan or other land use plan?

Page 24 of 31

ltem G - 38 of 56



CEQA Environmental Checklist Form
File No: PDCA18-004

Discussion of Effects: The proposed project will not create greater impacts than were identified in
the Certified TOP FEIR. There are no known mineral resources in the area; therefore, no impacts
are anticipated.

Mitigation: None required. The project will not result in any new, increased or substantially different
impacts, other than those previously considered and addressed in the Certified TOP FEIR. No
changes or additions to TOP FEIR analyses are necessary.

12) NOISE. Would the project result in:

a) Exposure of persons to or generation of noise levels in excess of standards established in
the local general plan or noise ordinance, or applicable standards of other agencies?

Discussion of Effects: The proposed project will not create greater impacts than were identified in
the Certified TOP FEIR. The project will not expose people to or generate noise levels in excess of
standards as established in The Ontario Plan FEIR (Section 5.12). No additional analysis will be
required at the time of site development review.

Mitigation: No new mitigation measures required. The project will not result in any new, increased
or substantially different impacts, other than those previously considered and addressed in the
Certified TOP FEIR. No changes or additions to TOP FEIR analyses are necessary.

b) Exposure of persons to or generation of excessive ground-borne vibration or ground-borne
noise levels?

Discussion of Effects: The proposed project will not create greater impacts than were identified in
the Certified TOP FEIR. The uses associated within the IH zone are required to comply with the
environmental standards contained in the City of Ontario Development Code; therefore, no impacts
are anticipated.

Mitigation: No new mitigation measures required. The project will not result in any new, increased
or substantially different impacts, other than those previously considered and addressed in the
Certified TOP FEIR. No changes or additions to TOP FEIR analyses are necessary.

c) A substantial permanent increase in ambient noise levels in the project vicinity above levels
existing without the project?

Discussion of Effects: The proposed Development Code Amendment to increase the allowable
building/structure height from 55 feet to 80 feet within the IH zoning district does not propose or
involve any new development or construction project. Therefore, the project will not result in a
substantial permanent increase in ambient noise levels in the project vicinity above levels existing,
and will not create greater impacts than were identified in the Certified TOP FEIR.

Mitigation: No new mitigation measures required. The project will not result in any new, increased
or substantially different impacts, other than those previously considered and addressed in the
Certified TOP FEIR. No changes or additions to TOP FEIR analyses are necessary.

d) A substantial temporary or periodic increase in ambient noise levels in the project vicinity
above levels existing without the project?

Discussion of Effects: The proposed Development Code Amendment to increase the allowable
building/structure height from 55 feet to 80 feet within the IH zoning district does not propose or
involve any new development or construction project. The proposed project will not create greater
impacts than were identified in the Certified TOP FEIR. Any future development within the IH zone
must comply with existing noise standards; therefore, no impacts are anticipated.

Mitigation: No new mitigation measures required. The project will not result in any new, increased
or substantially different impacts, other than those previously considered and addressed in the
Certified TOP FEIR. No changes or additions to TOP FEIR analyses are necessary.

e) Foraprojectlocated within the noise impact zones of the airport land use compatibility plan
for ONT and Chino Airports, would the project expose people residing or working in the
project area to excessive noise levels?

Page 25 of 31

ltem G - 39 of 56



CEQA Environmental Checklist Form
File No: PDCA18-004

Discussion of Effects: The proposed Development Code Amendment to increase the allowable
building/structure height from 55 feet to 80 feet within the IH zoning district does not propose or
involve any new development or construction project. Any future development within the IH zone
will comply with the Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (ONT ALUCP);
therefore, no impacts are anticipated.

Mitigation: No new mitigation measures required. The project will not result in any new, increased
or substantially different impacts, other than those previously considered and addressed in the
Certified TOP FEIR. No changes or additions to TOP FEIR analyses are necessary.

f) Foraproject within the vicinity of aprivate airstrip, would the project expose peopleresiding
or working in the project area to excessive noise levels?

Discussion of Effects: The project site is not located within the vicinity of a private airstrip; therefore,
no impacts are anticipated.

Mitigation: No new mitigation measures required. The project will not result in any new, increased
or substantially different impacts, other than those previously considered and addressed in the
Certified TOP FEIR. No changes or additions to TOP FEIR analyses are necessary.

13) POPULATION & HOUSING. Would the project:

a) Induce substantial population growth in an area, either directly (for example, by proposing
new homes and businesses) or indirectly (for example, through extension of road or other
infrastructure)?

Discussion of Effects: The proposed project will not significantly affect population growth in the
area and will not create greater impacts than were identified in the Certified TOP FEIR.

Mitigation: None required. The project will not result in any new, increased or substantially different
impacts, other than those previously considered and addressed in the Certified TOP FEIR. No
changes or additions to TOP FEIR analyses are necessary.

b) Displace substantial numbers of existing housing, necessitating the construction of
replacement housing elsewhere?

Discussion of Effects: The proposed project will not adversely affect housing in the area and will
not create greater impacts than were identified in the Certified TOP FEIR.

Mitigation: None required. The project will not result in any new, increased or substantially different
impacts, other than those previously considered and addressed in the Certified TOP FEIR. No
changes or additions to TOP FEIR analyses are necessary.

c) Displace substantial numbers of people, necessitating the construction of replacement
housing elsewhere?

Discussion of Effects: The proposed project will not adversely affect housing in the area and will
not create greater impacts than were identified in the Certified TOP FEIR.

Mitigation: None required. The project will not result in any new, increased or substantially different
impacts, other than those previously considered and addressed in the Certified TOP FEIR. No
changes or additions to TOP FEIR analyses are necessary.

14) PUBLIC SERVICES. Would the project:

a) Result in substantial adverse physical impacts associated with the provision of new or
physically altered governmental facilities, need for new or physically altered governmental
facilities, the construction of which could cause significant environmental impacts, in order
to maintain acceptable service ratios, response times or other performance objectives for
any of the public services:

i) Fire protection?

Discussion of Effects: The proposed project will not create greater impacts than were identified
in the Certified TOP FEIR. The proposed Development Code Amendment to increase the

Page 26 of 31

Item G - 40 of 56



CEQA Environmental Checklist Form
File No: PDCA18-004

allowable building/structure height from 55 feet to 80 feet within the IH zoning district does not
propose or involve any new development or construction project. No impacts are anticipated.

Mitigation: None required. The project will not result in any new, increased or substantially
different impacts, other than those previously considered and addressed in the Certified TOP
FEIR. No changes or additions to TOP FEIR analyses are necessary.

i) Police protection?

Discussion of Effects: The proposed Development Code Amendment to increase the allowable
building/structure height from 55 feet to 80 feet within the IH zoning district does not propose
or involve any new development or construction project. No impacts are anticipated.

Mitigation: None required. The project will not result in any new, increased or substantially
different impacts, other than those previously considered and addressed in the Certified TOP
FEIR. No changes or additions to TOP FEIR analyses are necessary.

iii) Schools?

Discussion of Effects: The proposed project will not create greater impacts than were identified
in the Certified TOP FEIR.

Mitigation: None required. The Project will not result in any new, increased or substantially
different impacts, other than those previously considered and addressed in the Certified TOP
FEIR. No changes or additions to TOP FEIR analyses are necessary.

iv) Parks?

Discussion of Effects: The proposed Development Code Amendment to increase the allowable
building/structure height from 55 feet to 80 feet within the IH zoning district does not propose
or involve any new development or construction project. No impacts are anticipated.

Mitigation: None required. The project will not result in any new, increased or substantially
different impacts, other than those previously considered and addressed in the Certified TOP
FEIR. No changes or additions to TOP FEIR analyses are necessary.

v) Other public facilities?

Discussion of Effects: The proposed Development Code Amendment to increase the allowable
building/structure height from 55 feet to 80 feet within the IH zoning district does not propose
or involve any new development or construction project. No impacts are anticipated.

Mitigation: None required. The Project will not result in any new, increased or substantially
different impacts, other than those previously considered and addressed in the Certified TOP
FEIR. No changes or additions to TOP FEIR analyses are necessary.

15) RECREATION. Would the project:

a) Increasethe use of existing neighborhood and regional parks or other recreational facilities
such that substantial physical deterioration of the facility would occur or be accelerated?

Discussion of Effects: The proposed project will not create greater impacts than were identified in
the Certified TOP FEIR. This project is not proposing any new housing or large employment
generator that would cause an increase in the use of neighborhood parks or other recreational
facilities. No impacts are anticipated.

Mitigation: None required. The project will not result in any new, increased or substantially different
impacts, other than those previously considered and addressed in the Certified TOP FEIR. No
changes or additions to TOP FEIR analyses are necessary.

b) Does the project include recreational facilities or require the construction or expansion of
recreational facilities that have an adverse physical effect on the environment?

Discussion of Effects: The proposed project will not create greater impacts than were identified in
the Certified TOP FEIR. This project is not proposing any new housing or large employment

Page 27 of 31

Item G - 41 of 56



CEQA Environmental Checklist Form
File No: PDCA18-004

generator that would cause an increase in the use of neighborhood parks or other recreational
facilities. No impacts are anticipated.

Mitigation: None required. The project will not result in any new, increased or substantially different
impacts, other than those previously considered and addressed in the Certified TOP FEIR. No
changes or additions to TOP FEIR analyses are necessary.

16) TRANSPORTATION/TRAFFIC. Would the project:

a) Conflict with an applicable plan, ordinance or policy establishing measures of effectiveness
for the performance of the circulation system, taking into account all modes of
transportation including mass transit and non-motorized travel and relevant components of
the circulation system, including but not limited?

Discussion of Effects: The proposed Development Code Amendment to increase the allowable
building/structure height from 55 feet to 80 feet within the IH zoning district does not propose or
involve any new development or construction project. No impacts are anticipated.

Mitigation: No new mitigation measures required. The project will not result in any new, increased
or substantially different impacts, other than those previously considered and addressed in the
Certified TOP FEIR. No changes or additions to TOP FEIR analyses are necessary.

b) Conflict with an applicable congestion management program, including, but not limited to,
level of service standard and travel demand measures, or other standards established by
the county congestion management agency for designated roads or highways?

Discussion of Effects: The proposed Development Code Amendment to increase the allowable
building/structure height from 55 feet to 80 feet within the IH zoning district does not propose or
involve any new development or construction project. No impacts are anticipated.

Mitigation: No new mitigation measures required. The project will not result in any new, increased
or substantially different impacts, other than those previously considered and addressed in the
Certified TOP FEIR. No changes or additions to TOP FEIR analyses are necessary.

¢) Result in a change in air traffic patterns, including either an increase in traffic levels or a
change in location that results in substantial safety risks?

Discussion of Effects: The proposed Development Code Amendment to increase the allowable
building/structure height from 55 feet to 80 feet within the IH zoning district does not propose or
involve any new development or construction project. No impacts are anticipated.

Mitigation: No new mitigation measures required. The project will not result in any new, increased
or substantially different impacts, other than those previously considered and addressed in the
Certified TOP FEIR. No changes or additions to TOP FEIR analyses are necessary.

d) Substantially increase hazards due to a design feature (e.g., sharp curves or dangerous
intersections) or incompatible uses (e.g., farm equipment)?

Discussion of Effects: The proposed Development Code Amendment to increase the allowable
building/structure height from 55 feet to 80 feet within the IH zoning district does not propose or
involve any new development or construction project. No impacts are anticipated.

Mitigation: No new mitigation measures required. The project will not result in any new, increased
or substantially different impacts, other than those previously considered and addressed in the
Certified TOP FEIR. No changes or additions to TOP FEIR analyses are necessary.

e) Resultin inadequate emergency access?

Discussion of Effects: The proposed Development Code Amendment to increase the allowable
building/structure height from 55 feet to 80 feet within the IH zoning district does not propose or
involve any new development or construction project. No impacts are anticipated.

Mitigation: No new mitigation measures required. The project will not result in any new, increased
or substantially different impacts, other than those previously considered and addressed in the
Certified TOP FEIR. No changes or additions to TOP FEIR analyses are necessary.

Page 28 of 31

Item G - 42 of 56



CEQA Environmental Checklist Form
File No: PDCA18-004

f) Resultin inadequate parking capacity?

Discussion of Effects: The proposed Development Code Amendment to increase the allowable
building/structure height from 55 feet to 80 feet within the IH zoning district does not propose or
involve any new development or construction project. No impacts are anticipated.

Mitigation: No new mitigation measures required. The project will not result in any new, increased
or substantially different impacts, other than those previously considered and addressed in the
Certified TOP FEIR. No changes or additions to TOP FEIR analyses are necessary.

g) Conflict with adopted policies, plans, or programs supporting alternative transportation
(e.g., bus turnouts, bicycle racks)?

Discussion of Effects: The project does not conflict with any transportation policies, plans or
programs; therefore, no impacts are anticipated.

Mitigation: No new mitigation measures required. The project will not result in any new, increased
or substantially different impacts, other than those previously considered and addressed in the
Certified TOP FEIR. No changes or additions to TOP FEIR analyses are necessary.

17) UTILITIES AND SERVICE SYSTEMS. Would the project:

a) Exceed wastewater treatment requirements of the applicable Regional Water Quality Control
Board?

Discussion of Effects: The proposed project will not significantly alter wastewater treatment needs
of Ontario and will not create greater impacts than were identified in the Certified TOP FEIR.

Mitigation: No new mitigation measures required. The project will not result in any new, increased
or substantially different impacts, other than those previously considered and addressed in the
Certified TOP FEIR. No changes or additions to TOP FEIR analyses are necessary.

b) Require or result in the construction of new water or wastewater treatment facilities or
expansion of existing facilities, the construction of which could cause significant
environmental effects?

Discussion of Effects: The proposed project will not create greater impacts than were identified in
the Certified TOP FEIR.

Mitigation: No new mitigation measures required. The project will not result in any new, increased
or substantially different impacts, other than those previously considered and addressed in the
Certified TOP FEIR. No changes or additions to TOP FEIR analyses are necessary.

c) Require or result in the construction of new storm water drainage facilities or expansion of
existing facilities, the construction of which could cause significant environmental effects?

Discussion of Effects: The proposed Development Code Amendment to increase the allowable
building/structure height from 55 feet to 80 feet within the IH zoning district does not propose or
involve any new development or construction project. No impacts are anticipated.

Mitigation: No new mitigation measures required. The project will not result in any new, increased
or substantially different impacts, other than those previously considered and addressed in the
Certified TOP FEIR. No changes or additions to TOP FEIR analyses are necessary.

d) Have sufficient water supplies available to serve the project from existing entitlements and
resources, or are new or expanded entitlements needed? In making this determination, the
City shall consider whether the project is subject to the water supply assessment
requirements of Water Code Section 10910, et seq. (SB 610), and the requirements of
Government Code Section 664737 (SB 221).

Discussion of Effects: The proposed project will not create greater impacts than were identified in
the Certified TOP FEIR; therefore, no impacts are anticipated.

Page 29 of 31

Item G - 43 of 56



CEQA Environmental Checklist Form
File No: PDCA18-004

Mitigation: No new mitigation measures required. The project will not result in any new, increased
or substantially different impacts, other than those previously considered and addressed in the
Certified TOP FEIR. No changes or additions to TOP FEIR analyses are necessary.

e) Resultin adetermination by the wastewater treatment provider that serves or may serve the
project that it has adequate capacity to serve the project's projected demand in addition to
the provider's existing commitments?

Discussion of Effects: The proposed project does not allow for construction beyond levels
previously considered by the Certified TOP EIR; therefore, no impacts are anticipated.

Mitigation: No new mitigation measures required. The project will not result in any new, increased
or substantially different impacts, other than those previously considered and addressed in the
Certified TOP FEIR. No changes or additions to TOP FEIR analyses are necessary.

f) Beserved by alandfill with sufficient permitted capacity to accommodate the project's solid
waste disposal needs?

Discussion of Effects: The proposed project will not create greater impacts than were identified in
the Certified TOP FEIR.

Mitigation: No new mitigation measures required. The project will not result in any new, increased
or substantially different impacts, other than those previously considered and addressed in the
Certified TOP FEIR. No changes or additions to TOP FEIR analyses are necessary.

g) Comply with federal, state, and local statutes and regulations related to solid waste?

Discussion of Effects: The proposed project will not create greater impacts than were identified in
the Certified TOP FEIR.

Mitigation: No new mitigation measures required. The project will not result in any new, increased
or substantially different impacts, other than those previously considered and addressed in the
Certified TOP FEIR. No changes or additions to TOP FEIR analyses are necessary.

18) MANDATORY FINDINGS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Does the project have the potential to degrade the quality of the environment, substantially
reduce the habitat or a fish or wildlife species, cause afish or wildlife population to drop below
self-sustaining levels, threaten to eliminate a plant or animal community, reduce the number
or restrict the range of a rare or endangered plant or animal or eliminate important examples
of the major periods of California history or prehistory?

Discussion of Effects: The proposed project does not have the potential to reduce wildlife habitat
and threaten a wildlife species. Therefore, no impacts are anticipated.

Mitigation: None required. The project will not result in any new, increased or substantially different
impacts, other than those previously considered and addressed in the Certified TOP FEIR. No
changes or additions to TOP FEIR analyses are necessary.

a) Does the project have the potential to achieve short-term environmental goals to the
disadvantage of long-term environmental goals?

Discussion of Effects: The project does not have the potential to achieve short-term environmental
goals to the disadvantage of long-term environmental goals.

Mitigation: None required. The project will not result in any new, increased or substantially different
impacts, other than those previously considered and addressed in the Certified TOP FEIR. No
changes or additions to TOP FEIR analyses are necessary.

b) Does the project have impacts that are individually limited, but cumulatively considerable?
("Cumulatively considerable” means that the incremental effects of a project are
considerable when viewed in connection with the effects of past projects, the effects of
other current project, and the effects of probable future projects.)

Discussion of Effects: The project does not have impacts that are cumulatively considerable.

Page 30 of 31

Item G - 44 of 56



CEQA Environmental Checklist Form
File No: PDCA18-004

Mitigation: None required. The project will not result in any new, increased or substantially different
impacts, other than those previously considered and addressed in the Certified TOP FEIR. No
changes or additions to TOP FEIR analyses are necessary.

c) Does the project have environmental effects that will cause substantial adverse effects on
human beings, either directly or indirectly?

Discussion of Effects: The project does not have environmental effects that will cause substantial
adverse effects on human beings, either directly or indirectly.

Mitigation: None required. The project will not result in any new, increased or substantially different
impacts, other than those previously considered and addressed in the Certified TOP FEIR. No
changes or additions to TOP FEIR analyses are necessary.

| EARLIER ANALYZES

(Earlier analyses may be used where, pursuant to the tiering, program EIR, or other CEQA process, one or
more effects have been adequately analyzed in an earlier EIR or Negative Declaration. Section
15063(c)(3)(D)):

1) Earlier analyzes used. Identify earlier analyzes used and state where they are available for review.
a) The Ontario Plan Final EIR
b) The Ontario Plan
c) City of Ontario Zoning

All documents listed above are on file with the City of Ontario Planning Department, 303 East “B” Street,
Ontario, California 91764, (909) 395-2036.

2) Impacts adequately addressed. Identify which effects from the above checklist were within the scope
of and adequately analyzed in an earlier document pursuant to applicable legal standards.

Comments Ill.A and C were addressed in The Ontario Plan FEIR and considered a significant adverse
effect that could not be mitigated. A statement of overriding considerations was adopted for The Ontario
Plan FEIR.

MITIGATION MEASURES

The Mitigation Measures contained in the Certified TOP Environmental Impact Report adequately mitigate
the impacts of the proposed project. These mitigation measures are contained in the Mitigation Monitoring
Program.

Page 31 of 31

Item G - 45 of 56



RESOLUTION NO.

A RESOLUTION OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF
ONTARIO, CALIFORNIA, RECOMMENDING THE CITY COUNCIL
APPROVE FILE NO. PDCA18-004, A DEVELOPMENT CODE
AMENDMENT TO |INCREASE THE ALLOWABLE BUILDING/
STRUCTURE HEIGHT FROM 55 FEET TO 80 FEET WITHIN THE IH
(HEAVY INDUSTRIAL) ZONING DISTRICT, AND MAKING FINDINGS IN
SUPPORT THEREOF.

WHEREAS, The City of Ontario ("Applicant”) has filed an Application for the
approval of a Development Code Amendment, File No. PDCA18-004, as described in the
title of this Resolution (hereinafter referred to as "Application” or "Project"); and

WHEREAS, the Development Code (Ontario Municipal Code Title 9) provides the
legislative framework for the implementation of The Ontario Plan, which states long-term
principles, goals, and policies for guiding the growth and development of the City in a
manner that achieves Ontario's vision and promotes and protects the public health,
safety, comfort, convenience, prosperity, and welfare of its; and

WHEREAS, on December 1, 2015, the City Council approved a comprehensive
update to the Ontario Development Code (Ordinance No. 3028), which became effective
on January 1, 2016; and

WHEREAS, the Ontario Planning Department has initiated alterations to the
Development Code for the purpose increasing the allowable building/structure height from
55 feet to 80 feet within the IH (Heavy Industrial) zoning district listed in Chapter 6.0 —
Development and Subdivision Regulations, Table 6.01-10: Industrial Zoning District
Development Standards (Attachment A - Table 6.01-10: Industrial Zoning District
Development Standards Revisions); and

WHEREAS, the Development Code established the IH zoning district to
accommodate heavier manufacturing, assembly, storage and warehousing uses; and

WHEREAS, land uses normally permitted within the IH zone typically incorporate
taller facilities within their operations such silos, smokestacks and tanks as part of their
operations; and

WHEREAS, the 55 foot building height established in the 2015 comprehensive
Development Code update did not reflect the existing built environment of the IH zone,
resulting in legal non-conforming structures that exceed the 55 foot height limit throughout
the zone; and

Item G - 46 of 56



Planning Commission Resolution
File No. PDCA18-004

October 23, 2018

Page 2

WHEREAS, specific plans that surround the IH Zone generally have allowable
heights that range from 70 feet to over 100 Feet; and

WHEREAS, the environmental impacts of this project were reviewed in
conjunction with an Addendum to The Ontario Plan Environmental Impact Report (SCH#
2008101140) certified by the Ontario City Council on January 27, 2010, in conjunction
with File No. PGP06-001 (hereinafter referred to as “Certified EIR”). This Application
introduces no new significant environmental impacts; and

WHEREAS, the City's "Local Guidelines for the Implementation of the California
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA)" provide for the use of a single environmental
assessment in situations where the impacts of subsequent projects are adequately
analyzed; and

WHEREAS, the Application is a project pursuant to the California Environmental
Quiality Act (Public Resources Code Section 21000 et seq.) ("CEQA") and an initial study
has been prepared to determine possible environmental impacts; and

WHEREAS, Ontario Development Code Table 2.02-1 (Review Matrix) grants the
Planning Commission the responsibility and authority to review and make
recommendation to the City Council on the subject Application; and

WHEREAS, the Project is located within the Airport Influence Area of Ontario
International Airport, which encompasses lands within parts of San Bernardino, Riverside,
and Los Angeles Counties, and is subject to, and must be consistent with, the policies
and criteria set forth in the Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan
(“ALUCP”), which applies only to jurisdictions within San Bernardino County, and
addresses the noise, safety, airspace protection, and overflight impacts of current and
future airport activity; and

WHEREAS, City of Ontario Development Code Division 2.03 (Public Hearings)
prescribes the manner in which public notification shall be provided and hearing
procedures to be followed, and all such notifications and procedures have been
completed; and

WHEREAS, on September 25, 2018, the Planning Commission of the City of
Ontario conducted a hearing to consider the Project, and continued said hearing to
October 23, 2018; and

WHEREAS, on October 23, 2018, the Planning Commission of the City of Ontario

conducted a hearing to consider the Project, and concluded said hearing on that date;
and

Item G - 47 of 56



Planning Commission Resolution
File No. PDCA18-004

October 23, 2018

Page 3

WHEREAS, as the first action on the Project, on October 23, 2018, the Planning
Commission approved a resolution recommending adoption of an Addendum to a
previous Certified EIR prepared pursuant to CEQA, the State CEQA Guidelines and the
City of Ontario Local CEQA Guidelines, which indicated that all potential environmental
impacts from the Project were less than significant or could be mitigated to a level of
significance; and

WHEREAS, all legal prerequisites to the adoption of this Resolution have occurred.

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY FOUND, DETERMINED, AND RESOLVED
by the Planning Commission of the City of Ontario, as follows:

SECTION 1: Environmental Determination and Findings. As the
recommending body for the Project, the Planning Commission has reviewed and
considered the information contained in the previous Certified EIR and supporting
documentation. Based upon the facts and information contained in the previous Certified
EIR and supporting documentation, the Planning Commission finds as follows:

(1) The environmental impacts of this project were reviewed in conjunction with
an Addendum to The Ontario Plan Environmental Impact Report, certified by the City of
Ontario City Council on January 27, 2018, in conjunction with File No. PGPA06-001.

(2) The Addendum and administrative record have been completed in
compliance with CEQA, the State CEQA Guidelines, and the City of Ontario Local CEQA
Guidelines; and

3) The City's "Guidelines for the Implementation of the California
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA)" provide for the use of a single environmental
assessment in situations where the impacts of subsequent projects are adequately
analyzed. This Application introduces no new significant environmental impacts.

(4) The Addendum contains a complete and accurate reporting of the
environmental impacts associated with the Project, and reflects the independent
judgment of the Planning Commission; and

(5)  There is no substantial evidence in the administrative record supporting a
fair argument that the project may result in significant environmental impacts; and

(6) The proposed project will introduce no new significant environmental
impacts beyond those previously analyzed in the Certified EIR, and all mitigation
measures previously adopted by the Certified EIR, are incorporated herein by this
reference.

Item G - 48 of 56



Planning Commission Resolution
File No. PDCA18-004

October 23, 2018

Page 4

SECTION 2: Additional Environmental Review Not Required. Based on the
Addendum, all related information presented to the Planning Commission, and the
specific findings set forth in Section 1, above, the Planning Commission finds that the
preparation of a subsequent or supplemental Certified EIR is not required for the Project,
as the Project:

(1) Does not constitute substantial changes to the Certified EIR that will require
major revisions to the Certified EIR due to the involvement of new significant
environmental effects or a substantial increase in the severity of previously identified
significant effects; and

(2) Does not constitute substantial changes with respect to the circumstances
under which the Certified EIR was prepared, that will require major revisions to the
Certified EIR due to the involvement of new significant environmental effects or a
substantial increase in the severity of the previously identified significant effects; and.

3) Does not contain new information of substantial importance that was not
known and could not have been known with the exercise of reasonable diligence at the
time the Certified EIR was certified/adopted, that shows any of the following:

(@) The project will have one or more significant effects not discussed in
the Certified EIR; or

(b)  Significant effects previously examined will be substantially more
severe than shown in the Certified EIR; or

(c) Mitigation measures or alternatives previously found not to be
feasible would in fact be feasible and would substantially reduce one or more significant
effects of the Project, but the City declined to adopt such measures; or

(d) Mitigation measures or alternatives considerably different from those
analyzed in the Certified EIR would substantially reduce one or more significant effects
on the environment, but which the City declined to adopt.

SECTION 4: Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan
(“ALUCP”) Compliance. The California State Aeronautics Act (Public Utilities Code
Section 21670 et seq.) requires that an Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan be prepared
for all public use airports in the State; and requires that local land use plans and individual
development proposals must be consistent with the policies set forth in the adopted
Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan. On April 19, 2011, the City Council of the City of
Ontario approved and adopted the Ontario International Airport Land use Compatibility
Plan (“ALUCP"), establishing the Airport Influence Area for Ontario International Airport
(“ONT"), which encompasses lands within parts of San Bernardino, Riverside, and Los

Item G - 49 of 56



Planning Commission Resolution
File No. PDCA18-004

October 23, 2018

Page 5

Angeles Counties, and limits future land uses and development within the Airport
Influence Area, as they relate to noise, safety, airspace protection, and overflight impacts
of current and future airport activity. As the recommending body for the Project, the
Planning Commission has reviewed and considered the facts and information contained
in the Application and supporting documentation against the ALUCP compatibility factors,
including [1] Safety Criteria (ALUCP Table 2-2) and Safety Zones (ALUCP Map 2-2), [2]
Noise Criteria (ALUCP Table 2-3) and Noise Impact Zones (ALUCP Map 2-3), [3]
Airspace protection Zones (ALUCP Map 2-4), and [4] Overflight Notification Zones
(ALUCP Map 2-5). As a result, the Planning Commission, therefore, finds and determines
that the Project, when implemented in conjunction with the conditions of approval, will be
consistent with the policies and criteria set forth within the ALUCP.

SECTION 5: Concluding Facts and Reasons. Based upon the substantial
evidence presented to the Planning Commission during the above-referenced hearing,
and upon the specific findings set forth in Section 1 through 4, above, the Planning
Commission hereby concludes as follows:

(1) The proposed Development Code Amendment is consistent with the
goals, policies, plans and exhibits of the Vision, Policy Plan (General Plan), and
City Council Priorities components of The Ontario Plan. The Development Code
established the IH zoning district to accommodate heavier manufacturing, assembly,
storage and warehousing uses. Land uses normally permitted within the IH zone typically
incorporate taller facilities within their operations such silos, smokestacks and tanks as
part of their operations. The proposed Development Code will provide consistency
between the development code and the existing built environment; and

(2) The proposed Development Code Amendment would not be detrimental
to the public interest, health, safety, convenience, or general welfare of the City.
The Development Code Amendment to allow for the increase of building/structure heights
from 55 feet to 80 feet within the IH (Heavy Industrial) zoning district will not be detrimental
to the public interest, health, safety, convenience, and general welfare of the City. The
existing built environment within the IH zoning district and surrounding specific plans
contain structures within the proposed 80 foot height range. Furthermore, the maximum
building heights are restricted throughout the City pursuant to the Ontario International
Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (ONT ALUCP).

SECTION 6: Planning Commission Action. Based upon the findings and
conclusions set forth in Sections 1 through 5, above, the Planning Commission hereby
RECOMMENDS THE CITY COUNCIL APPROVES the herein described Application.

SECTION 7: Indemnification. The Applicant shall agree to defend, indemnify and

hold harmless, the City of Ontario or its agents, officers, and employees from any claim,
action or proceeding against the City of Ontario or its agents, officers or employees to

ltem G - 50 of 56


http://ww2.cityofpasadena.net/zoning/P-8.html#CITY

Planning Commission Resolution
File No. PDCA18-004

October 23, 2018

Page 6

attack, set aside, void, or annul this approval. The City of Ontario shall promptly notify the
applicant of any such claim, action, or proceeding, and the City of Ontario shall cooperate
fully in the defense.

SECTION 8: Custodian of Records. The documents and materials that
constitute the record of proceedings on which these findings have been based are located
at the City of Ontario City Hall, 303 East “B” Street, Ontario, California 91764. The
custodian for these records is the City Clerk of the City of Ontario.

SECTION 9: Certification to Adoption. The Secretary shall certify to the
adoption of the Resolution.

The Secretary Pro Tempore for the Planning Commission of the City of Ontario shall
certify as to the adoption of this Resolution.

| hereby certify that the foregoing Resolution was duly and regularly introduced,
passed and adopted by the Planning Commission of the City of Ontario at a regular
meeting thereof held on the 23rd day of October 2018, and the foregoing is a full, true
and correct copy of said Resolution, and has not been amended or repealed.

Richard D. Delman
Planning Commission Chairman

ATTEST:

Cathy Wahlstrom
Planning Director
Secretary of Planning Commission

Item G - 51 of 56



Planning Commission Resolution
File No. PDCA18-004
October 23, 2018

Page 7

STATE OF CALIFORNIA )
COUNTY OF SAN BERNARDINO)
CITY OF ONTARIO )

I, Gwen Berendsen, Secretary Pro Tempore of the Planning Commission of the
City of Ontario, DO HEREBY CERTIFY that foregoing Resolution No. PC18-[insert #] was
duly passed and adopted by the Planning Commission of the City of Ontario at their
regular meeting held on October 23, 2018, by the following roll call vote, to wit:
AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:

ABSTAIN:

Gwen Berendsen
Secretary Pro Tempore

Item G - 52 of 56



Planning Commission Resolution
File No. PDCA18-004

October 23, 2018

Page 8

ATTACHMENT A:

File No. PDCA18-004
Table 6.01-10: Industrial Zoning District Development
Standards Revisions

ltem G - 53 of 56



Planning Commission Resolution
File No. PDCA18-004

October 23, 2018

Page 9

Table 6.01-10: Industrial Zoning District Development Standards

Industrial Zoning Districts Additional

\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\
L S EEEE e

Item G - 54 of 56



Planning Commission Resolution

File No. PDCA18-004
October 23, 2018
Page 10

Table 6.01-10: Industrial Zoning District Development Standards
_ Industrial Zoning Districts Additional
Requirements .
BP P IL IG IH Regulations
(2) Arterial Street 20 FT
(3) Collector/Local 10FT
Street
b. Screened Loading and OFT
Storage Yard to Interior Property Line
Exception: From i 10 FT (area shall be densely landscaped) n/a
property line common with residential
district
ned Loading and OFT
Storage Ya d B Id ngs, Walls, and
Fences
7. Walls, Fences and Refer to Section 6.02.020 (Design Standards for Residential Zoning
Obstructions Districts).
8. Off Street Parking Refer to Division 6.03 (Off-Street Parking and Loading).
Maintge.narlljcrgpeny Appearance and Refer to Division 6.10 (Property Appearance and Maintenance).
10. Historic Preservation Certain portion f ommercial zoning districts are iden f d s his
pot Ilyh and al I do the Cy H Resorces
EIgnyL D Ipm gI et forth in D 701(H
Pre ) and applica p 9 d permit g egulat
fh 402(D aryPe dA ns) a dfh
Dev Ipm Cd hIIppIy i S.
11. Signs Refer to Division 8.1 (Sign Regulations).
12. Security Standards Refer to Ontario Municipal Code Title 4, Chapter 11 (Security Standards
for Bu Id g)
13. Noise Bldg hIIbdgdd cted to mitigate noise levels from
sources. Refer to OMC, TI 5 (Public Welfare, M als, and
C d ) Chapter 29 (N0|se).
14. Airport Safety Zones Properties within h Airport Influence Area (AIA) established by the
LA/Ontario International Airport La d Use Compatlblllty Plan (ALUCP)
shall be subject to the requirements and standards of the ALUCP.
B. BUILDING DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS
1. Maximum Building Area  [Single-Tenant: 45,000 SF n/a Note 9
Multi-Tenant: 60,000 SF
a. From Freeway Property 20 FT
Line

b. From Arterial Street
Property Line

(1) Holt Boulevard

10 FT

ltem G - 55 of 56



Planning Commission Resolution

File No. PDCA18-004
October 23, 2018
Page 11

Table 6.01-10: Industrial Zoning District Development Standards

Industrial Zoning Districts Additional
Requirements )
BP IP IL IG IH Regulations
(2) All Other Arterial 20 FT
Streets
c. From Collector and 10FT
Local Street Property Line
3. Minimum Interior Property OFT Note 6
Line Setback
Exception: Property line 30 FT
common with residential districts
4. Maximum Height 45 FT 55 FT 80 FT Note 7
5. Minimum Setback From S0 FT Note 8
Major Pipelines (to habitable
structures)

ltem G - 56 of 56



CITY OF ONTARIO
MEMORANDUM

TO: Chairman and Members of the Planning Commission
FROM: Cathy Wahlstrom, Planning Director @ {’U
DATE: October 23, 2018

SUBJECT: MONTHLY PLANNING DEPARTMENT ACTIVITY REPORT; MONTH
OF SEPTEMBER 2018

Attached, you will find the Planning Department Monthly Activity Report for the month of
September 2018. The report describes all new applications received by the Planning Department
and actions taken on applications during the month. Please contact me if you have any questions
regarding this information.

The attached reports, along with reports from past months, may also be viewed on the City's web
site. New applications may be viewed at http://www.ontarioca.gov/planning/reports/monthly-
activity-reports-applications, and actions taken on applications may be viewed at
http://www.ontarioca.gov/planning/reports/monthly-activity-reports-actions.




City of Ontario Planning Department

Monthly Activity Report—Actions
Month of September 2018

CITY COUNCIL/HOUSING AUTHORITY MEETING September 4, 2018

ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT AND DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT FOR FILE NO. PDA17-002: A
Development Agreement by and between the City of Ontario and Brookcal Ontario, LLC, to
establish the terms for the development of Tentative Tract Map 20081 (File No. PMTT17-003) to
subdivide 44.98 acres of land into 76 numbered lots and 62 lettered lots for residential and
commercial uses, public/private streets, landscape neighborhood edges and common open space
purposes for a property located on northeast corner of Ontario Ranch Road and Haven Avenue,
within the Mixed Use District Planning Area 6A (Regional Commercial and Stand Alone Residential
Overlay) of the Rich Haven Specific Plan. The environmental impacts of this project were
previously analyzed in an addendum to The Rich Haven Specific Plan (File No. PSP05-004) EIR
(SCH# 2006051081) that was certified by the City Council on December 4, 2007 and an Addendum
to The Ontario Plan (File No. PGPA06-001) EIR (SCH# 2008101140) certified by City Council on
January 27, 2010. This application is consistent with the previously adopted EIR and introduces
no new significant environmental impacts. All previously adopted mitigation measures shall be a
condition of project approval and are incorporated herein by reference. The proposed project is
located within the Airport Influence Area of Ontario International Airport, and was evaluated and
found to be consistent with the policies and criteria of the Ontario International Airport Land Use
Compatibility Plan (ALUCP); (APNs: 218-211-02 and 218-211-05) submitted by Brookcal Ontario,
LLC. The Planning Commission recommended approval of this item on July 24, 2018, with a vote
of 7to 0.

Action: The City Council approved and waived further reading of the ordinance.

ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT AND DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT REVIEW FOR FILE NO.
PDA17-003: A Development Agreement by and between the City of Ontario and Ontario Land
Ventures, LLC, to establish the terms and conditions for the development of Tentative Parcel Map
19738 (File No. PMTT17-011). The project site is bounded by Eucalyptus Avenue to the north,
Cucamonga Creek Channel to the east, Merrill Avenue to the south, and Carpenter Avenue to the
west, located within the Business Park and General Industrial land use district of the West Ontario
Commerce Center Specific Plan. The environmental impacts of this project were analyzed in the
West Ontario Commerce Center Specific Plan (File No. PSP16-002) EIR (SCH#2017041074), that
was certified by the City Council on July 3, 2018. This application is consistent with the EIR and
introduces no new significant environmental impacts. All adopted mitigation measures of the
related EIR shall be a condition of project approval and are incorporated herein by reference. The
proposed project is located within the Airport Influence Area of Ontario International Airport,
and was evaluated and found to be consistent with the policies and criteria of the Ontario
International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (ALUCP). The project site is also located within
the Airport Influence area of Chino Airport and is consistent with policies and criteria set forth
within the 2011 California Airport Land Use Planning Handbook published by the California
Department of Transportation, Division of Aeronautics; (APNs: 0218-221-09, 0218-261-16, 0218-
261-22, 0218-261-23, 0218-261-32, 0218-271-04, 0218-271-08, 0218-271-10, 0218-271-13 and

10/10/2018 Page 1 of 8



City of Ontario Planning Department

Monthly Activity Report—Actions
Month of September 2018

0218-271-18) submitted by REDA, OLV. The Planning Commission recommended approval of this
item on July 24, 2018, with a vote of 7 to 0.
Action: The City Council approved and waived further reading of the ordinance.

DEVELOPMENT ADVISORY BOARD MEETING September 5, 2018
Meeting Cancelled
ZONING ADMINISTRATOR MEETING September 5, 2018

ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT AND CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT REVIEW FOR FILE NO.
PCUP18-016: A Conditional Use Permit request to establish a children’s indoor fitness playground
within a proposed 14,397 square foot tenant space of an existing 28,805 square foot commercial
building located at 130 West G Street, within the MU-1 (Downtown Mixed Use) and EA (Euclid
Avenue Overlay) zoning districts. The project is categorically exempt from the requirements of
the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) pursuant to Section 15301 (Class 1, Existing
Facilities) of the CEQA Guidelines. The proposed project is located within the Airport Influence
Area of Ontario International Airport, and was evaluated and found to be consistent with the
policies and criteria of the Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (ALUCP);
(APN: 1048-271-19) submitted by Kids Empire Ontario LLC, Haim Elbaz. Continued from 8/20/18
meeting.

Action: The Zoning Administrator approved the project subject to conditions.

ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT AND CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT REVIEW FOR FILE NO.
PCUP18-019: A Conditional Use Permit request to establish a fitness facility within a proposed
14,500 square foot tenant space of an existing 28,805 square foot commercial building located
at 130 West G Street, within the MU-1 (Downtown Mixed Use) and EA (Euclid Avenue Overlay)
zoning districts. The project is categorically exempt from the requirements of the California
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) pursuant to Section 15301 (Class 1, Existing Facilities) of the
CEQA Guidelines. The proposed project is located within the Airport Influence Area of Ontario
International Airport, and was evaluated and found to be consistent with the policies and criteria
of the Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (ALUCP); (APN: 1048-271-19)
submitted by Blink Fitness. Continued from 8/20/18 meeting.

Action: The Zoning Administrator approved the project subject to conditions.

10/10/2018 Page 2 of 8



City of Ontario Planning Department

Monthly Activity Report—Actions
Month of September 2018

ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT AND CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT REVIEW FOR FILE NO.
PCUP18-026: A Conditional Use Permit (PCUP18-026) request to establish a 1,400 square-foot
massage business located at 2250-A South Euclid Avenue, within the CC (Community
Commercial) zoning district. Staff has determined that the project is categorically exempt from
the requirements of the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) pursuant to Section 15301
(Class 1-Existing Facilities) of the CEQA guidelines. The proposed project is located within the
Airport Influence Area of Ontario International Airport, and was evaluated and found to be
consistent with the policies and criteria of the Ontario International Airport Land Use
Compatibility Plan (ALUCP); (APN: 1051-051-72) submitted by Bao Jun Zhao.

Action: The Zoning Administrator approved the project subject to conditions.

DEVELOPMENT ADVISORY BOARD MEETING September 17,2018

ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT AND DEVELOPMENT PLAN REVIEW FOR FILE NO. PDEV18-013:
A Development Plan to construct 79 single-family dwellings on approximately 19.30 gross acres
of land located at the southeast corner of Eucalyptus and Celebration Avenues, within Planning
Area 22 of the Subarea 29 Specific Plan. The environmental impacts of this project were reviewed
in conjunction with the Subarea 29 Specific Plan Environmental Impact Report (File No. PSP03-
003, SCH# 200411009), certified by the City Council on October 17, 2006. The project introduces
no new significant environmental impacts. The proposed project is located within the Airport
Influence Area of Ontario International Airport, and was evaluated and found to be consistent
with the policies and criteria of the Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan
(ALUCP). The project site is also located within the Airport Influence area of Chino Airport and is
consistent with policies and criteria set forth within the 2011 California Airport Land Use Planning
Handbook published by the California Department of Transportation, Division of Aeronautics;
(APNs: 0218-014-03 and 0218-014-04) submitted by Richmond American Homes of Maryland,
Inc. Planning Commission action is required.

Action: The Development Advisory Board recommended the Planning Commission approve the
project subject to conditions.

ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT AND DEVELOPMENT PLAN REVIEW FOR FILE NO. PDEV18-015:
A Development Plan to construct an 8,869-square foot clubhouse on 2.29 acres of land generally
located at the southwest corner of Hamner Avenue and Eucalyptus Avenue, within Planning Area
5 (4-Pack Courtyard) of the Esperanza Specific Plan. The environmental impacts of this project
were previously analyzed in an addendum to the Esperanza Specific Plan EIR (SCH# 2002061047)
that was adopted by the Planning Commission on June 24, 2014. This project introduces no new
significant environmental impacts. The proposed project is located within the Airport Influence
Area of Ontario International Airport, and was evaluated and found to be consistent with the

10/10/2018 Page 3 of 8



City of Ontario Planning Department

Monthly Activity Report—Actions
Month of September 2018

policies and criteria of the Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (ALUCP);
(APNs: 0218-252-17) submitted by Lennar Homes of CA, Inc.
Action: The Development Advisory Board approved the project subject to conditions.

ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT AND DEVELOPMENT PLAN REVIEW FOR FILE NO. PDEV18-018:
A Development Plan (File No. PDEV18-018) to construct 47 single-family dwellings on 8.9 acres
of land located near the southwest corner of Celebration Avenue and Eucalyptus Avenue, within
PA 21 of the Subarea 29 Specific Plan. The environmental impacts of this project were previously
reviewed in conjunction with an Addendum to the Subarea 29 Specific Plan Environmental
Impact Report (File No. PSPA14-002, SCH #2004011009), certified by the City Council on April 21,
2015. This project introduces no new significant environmental impacts. The proposed project is
located within the Airport Influence Area of Ontario International Airport, and was evaluated and
found to be consistent with the policies and criteria of the Ontario International Airport Land Use
Compatibility Plan (ALUCP). The project site is also located within the Airport Influence area of
Chino Airport and is consistent with policies and criteria set forth within the 2011 California
Airport Land Use Planning Handbook published by the California Department of Transportation,
Division of Aeronautics; (APN: 0218-014-02) submitted by Pulte Homes. Planning Commission
action is required.

Action: The Development Advisory Board recommended the Planning Commission approve the
project subject to conditions.

ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT AND DEVELOPMENT PLAN REVIEW FOR FILE NO. PDEV18-020:
A Development Plan (File No. PDEV18-020) to construct 48 single-family homes (6-Pack Cluster),
126 multi-family homes (Rowtowns) and 91 multi-family homes (Townhomes) on 23.66 acres of
land located at the northeast corner of Archibald Avenue and Ontario Ranch Road, within the
Low Medium Density Residential (LMDR) district of Planning Area 7 of The Avenue Specific Plan.
The environmental impacts of this project were previously analyzed in an addendum to The
Avenue Specific Plan Environmental Impact Report (SCH# 2005071109), certified by the City
Council on June 17, 2014. This project introduces no new significant environmental impacts. The
proposed project is located within the Airport Influence Area of Ontario International Airport,
and was evaluated and found to be consistent with the policies and criteria of the Ontario
International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (ALUCP). The project site is also located within
the Airport Influence area of Chino Airport and is consistent with policies and criteria set forth
within the 2011 California Airport Land Use Planning Handbook published by the California
Department of Transportation, Division of Aeronautics; (APN: 0218-201-18) submitted by
Brookfield Homes Southern California. Planning Commission action is required.

Action: The Development Advisory Board recommended the Planning Commission approve the
project subject to conditions.

10/10/2018 Page 4 of 8



City of Ontario Planning Department

Monthly Activity Report—Actions

Month of September 2018

ZONING ADMINISTRATOR MEETING September 17,2018
Meeting Cancelled

CITY COUNCIL/HOUSING AUTHORITY MEETING September 18,2018

ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT AND CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT REVIEW FOR FILE NO.
PCUP18-008: A Conditional Use Permit to allow for the development of a 208-room full-service
hotel on 4.95 acres of land generally located at the southeast corner of Archibald Avenue and
Inland Empire Boulevard, within the OH (High Intensity Office) zoning district. The proposed
project is categorically exempt from the requirements of the California Environmental Quality
Act of 1970 (CEQA), as amended, and the Guidelines promulgated thereunder, pursuant to
Section 15332 (Class 32, In-Fill Development Projects) of the CEQA Guidelines. The proposed
project is located within the Airport Influence Area of Ontario International Airport, and was
evaluated and found to be consistent with the policies and criteria of the Ontario International
Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (ALUCP). (APNs: 0210-191-29, 0210-191-30, 0210-191-31
and 0210-191-32); submitted by Heartland Alliance, LLC. The Planning Commission
recommended approval of this item on August 28, 2018, by a vote of 6 to 0. Continued from
September 18, 2018 meeting.

Action: Continued to the October 2, 2018, City Council meeting.

ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT AND DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT FOR FILE NO. PDA18-001: A
Development Agreement by and between the City of Ontario and Richland Developers Inc., to
establish the terms for the development of Tentative Tract Map 18929 (File No. PMTT13-016) to
subdivide 54.81 acres of land into 207 residential numbered lots and 24 lettered lots and
Tentative Tract Map18930 (File No. PMTT13-017) to subdivide 49.45 acres of land into 225
residential numbered lots and 26 lettered lots. The properties are bounded by Eucalyptus Avenue
to the north, Merrill Avenue to the south, Archibald Avenue to the east and the Cucamonga Flood
Control channel to the west, and located within the Conventional Small Lot Residential district of
Planning Area 1 and within the Neighborhood Commercial Center district of Planning Area 2 of
the Subarea 29 Specific Plan. The environmental impacts of this project were previously reviewed
in conjunction with the Subarea 29 Specific Plan EIR (SCH# 2004011009) certified by the City
Council on October 17, 2006. The project site is located within the Airport Influence Area of the
Ontario International Airport (ONT), and has been found to be consistent with the policies and
criteria set forth within the ALUCP for ONT. The project site is also located within the Airport
Influence area of Chino Airport and is consistent with policies and criteria set forth within the
2011 California Airport Land Use Planning Handbook published by the California Department of
Transportation, Division of Aeronautics. (APNs: 0218-271-11 and 0218-271-19) submitted by

10/10/2018 Page 5 of 8



City of Ontario Planning Department

Monthly Activity Report—Actions
Month of September 2018

Richland Communities. The Planning Commission recommended approval of this item on August
28, 2018, with a vote of 6 to 0.
Action: The City Council introduced and waived further reading of the ordinance.

ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT AND SPECIFIC PLAN AMENDMENT REVIEW FOR FILE NO.
PSPA18-004: An Amendment to the Meredith International Centre Specific Plan, revising the sign
standards/guidelines for freeway identification signs and for uses over 200,000 square feet in
area, within the Urban Commercial land use district. Staff is recommending the adoption of an
Addendum to the Meredith International Centre Environmental Impact Report (SCH#
2014051020), reviewed in conjunction with File Nos. PGPA13-005 and File No. PSPA14-003, and
certified by the City Council on April 7, 2015. This project introduces no new significant
environmental impacts. The proposed project is located within the Airport Influence Area of
Ontario International Airport, and was evaluated and found to be consistent with the policies and
criteria of the Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (ALUCP). (APNs: 0110-
311-52, 0110-311-53, 0110-311-54, 0110-311-55, 0110-321-29, 0110-321-68, 0110-321-72,
0110-321-73, 0110-321-74, 0110-321-75, 0110-321-76, 0110-321-77, 0110-321-78, 0110-321-
79); submitted by Real Development Solutions, LLC. The Planning Commission recommended
approval of this item on August 28, 2018, by a vote of 6 to 0.

Action: Continued to the October 2, 2018, City Council meeting.

ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT AND TENTATIVE WILLIAMSON ACT CANCELLATION FOR FILE
NO. PWIL18-003 (#77-515): A petition to cancel Williamson Act Contract 77-515 (File No. PWIL18-
003), for property located at the southwest corner of Archibald Avenue and Eucalyptus Avenue,
within the Conventional Small Lot Residential district of Planning Area 1 and within the
Neighborhood Commercial Center district of Planning Area 2 of the Subarea 29 Specific Plan. The
environmental impacts of this project were previously reviewed in conjunction with the Subarea
29 Specific Plan EIR (SCH# 2004011009) certified by the City Council on October 17, 2006. The
project site is located within the Airport Influence Area of the Ontario International Airport (ONT),
and has been found to be consistent with the policies and criteria set forth within the ALUCP for
ONT. The project site is also located within the Airport Influence area of Chino Airport and is
consistent with policies and criteria set forth within the 2011 California Airport Land Use Planning
Handbook published by the California Department of Transportation, Division of Aeronautics.
(APN: 0218-271-11) submitted by Richland Communities. The Planning Commission
recommended approval of this item on August 28, 2018, with a vote of 6 to 0.

Action: The City Council adopted a resolution approving the Tentative Cancellation of the Land
Conservation Act Contract.

10/10/2018 Page 6 of 8



City of Ontario Planning Department

Monthly Activity Report—Actions
Month of September 2018

PLANNING/HISTORIC PRESERVATION COMMISSION MEETING  September 25,2018

ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT AND DEVELOPMENT PLAN REVIEW FOR FILE NO. PDEV18-013:
A Development Plan to construct 79 single-family dwellings on approximately 19.30 gross acres
of land located at the southeast corner of Eucalyptus and Celebration Avenues, within Planning
Area 22 of the Subarea 29 Specific Plan. The environmental impacts of this project were reviewed
in conjunction with the Subarea 29 Specific Plan Environmental Impact Report (File No. PSP03-
003, SCH# 200411009), certified by the City Council on October 17, 2006. The project introduces
no new significant environmental impacts. The proposed project is located within the Airport
Influence Area of Ontario International Airport, and was evaluated and found to be consistent
with the policies and criteria of the Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan
(ALUCP). The project site is also located within the Airport Influence area of Chino Airport and is
consistent with policies and criteria set forth within the 2011 California Airport Land Use Planning
Handbook published by the California Department of Transportation, Division of Aeronautics;
(APNs: 0218-014-03 and 0218-014-04) submitted by Richmond American Homes of Maryland,
Inc.

Action: The Planning Commission approved the project subject to conditions.

ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT AND DEVELOPMENT PLAN REVIEW FOR FILE NO. PDEV18-020:
A Development Plan to construct 48 single-family homes (6-Pack Cluster), 126 multi-family
homes (Rowtowns) and 91 multi-family homes (Townhomes) on 23.66 acres of land located at
the northeast corner of Archibald Avenue and Ontario Ranch Road, within the Low Medium
Density Residential (LMDR) district of Planning Area 7 of The Avenue Specific Plan. The
environmental impacts of this project were previously analyzed in an addendum to The Avenue
Specific Plan Environmental Impact Report (SCH# 2005071109), certified by the City Council on
June 17, 2014. This project introduces no new significant environmental impacts. The proposed
project is located within the Airport Influence Area of Ontario International Airport, and was
evaluated and found to be consistent with the policies and criteria of the Ontario International
Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (ALUCP). The project site is also located within the Airport
Influence area of Chino Airport and is consistent with policies and criteria set forth within the
2011 California Airport Land Use Planning Handbook published by the California Department of
Transportation, Division of Aeronautics; (APN: 0218-201-18) submitted by Brookfield Homes
Southern California.

Action: The Planning Commission approved the project subject to conditions.

ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT AND DEVELOPMENT PLAN REVIEW FOR FILE NO. PDEV18-018:
A Development Plan to construct 47 single-family dwellings on 8.9 acres of land located near the
southwest corner of Celebration Avenue and Eucalyptus Avenue, within PA 21 of the Subarea 29
Specific Plan. The environmental impacts of this project were previously reviewed in conjunction
with an Addendum to the Subarea 29 Specific Plan Environmental Impact Report (File No.
PSPA14-002, SCH #2004011009), certified by the City Council on April 21, 2015. This project

10/10/2018 Page 7 of 8



City of Ontario Planning Department

Monthly Activity Report—Actions
Month of September 2018

introduces no new significant environmental impacts. The proposed project is located within the
Airport Influence Area of Ontario International Airport, and was evaluated and found to be
consistent with the policies and criteria of the Ontario International Airport Land Use
Compatibility Plan (ALUCP). The project site is also located within the Airport Influence area of
Chino Airport and is consistent with policies and criteria set forth within the 2011 California
Airport Land Use Planning Handbook published by the California Department of Transportation,
Division of Aeronautics; (APN: 0218-014-02) submitted by Pulte Homes.

Action: The Planning Commission approved the project subject to conditions.

ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT AND DEVELOPMENT CODE AMENDMENT REVIEW FOR FILE
NO. PDCA18-004: A Development Code Amendment to increase the allowable building/structure
height from 55 feet to 80 feet within the IH (Heavy Industrial) zoning district. The environmental
impacts of this project were reviewed in conjunction with an Addendum to The Ontario Plan
Environmental Impact Report (File No. PGPA06-001, SCH# 2008101140), certified by the City of
Ontario City Council on January 27, 2010. This project introduces no new significant
environmental impacts. The proposed project is located within the Airport Influence Area of
Ontario International Airport, and was evaluated and found to be consistent with the policies and
criteria of the Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (ALUCP); City Initiated.
City Council action is required.

Action: The Planning Commission recommended the City Council approve the project.

10/10/2018 Page 8 of 8



City of Ontario Planning Department

Monthly Activity Report—New Applications

Month of September 2018

PCUP18-032: Submitted by Boiling World, Inc.

A Conditional Use Permit to establish alcoholic beverage sales, including beer, wine, and distilled
spirits (Type 47 ABC license, on-sale general for bona-fide public eating place), for consumption
on the premises in conjunction with an existing 9,000-square foot restaurant on 3.44 acres of
land, located at 4431 East Ontario Mills Parkway, within the Ontario Mills Specific Plan (APN:
0238-014-10). Zoning Administrator action is required.

PDET18-003: Submitted by Warrior System Manufacturing

A Land Use Determination for 1219 East Locust Street, within the Business Park Land Use district
of the Grove Avenue Specific Plan (APN: 0113-361-55). Zoning Administrator action is required.

PDEV18-031: Submitted by Ontario CC LLC

A Development Plan to construct 6 industrial buildings totaling 1,040,727 square feet on 46.64
acres of land located at the southwest corner of Riverside Drive and Hamner Avenue, within the
Commercial/Business Park Flex Zone/Business Park land use district of the Edenglen Specific Plan
(APNs: 0218-171-27 and 0218-171-21). Related Files: PMTT18-009 (PM 20027), PSPA18-003 and
PGPA18-002. Development Advisory Board and Planning/Historic Preservation Commission
actions are required.

PHP-18-031: Submitted by C C CO GRABER

A request for a Mills Act Contract for 315 East Fourth Street, a Contributor to the College Park
Historic District (APN: 1047-543-31). Historic Preservation Subcommittee, Planning/Historic
Preservation Commission, and City Council/Housing Authority actions are required.

PMTT18-009: Submitted by Ontario CC, LLC

A Parcel Map (PM 20027) to subdivide 47.36 acres of land into 6 parcels located at the southwest
corner of Riverside Drive and Hamner Avenue, within the Commercial/Business Park Flex
Zone/Business Park land use district of the Edenglen Specific Plan (APNs: 0218-171-27 and 0218-
171-21). Related Files: PDEV18-031, PSPA18-003, and PGPA18-002. Development Advisory
Board and Planning/Historic Preservation Commission actions are required.

PSGN18-106: Submitted by Swain Sign Inc.

A Sign Plan for the installation of a wall sign (south elevation) for FARMERS INSURANCE, located
at 2970 East Inland Empire Boulevard, within the Transpark Specific Plan. Staff action is required.

PSGN18-107: Submitted by Promotion Plus Signs

A Sign Plan for the installation of a wall sign with a series of non-illuminated graphic panels for
AM/PM, located at 2446 South Archibald Avenue, within the CC (Community Commercial) zoning
district. Staff action is required.

10/10/2018 Page 1 of 3



City of Ontario Planning Department

Monthly Activity Report—New Applications

Month of September 2018

PSGN18-108: Submitted by Sunset Signs

A Sign Plan for the installation of a wall sign (east elevation) for SHORR PACKAGING CORP.,
located at 1100 South Etiwanda Avenue, within the IH (Heavy Industrial) zoning district. Staff
action is required.

PSGN18-109: Submitted by Alcon Signs

A Sign Plan for the installation of a wall sign (east elevation) for THE SPINE CHIROPRACTIC, located
at 2550 South Archibald Avenue, Suite C, within the CC (Community Commercial) zoning district.
Staff action is required.

PSGN18-110: Submitted by National Sign

A Sign Plan for the installation of a wall sign (east elevation) and reface of an existing monument
sign for EL POLLO LOCO, located at 1865 East Fourth Street, within the CN (Neighborhood
Commercial) zoning district. Staff action is required.

PSPA18-008: Submitted by City of Ontario

A Minor Specific Plan Amendment to the Subarea 29 Specific Plan, modifying the maximum lot
coverage standards for the SFR Conventional Large Lot: Enclave Homes development standards
of the Subarea 29 Specific Plan. Planning Director action is required.

PTUP18-063: Submitted by Alzheimer's Association

A Temporary Use Permit for the 2018 annual Walk to End Alzheimers, located at the Ontario Mills
Mall (1 East Mills Circle). The event will be held on 9/16/2018. Staff action is required.

PTUP18-064: Submitted by Broco Rankin

A Temporary Use Permit for Company Anniversary Celebration and open house, located at 400
South Rockefeller Avenue. The event will be held on 9/26/2018. Staff action is required.

PTUP18-065: Submitted by KABC7

A Temporary Use Permit for Annual Spark of Love/Stuff a Bus Toy Drive for ABC7, located at
(Mathis Brothers Furniture Store) 4105 East Inland Empire Boulevard. The event will be held on
11/30/2018. Staff action is required.

PTUP18-066: Submitted by Tarbell Realtors

A Temporary Use Permit for a Grand Reopening for Tarbell Realtors, located at 2409 South
Vineyard Avenue, Suite A. The event will be held on 9/15/2018. Staff action is required.

PTUP18-067: Submitted by Circo Caballero

A Temporary Use Permit for Circo Caballero, to be held at the Ontario Mills Mall (1 East Mills
Circle). The event will be held on 10/19/2018 through 10/28/2018. Staff action is required.

10/10/2018 Page 2 of 3



City of Ontario Planning Department

Monthly Activity Report—New Applications

Month of September 2018

PTUP18-068: Submitted by Hooters Ontario

A Temporary Use Permit for a Car Show hosted by Hooters, located at 725 North Milliken Avenue.
The event will be held on 9/23/2018. Staff action is required.

PTUP18-069: Submitted by Pulte Home Company

A Temporary Use Permit for a temporary sales office and construction trailer for Tract No. 18066
(Pulte Homes). 10/1/2018 through 10/1/2020. Staff action is required.

PTUP18-070: Submitted by American Lung Association

A Temporary Use Permit for an American Lung Association event hosted by Mathis Brothers
Furniture. Event will be held on November 4, 2018 at 4105 East Inland Empire Boulevard. Staff
action is required.

PTUP18-071: Submitted by Centro Cristiano Shalom Adonai

A Temporary Use Permit for a fund raising car wash hosted by Centro Cristiano Shalom Adonai
Church, located at 540 West Maple Street. Event to be held on 10/13/2018. Staff action is
required.

PVER18-035: Submitted by Zoning Reports, LLC

A Zoning Verification for 1575 North Mountain Avenue (APN: 1008-271-10). Staff action is
required.

PVER18-036: Submitted by Armada Analytics, Inc.

A Zoning Verification for 850 North Center Avenue (APN: 0210-182-41). Staff action is required.

PVER18-037: Submitted by Erwin Hymer Group USA

A Zoning Verification for 4502 East Brickell Privado (APN: 0238-185-36). Staff action is required.

PVER18-038: Submitted by Coda Consulting Group

A Zoning Verification for 1000 South Etiwanda Avenue (APN: 0238-101-64). Staff action is
required.

PVER18-039: Submitted by Phelan Development Company

A Zoning Verification for 2195 South Grove Avenue (APN: 0113-641-15). Staff action is required.

PVER18-040: Submitted by Kori Ryan

A Zoning Verification for 2060 South Wineville Avenue (APN: 0238-152-25). Staff action is
required.

10/10/2018 Page 3 of 3



	20181023 PC Agenda
	20181023 Item A-01 Minutes
	REGULAR MEETING: City Hall, 303 East B Street
	Called to order by Chairman Delman at 6:30 PM
	COMMISSIONERS
	Present: Chairman Delman, Vice-Chairman Willoughby, DeDiemar, Downs, Gage, Gregorek, and Reyes
	Absent: None
	OTHERS PRESENT: Planning Director Wahlstrom, City Attorney Egger, Assistant Planning Director Zeledon, Senior Planner Mejia, Senior Planner Noh, Assistant Planner Aguilo, Assistant Planner Vaughn, Principal City Engineer Lirley, and Planning Secretary...
	PUBLIC TESTIMONY
	As there was no one else wishing to speak, Chairman Delman closed the public testimony
	PLANNING COMMISSION ACTION
	It was moved by Willoughby, seconded by Gage, to approve a resolution for the Development Plan, File No., PDEV18-013, subject to conditions of approval. Roll call vote: AYES, DeDiemar, Delman, Downs, Gage, Gregorek, Reyes, and Willoughby; NOES, none; ...
	PUBLIC TESTIMONY
	Mr. Mark Deschenes representing Brookfield Residential, appeared and stated he was excited about the project and the enhancements they have made.
	Mr. Reyes wanted applicant to expand on the amenities offered within the park and at the pool site.
	Mr. Deschenes described the plunge area that is for residents only and will have pool and an area with a TV and barbecue area, with restrooms. He then described the forest park area that was designed to bring neighbors together, which will have tables...
	As there was no one else wishing to speak, Chairman Delman closed the public testimony
	It was moved by Reyes, seconded by Downs, to approve a resolution for the Development Plan, File No., PDEV18-020, subject to conditions of approval. Roll call vote: AYES, DeDiemar, Delman, Downs, Gage, Gregorek, Reyes, and Willoughby; NOES, none; RECU...
	PUBLIC TESTIMONY
	Mr. Matt Matson, representing Pulte Homes, appeared and stated he was available to answer any questions.
	Mr. Reyes wanted to know if they had thought about any one-story style homes.
	Mr. Brent Bowman, stated the project was always envisioned as two-story product.
	Mr. Willoughby stated that this was their first project in Ontario and wanted to welcome the applicant.
	As there was no one else wishing to speak, Chairman Delman closed the public testimony
	It was moved by Willoughby, seconded by Gage, to approve a resolution for the Development Plan, File No., PDEV18-018, subject to conditions of approval. Roll call vote: AYES, DeDiemar, Delman, Downs, Gage, Gregorek, Reyes, and Willoughby; NOES, none; ...
	PUBLIC TESTIMONY
	Chairman Delman opened the public hearing
	No one responded.
	It was moved by Willoughby, seconded by Gregorek, to continue the Development Code Amendment, File No., PDCA18-004, to the October 23, 2018 Planning Commission meeting. The motion was carried 7 to 0.
	MATTERS FROM THE PLANNING COMMISSION
	Old Business Reports From Subcommittees
	Historic Preservation (Standing): This subcommittee met on September 13, 2018.
	 One Parcel (Grove and 7th Street) wanted to be pulled from registry was denied
	 Presentation regarding Historical trees and policy to replace them.
	Development Code Review (Ad-hoc): This subcommittee did not meet.
	Zoning General Plan Consistency (Ad-hoc): This subcommittee did not meet.
	New Business
	NOMINATIONS FOR SPECIAL RECOGNITION
	None at this time.
	DIRECTOR’S REPORT
	Ms. Wahlstrom stated the Monthly Activity Report is included in their packet.
	ADJOURNMENT
	Gregorek motioned to adjourn, seconded by Gage.  The meeting was adjourned at 7:24 PM.
	________________________________
	Secretary Pro Tempore
	________________________________

	20181023 Item A-02_PSGN18-112
	20181023 Meredith International Centre Freeway Sign File PSGN18-112 ^01 AR
	20181023 Meredith International Centre Freeway Sign (File #PSGN18-112)^02 RES

	20181023 Item B PHP18-027
	20181023 PHP18-027 Mills Act^01 AR
	20181023 PHP18-027_Mills Act^02 Reso 122 E El Morado Ct
	20181023 PHP18-027_Mills Act^03 COA

	20181023 Item C PHP18-031
	20181023 Item D PMTT18-006_PDEV18-014_PDA18-002
	20181023 Item E PGPA18-005_PZC18-002
	20181023 File No. PGPA18-005, PZC18-002 ^ 01 AR
	20181023 File No. PGPA18-005, PZC18-002 ^ 02 Reso Addendum
	20181023 File No. PGPA18-005, PZC18-002 ^ 03 Addendum Revised
	Discussion of Effects: There are no active faults known on the site and the project site is located outside the Fault Rapture Hazard Zone (formerly Alquist-Priolo Zone). The Ontario Plan FEIR (Section 5.7/Figure 5.7-2) identifies eight active or poten...
	Discussion of Effects: The site is in a developed area currently served by the Ontario Fire Department. The project and any future development will not require the construction of any new facilities or alteration of any existing facilities or cause a ...
	Mitigation: None required.
	Discussion of Effects: The site is in a developed area, currently served by the Ontario Police Department. The project and any future development will not require the construction of any new facilities or alteration of any existing facilities or cause...
	Discussion of Effects: Any future development will be required to pay school fees as prescribed by state law prior to the issuance of building permits. No impacts are anticipated.
	Discussion of Effects: The site is in a developed area, currently served by the City of Ontario. The project and any future development will not require the construction of any new facilities or alteration of any existing facilities or cause a decline...
	Mitigation: None required.
	Discussion of Effects: The site is in a developed area, currently served by the City of Ontario. The project and any future development will not require the construction of any new facilities or alteration of any existing facilities or cause a decline...
	Mitigation: None required.

	20181023 File No. PGPA18-005, PZC18-002 ^ 04 Reso GPA
	20181023 File No. PGPA18-005, PZC18-002 ^ 05 Reso ZC

	20181023 Item F PGPA18-006
	20181023 PGPA18-006^01 AR
	20181023 PGPA18-006^02 Reso

	20181023 Item G PDCA18-004
	20181023 File No PDCA18-004 IH Zone Building Height_ ^01 AR
	20181023 File No PDCA18-004 IH Zone Building Height ^02 Addendum Reso
	20181023 File No PDCA18-004 IH Zone Building Height ^03 Addendum
	Project Title/File No.: PDCA18-004
	Lead Agency: City of Ontario, 303 East “B” Street, Ontario, California 91764, (909) 395-2036
	Contact Person: Lorena Mejia, Senior Planner, (909) 395-2276
	Project Sponsor: City of Ontario, 303 East “B” Street, Ontario, California 91764
	Project Location: The project site is located in southwestern San Bernardino County, within the City of Ontario. The City of Ontario is located approximately 40 miles from downtown Los Angeles, 20 miles from downtown San Bernardino, and 30 miles from ...
	Figure 1—REGIONAL LOCATION MAP
	Discussion of Effects: There are no active faults known on the site and the project site is located outside the Fault Rapture Hazard Zone (formerly Alquist-Priolo Zone). The Ontario Plan FEIR (Section 5.7/Figure 5.7-2) identifies eight active or poten...
	Discussion of Effects: The proposed project will not create greater impacts than were identified in the Certified TOP FEIR. The proposed Development Code Amendment to increase the allowable building/structure height from 55 feet to 80 feet within the ...
	Mitigation: None required. The project will not result in any new, increased or substantially different impacts, other than those previously considered and addressed in the Certified TOP FEIR. No changes or additions to TOP FEIR analyses are necessary.
	Discussion of Effects: The proposed project will not create greater impacts than were identified in the Certified TOP FEIR.
	Discussion of Effects: The proposed Development Code Amendment to increase the allowable building/structure height from 55 feet to 80 feet within the IH zoning district does not propose or involve any new development or construction project. No impact...
	Mitigation: None required. The project will not result in any new, increased or substantially different impacts, other than those previously considered and addressed in the Certified TOP FEIR. No changes or additions to TOP FEIR analyses are necessary.
	Discussion of Effects: The proposed Development Code Amendment to increase the allowable building/structure height from 55 feet to 80 feet within the IH zoning district does not propose or involve any new development or construction project. No impact...
	Mitigation: None required. The Project will not result in any new, increased or substantially different impacts, other than those previously considered and addressed in the Certified TOP FEIR. No changes or additions to TOP FEIR analyses are necessary.


	20181023 File No PDCA18-004 IH Zone Building Height ^04 PDCA Reso

	20181023 Monthly Activity Report
	monthly pc
	09-2018 Monthly Activity Report - Actions
	09-2018 Monthly Activity Report - New Apps
	PCUP18-032: Submitted by Boiling World, Inc.
	PDET18-003: Submitted by Warrior System Manufacturing
	PDEV18-031: Submitted by Ontario CC LLC
	PHP-18-031: Submitted by C C CO GRABER
	PMTT18-009: Submitted by Ontario CC, LLC
	PSGN18-106: Submitted by Swain Sign Inc.
	PSGN18-107: Submitted by Promotion Plus Signs
	PSGN18-108: Submitted by Sunset Signs
	PSGN18-109: Submitted by Alcon Signs
	PSGN18-110: Submitted by National Sign
	PSPA18-008: Submitted by City of Ontario
	PTUP18-063: Submitted by Alzheimer's Association
	PTUP18-064: Submitted by Broco Rankin
	PTUP18-065: Submitted by KABC7
	PTUP18-066: Submitted by Tarbell Realtors
	PTUP18-067: Submitted by Circo Caballero
	PTUP18-068: Submitted by Hooters Ontario
	PTUP18-069: Submitted by Pulte Home Company
	PTUP18-070: Submitted by American Lung Association
	PTUP18-071: Submitted by Centro Cristiano Shalom Adonai
	PVER18-035: Submitted by Zoning Reports, LLC
	PVER18-036: Submitted by Armada Analytics, Inc.
	PVER18-037: Submitted by Erwin Hymer Group USA
	PVER18-038: Submitted by Coda Consulting Group
	PVER18-039: Submitted by Phelan Development Company
	PVER18-040: Submitted by Kori Ryan





